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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Times Property Holdings Limited (“Times Property” or the
“Company”; together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), one of
the top 100 property developers in China, is principally engaged
in property development, property investment and property
management, focusing on the development of mid- to high-end
market residential properties. As at 31 December 2013, Times
Property had expanded its business to Guangzhou, Foshan,
Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Qingyuan and Changsha where economies
are relatively developed, and had in total 22 projects on various
stages.

Through adherence to focusing on regional penetration, we have
achieved leading market position in prosperous Guangdong
Province. The Company positions residential business as its core
sector, managing to attract customers with robust demands and
improvement-oriented demands. In addition, we also provide
quality property management services to our commercial and
residential property purchasers by the property management
companies operated by ourselves.

B ERRAMR AT Times Property Holdings Limited 2013%E % Annual Report 2013



ARAR_F-—=ZFF+_A+—AEFBHAS
RPAMBRARERET  RINEET EERER
BY¥R -FAR ARAETEEHEHRRE
TEFEWEXEBELTEFMERNTFORT
(20137 Bl 55 1 2= 9 3% (2 35098 (58354 ) | 18
5%

HRIEREER A [BEZATREBENE
EIMEEES  BEHBEERREFNER -
BB (TRER]) BEEARH  BAOKAP
BREFNEHEDRSE -

2013 FE 3k Annual Report 2013

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December 2013
and since then stepped on an international funding-raising
platform. During year 2013, the Company was awarded “2013
China’s Top 50 Real Estate Developers” (Rank No. 35) jointly
by the China Real Estate Research Association, the China Real
Estate Industry Association and the China Real Estate Evaluation
Center.

Times Property, under its persistent mission of “empowering
more people to live with a lifestyle they are seeking for”, is
committed to providing quality products to consumers and
maximizing returns to its shareholders (the “Shareholders”),
targeting to become a leading real estate enterprise in China.

B AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

02013

s MR BEBBBZMER LT
Successfully listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
s ARHERKARAH

Contracted sales surpassed RMB10 billion

BAEE (RY)

Times King City (Changsha)

o EAMBERDMS  IEXINEMERIED
Successfully entered Hunan Changsha market,
bringing successful products to Changsha

o RRIEEW(KD)
Times King City (Changsha)
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Entered the Foshan residential The Company positioned itself as “Life Stylist” and
property development market, started to establish its own competitive strength

focusing on the development of
real estate projects

o BRACHE(HEIL)
Times King City (Foshan)

> 2007 > 1999

o WAL ER  HKEMS RRMEKILRI99F » BAREHEXS
ﬁjﬂﬁ/\\\ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ—%%%% B Times Property was established in 1999 and
Entered Zhongshan, Qingyuan engaged in real estate business

and Zhuhai residential

property development market
o RFRERIE (K/E)

Times Laguna (Zhuhai)
o BFRERAE (L)

Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)
o BEREM (BER)

Times King City (Qingyuan)
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AWARDS WON BY THE COMPANY
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The Company was awarded “2013 China Top 10 Real Estate
_ Development Enterprise Comprehensive Development” jointly
by the China Real Estate Research Association, the China Real

Estate Industry Association and the China Real Estate Evaluation
=— Center.
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In 2006, the Company was awarded “China Real
Estate Enterprise Top 200 (Among Top 100)” by
the Urban Development and Environment Research
Center of the Chinese Academy of Social Science,
China National Real Estate Enterprise Association
and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association.
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O 2013FAARAEFERHETN RS - FEE In 2012, the Company
EEHERFAREENFFLET 20135 was awarded Guangdong
B A B 0 $50% (H35% ) B - pravinee Trustworthy

Enterprise for ten
consecutive years (2002-
2011) by GAIC.

In 2013, the Company was awarded “2013

China Top 50 Real Estate Developers” (Rank

No. 35) jointly by the China Real Estate Research
Association, the China Real Estate Industry
Association and the China Real Estate Evaluation
Center.
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In 2009, the Company was awarded
“China Real Estate Enterprise Top
200" (Rank No. 25) by the Urban
Development and Environment
Research Center of the Chinese
Academy of Social Science, China
National Real Estate Enterprise
Association and China Real Estate
Entrepreneur Association.

A it =2 AR AT Times Property Holdings Limited 2013 € E3$R% Annual Report 2013
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In 2011, Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan) received

(o} B%'f‘%ﬂ‘ﬁ the honour of “2011 Excellence Prize for Overall
. Refined Decorations in the Sophisticated Science

Times Bund & Technology Awards” from the National Office

BRRNEEFBEEMERRTE - P EEMEZE RS M E5FE i ZE R+ for Science & Technology Awards.
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Times Bund received the honour of “2013 China Real Estate Development

Enterprise Classic Project Top 10” from the China Real Estate Research

Association, the China Real Estate Industry Association and the China Real

Estate Evaluation Center.

O B HME (M)
Times Bund (Guangzhou)
2013F R RANE (RN ) B3N BIR 52
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In 2013, Times Bund (Guangzhou) received EZEEE% FLETERETETH

3 international awards, including “2013
Best Clubhouse Design in Asia Pacific
Region”, a design award from New York
Hospitality Design 2013 and “Winner for
the Best of Design Excellence” from London
FX International Design Award, becoming a
benchmarking mansion in Guangzhou.

Ocean Times (Guangzhou) was awarded as “2013 China Property

with Most Investment Value in Guangzhou”, “2013 Guangzhou Highly
Recommended House Type Design” and “Annual Property with Investment
Value” by the Fifth China Real Estate Meeting.

2013 FE#H% Annual Report 2013 B EZRAMA T Times Property Holdings Limited



NEER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEE

BITES
LIt
(EFEFRITHAE)
HEELE
EEZ ) S e
FREL
TR
FREALE

BYFHTES
BELL
s 5 &
BEXEE

BEAFRE

Lt (R-F—ME-A=+—BHE)
Mg EE (R-F—NE-A=+—AEE)
ROELT

EREAR

S

WELL (NZF—MEZ A=+ BRE)
RiERELE (R-F-MF-A=+—AZE)

BERERT
FEXEE (E8)
BT L
M %

FHERE
FELL ()
2 g1l e
FEX KL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui
Mr. Bai Xihong
Mr. Li Qiang
Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong
Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng
Mr. Wong Wai Man

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Mei Jing (Resigned on 21 February 2014)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin (Appointed on 21 February 2014)
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Qiang
Ms. Mei Jing (Resigned on 21 February 2014)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin (Appointed on 21 February 2014)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Wai Man (Chairman)
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Sun Hui (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
Mr. Wong Wai Man
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Clifton House
75 Fort Street
P.0. Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands
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Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.0. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clifton House
75 Fort Street
P.O. Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN THE PEOPLE’S
REPUBLIC OF CHINA

36-38/F, Times Property Center
410-412 Dongfeng Road
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1502, 15/F
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. law:

Sidley Austin

Level 39, Two International Finance Center
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
6F, NCI Tower

Al12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing

China

As to Cayman Islands law:

Appleby

2206-19 Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong
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aRER COMPLIANCE ADVISER

BBEBEBRERER AR Haitong International Capital Limited

% B Bh AUDITOR

2K E FT R E S FT ERNST & YOUNG

ESETED Certified Public Accountants

BB 22/F, CITIC Tower

g 1 Tim Mei Avenue

INEELR Central

HRERE221E Hong Kong

B% 7 £ 8% STOCK CODE

1233 1233

VNI Bis COMPANY’S WEBSITE
http://www.timesgroup.cn http://www.timesgroup.cn
FEFEKRETT PRINCIPAL BANKERS

PR T ERTT ICBC (“Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited”)
PR FEIRTT ABC (“Agricultural Bank of China”)

PR ERIRTT CCB (“China Construction Bank”)

R SR 1T BOC (“Bank of China”)

EEERERIRT SPD (“Shanghai Pudong Development Bank”)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

AEBRFSEAE - BEEAEARE - RFMRITE
MESZEERER  WUTH Ef‘EE’JL:E\Z%,.JLHUTISFA !
B TREHENIVEIANEZEEEnBAHERE -

The Group adhered to effectively managed operation
strategies with higher turnover rate. Under the perfect
operation control system and with the support of the industry-
leading information system technology platform, we realized
a comprehensive management in the entire project cycle.

BURE Dear Shareholders,

TABREHFERHEES ((E5)) 2 ([£F On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the

g MAREFEEBEE T —=F+=ZA= “Directors”) of Times Property, | am pleased to present the

+—BHLEFENEFEERFERSE - annual results and the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

— ¥ 1. PERFORMANCE

BHE-_ZT—=%+-A=+—Hit K&EH As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded revenue of
BRAARKEIEMTEE T  FEEBEMNAR RMB9,694.7 million, profit for the year amounted to RMB973.9
o739 BIL ARAIHEA ABMGRFEA million, earnings attributable to owners of the Company
R#987.08 8T SRANABARKETISS - amounted to RMB987.0 million, while earnings per share
EEgEBRERBEREERAREL0.945 - amounted to RMB75 cents, and the Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend of RMB10.94 cents per share.

B ERR AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited 2013 % E %% Annual Report 2013
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The Group adhered to prudent investment strategies. We
managed to meet the expected earning targets by utilizing
diversified methods of land acquisition at low cost.

ZNIZTE—Z=ZFMOE

T CERRERAFESY  BHETS
BElEEN—F  RANEEHETLRNK
BIRATS  BEAEEEAEERET YEMN
BREKR

HEBBERZHMERQA
(TBER A ) EMRBZH LS

ERANRERERT -EEENEIE®R - B
—RENRE  RARAKB —REMEHE
BETRIFAER o

2013 FE | Annual Report 2013 B EERBMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited _

2. REVIEW OF YEAR 2013

In 2013, China completed leadership transition and there was
a stable growth of the real estate market. Despite regulation-
and-control policies continuously being imposed in the PRC
real estate market, the Group managed to obtain significant
achievements during the year:

Successfully listed on the main board of the

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)

It was a significant milestone and also a great leap in the
Company’s development, and has laid a solid foundation for
the Company to live up to be an excellent corporation.



EFEHwE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BERTHRENBRNWRER R
—E-ZHF ASEHEREEEREEAR
BIEL B_F - —F 8 KRE7.2% &
RWARFE G F o 58 EF 18 &203.2% K&
175.4% > EHOOKII BB RRER &
BARERFEELEH-_T-——"F+ A=+
—HMIIE2%BEREBEE-F—=F+_A
=+—HAM93.2% -

EXNEBRNMEFREEREINE T XK

TE = AEERNRBEEMEEL 152
AEFYHARK RZE—Z_F#EK199.8% ° [
BREBYE= ALK MEEEERE
[EH81.0%  EETEEZIEKTE - AEELKE
BENBELT—EFHNER -

AEBEEG LA - B PUBH A R R
MEBOATENE LA D

AREBEEHRERMAORE - RMEPHEE
ABHMETERE  VHEETZEARBRERRERE
—hEERBEELNME - BRI RARBE
s AEBEKAERESANREHED
¥ BE-_ZTZ—=F+-A=+—81I
EEEATIEEBNSITEEF K -

AEEBRSRENKERRE - ZAMBZ T
BRALHIERTN  REZNEZDNEHA
R LEBBBEB2E-_ENERR - ERM
ERMTREAEXAR L EHEE LR MKA
WHARBENRARRELZ — °

AEEBRERETPHRE - BHMARENER
EXRERAREFTRREINBEEE(ERRAN
BLBEREFE - EHEFEAMARER
AR FEEGERZORNBE - SHRMAEE
HERRM TR A NRREE o

Achieved Rapid Growth in terms of Size and Profit

In 2013, the Group was able to achieve the sales target of
RMB11.1 billion, marking an increase of 57.2% as compared
with that of 2012, and to achieve an increase in revenue and
profit for the year of 203.2% and 175.4%, respectively, as
compared with that of the previous year. Due to the successful
listing and the rapid profit growth, the Group’s net gearing ratio
decreased to 93.2% as at 31 December 2013 from 116.2% as
at 31 December 2012.

Breakthrough Achieved in regard to Delivered Area and
Customer Satisfaction

In 2013, total gross floor area (“GFA”) delivered by the Group
amounted to approximately 1.152 million sq.m., representing
an increase of 199.8% over 2012. Besides, according to survey
data from an independent third party, approximately 81.0%
of the property purchasers were satisfied with our property
management services, in line with the benchmark level of the
industry. Overall strength of the Group reached a higher level.

Benefited from our clear development strategies and efficient
execution ability, the Group strived to lead the above
achievements.

The Group adhered to the strategy of deepening its regional
footholds. We had our investments concentrated in cities that
the Group has entered and had our major resources focused
in Guangdong, an active and prosperous market in PRC.
Currently, the Group has become one of the largest real estate
enterprises in Guangdong in terms of contracted sales. As at
31 December 2013, the Group possessed a land reserve of
approximately 8.17 million sq.m.

The Group adhered to prudent investment strategies. We
managed to meet the expected earning targets by utilizing
diversified methods of land acquisition at low cost. In
particular, through active participations in urban redevelopment
projects at early stages, we have not only obtained sufficient
land reserves at a competitive cost, but also become one of the
major beneficiaries of urban redevelopment.

The Group adhered to consumer-focused strategies. We
focused on our core target customer group, consumers
who were mainly first-time home buyers and first-time living
standard improvers. Our sales were firmly guaranteed as these
consumers’ income rose up and eagerness for a better living
standard lit up.

B ERRAMR AT Times Property Holdings Limited 2013%E % Annual Report 2013
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The Group adhered to effectively managed operation strategies
with higher turnover rate. Under the perfect operation control
system and with the support of the industry-leading information
system technology platform, we realized a comprehensive
management in the entire project cycle from site selection
to property delivery, ensuring that we are able to improve
efficiency of project development with sustained product
quality and achieving rapid growth in terms of business scale.

3. OUTLOOK FOR YEAR 2014

Looking forward to the coming year, we believe that,
following the gradually increased efforts of the government
in implementing reformation policies, the continuing process
of new urbanization and the rising income of the mass, the
Chinese economy will maintain steady growth continuously.
Under these circumstances, we believe the overall real estate
industry will remain a satisfying growth.

The outstanding sales performances in Year 2013 have brought
healthy cash flows to the Group and facilitate us in a good
position to support the deepening of our footholds in existing
markets and the acquisitions of more land reserves with good
quality.

The Group will continue to adhere to the strategies of focusing
on selected regions, residential business and customers with
robust demands and improvement-oriented demands, and
to achieve sustainable growth in size in such way with high
turnover rate and high sell-through rate.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

For fifteen years since the foundation of Times Property,
“empowering more people to live with a lifestyle they are
seeking for” has been the Company’s persistent mission, and
also the spirit and value for which the Company survives.

During the fifteen years, we saw major and minor fluctuations
across the industry as well as the market. We wouldn’t be
here today without the Group’s persistence in its mission, and
support from all levels.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my appreciation
to all purchasers of our projects, all employees, business
partners, newly-added cornerstone investors and public
investors of Times Property for their support to and trust in us.

B AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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Looking ahead, Times Property will stay adhered to its mission
of “empowering more people to live with a lifestyle they are
seeking for”, and realize the next leap-forward growth together
with our shareholders (the “Shareholders”). Let’s set off for
the new journey at the new starting point!

KR BRUEBEEIA[ZEFEZAETRE Looking ahead, Times Property will stay adhered to its mission

TWAEE ] NEs  EERERMEFERT —K of “empowering more people to live with a lifestyle they are

BREXMER - £ L AEFTHIE seeking for”, and realize the next leap-forward growth together

2 with our shareholders. Let's set off for the new journey at the
new starting point!

EFeTE HITEFERTHAZR Shum Chiu Hung
=8 Chairman of the Board, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer

—E-—NUF-/F=+H 20 February 2014

B E R AR A S Times Property Holdings Limited 2013FE %% Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December
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2010 2011 2012 2013
ARETFIT AREFT ARETT AR¥Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 1,547,206 2,466,811 3,197,142 9,694,735
EF Gross Profit 390,837 685,554 908,958 2,340,024
RRE B AEGEFE Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 165,347 247,169 362,916 987,022
BEBETE Total Assets 10,207,873 15,767,424 22,085,608 24,839,778
BE®H Total Liabilities 8,090,006 12,916,387 18,879,495 20,831,357
A REVENUE
WA Z—ZZE——FMWARKE3,197.18&8 T Lt Our revenue increased by 203.2% from RMB3,197.1 million
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BT HAEHERZE»BZ2RABARE
9,443 3B &L ' HBEIWAI7.4% °

EF

FFAR —_ZE——FHAREI.08E T L
FH157.4%% —F —=ZF W AR ¥2340.08
B HPEMERES»HA2ENABARE
2243388 T 15%&%%%95.9%

RARERARMGERE
ARREEAEEEFBR =T

#3362 9E BT EF172.0%E — T —
E#987 0B E T °

—ZFEHNAR
=FHA

2013 FE 3k Annual Report 2013

in 2012 to RMB9,694.7 million in 2013, with the property
development segment contributed RMB9,443.3 million or
97.4% to the total revenue.

GROSS PROFIT

QOur gross profit increased by 157.4% from RMB909.0 million
in year 2012 to RMB2,340.0 million in year 2013, with the
property development segment contributed RMB2,243.3 million
or 95.9% to the total gross profit.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by

172.0% from RMB362.9 million in 2012 to RMB987.0 million
in 2013.

B AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
a total revenue of RMB9,694.7 million, representing an
increase of 203.2% when compared with that of the year
ended 31 December 2012. Profit for the year amounted to
RMB973.9 million, representing an increase of 175.4% when
compared with 2012. The net profit for the year ended 31
December 2013, excluding change in fair values of investment
properties, net of deferred tax increased to RMB942.4 million,
representing an increase of 247.6% when compared with that
of year 2012. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to RMB987.0 million, representing an increase of
172.0% as compared to that in 2012. Basic earnings per share
were RMB75 cents (2012: RMB28 cents).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB10.94 cents per share.

Property Development

The Group has established an extensive foothold in Guangdong
Province and brought successful product to Changsha of
Hunan Province. During year 2013, the Group had in total
22 projects on various stages, including 21 projects in
major cities of Guangdong Province, namely, Guangzhou,
Foshan, Zhongshan, Zhuhai and Qingyuan, and 1 project in
Changsha, Hunan Province. For the year ended 31 December
2013, although the PRC Central Government and the local
governments introduced various measures to regulate the
property market, with projects situated in prime locations
delivered with high construction quality, the Group still
managed to accomplish expected contracted sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s contracted
sales™ amounted to approximately RMB11.1 billion with total
GFA of approximately 1,010,371 sqg.m.. The Group focuses
in its projects on peripheral facilities, seeking to enhance
customers’ experience in art and to fulfill needs of the middle
to upper class households. The table below illustrates the
contracted sales achieved by the Group by region for the year
ended 31 December 2013:

Note 1:  Contracted sales is summarised based on sale and purchase
agreements and purchase confirmation agreements.
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Available for
sale project Contracted Contracted Contracted
& Region numbers sales area sales amount sales amount

(FHK) (AEEEHHT)
(sq.m.)  (RMB million) (%)
=E0 Guangzhou 6 259,702 5,028.8 45%
o %= Zhuhai 5 238,492 2,088.9 20%
1L Foshan 4 231,564 2,026.9 18%
== Tl Zhongshan 2 135,632 1,055.0 10%
2 Changsha 1 99,449 598.1 5%
g Qingyuan 1 45,532 258.2 2%
st Total 19 1,010,371 11,055.9 100%
BRHE

Contracted sales

E M Guangzhou

R# Zhuhai

f#11 Foshan

f 1l Zhongshan
mm £ Changsha

JBIE Qingyuan
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Property Portfolio Summary

As of 31 December 2013, we had completed projects with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 1.2 million sg.m., projects
under development with an aggregate GFA of approximately
3.2 million sg.m., and projects for future development with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 4.8 million sq.m., respectively.

The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of our
property portfolio by planned use under various stages of
development as of 31 December 2013:

2%T B BFEARRK

EEEE EEEE HREXEE

GFA Held

GFA Under For Future

srEI A®EY Planned Use® Completed GFA Development Development

(FHK) (FFHK) (FF72K)

(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sqg.m.)

£= Residential 935,950 2,450,069 4,596,721

S Commercial 41,127 174,894 80,299

(E2=Rvi Car park 47,338 219,959 132,613

i E@ Ancillary® 150,238 408,352 77,304

BB EEE Total GFA 1,174,653 3,253,274 4,886,937

EhAEESERE® Total attributable GFA® 1,173,797 3,214,733 4,849,219
btat - Notes:

(1) LXREEAUHERTAHEZEER -AJHEEEZER
BMIBESAT MENEFEUMRENEZERHE - T
HHEREARIZEEREREGZRERR -

(2) IEE]2RMFEREET BHEXEECAINAD
BHM ERM TR E AKRERE - AEEI AR
ZOEEEEE LT ARA -

(3) TRGEL2EEBE] EERBEASEEHBRETNE
B MAAKBERENEEERERND -

(1)  The table above includes saleable GFA and non-saleable GFA. GFA for
residential, commercial and car park use consists mostly of saleable GFA.
GFA for ancillary use consists mostly of non-saleable GFA.

(2)  “Ancillary” comprises above-ground and underground ancillary facilities,
which are non-saleable and for purposes other than residential use,
commercial use or car park use. The Group did not generate any revenue
from this GFA.

(3) “Total attributable GFA” comprises the portion of the total GFA that is
attributable to the Group, based on the Group’s effective interest in the
relevant project.
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Portfolio of Property Development Projects

The table below is a summary of the portfolio of property
development projects as of 31 December 2013,

BAI Bad
Completed Under development
mfHE Z
R/ agg agg BE  HttEE agg Bk A g
&R BEER BIRIAH HEER HE? HE?  mEEe HE EEY BEEEY  EEERC ER"
Actual/ GFA GFA held
Expected Site Total Total available Other Total  Saleable for future ~ Ownership
Project Project type completion dates area GFA@ GFA@  for sale® GFA® GFA@ GFA®  development® interest”
(Frx)  (Frx)  (Frx) (R (FFK) (FFK) (EFK) (Frx)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BN
Guangzhou
BRINE EEREE —F-Zf% 92,123 264,965 85,590 - - 148102 133164 31,273 99
Times Bund Residential and “E-nf
commercial 2013-2015
KREE i) H ) 354,156 585,585 208,662 58%9 2360 376923 346,777 - 100
Ocean Times Residential and “E-1F
commercial 2011-2015
B o TN fFEREE ZE-mE 30965 123531 - - - 123531 96,753 - 70
Times Peanut Il Residential and 2014
commercial
B (M) FEREE —E-PEZE 60238 277,334 - - - 27733 230225 - 100
Times King City (Guangzhou) ~ Residential and “E-nf
commercial 2014-2015
BMEAZE L - 3,305 - - - - - - - o
(RERER) Industrial®
Guangzhou Tianhe Project
(Pige Factory Project)
ENAGEE T#09 - 45579 - - - - - - - 70
(BhABEER) Industrial®
Guangzhou Tiansi Project
(Qingchu Shiliu Gang
Project)
ENEEREHER LEREE “Z-1f 17,480 74813 - - - - - 74,813 50
Guangzhou Wuyang Paint Apartmentand 2015
Factory Project commercial
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BT Ban
Completed Under development
e BERR
R/ ey it £ BE  HtEE agg IHE R figiE
%R BRER BHRIAH HEEE HE? HE? HEO HEe EEY BEEEY  EEERO &
Actual/ GFA GFA held
Expected Site Total Total available Other Total  Saleable for future  Ownership
Project Project type completion dates area GFA@ GFA®  for sale® GFA® GFA® GFA®  development® interest?
(Fik)  (F5k)  (F5k)  (F5k)  (F5R) (F5R) (FR) (F54)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
1l
Foshan
BRE -2/ EEREE —ZZ-3F%F 505,776 1134690 49519 12,200 4882 217741 212872 421,754 100
Times City Phase | to VI Residential and Z5tF
commercial 2010-2017
BT ARRIER EEREE E-F 12,860 32,148 - - - - - 32,148 100
(BfH5) Residential and 2016
Foshan Stainless Steel Factory — commercial
Project (phase VII
of Times City)
KREE (fL) EEREE “E-QREZE 379% 219917 - - - 219917 179,942 - 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan)  Residential and “E-1F
commercial 2014-2015
RILEEER EEREE “I-1fF 34308 115,236 - - - - - 115,236 100
Foshan Fengrui Project Residential and 2015
commercial
Bl
Zhongshan
BRI (L) frEREE —E-=F% 110074 572,778 206,404 - - 366374 312,667 - 100
Times King City (Zhongshan)  Residential and “E-hE
commercial 2013-2015
PIAKIER frEREE —T-nf 46,667 116,666 - - - - - 116,666 100
Zhongshan Shigi Project Residential and 2015
commercial
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Completed Under development
HEE BERR
BB/ g agg BE  HttEE agg THE RS fiEE
&R EEEY BHRIAH HEERE H&e HEe L G HES HEY BEEEO  BEEEC &
Actual/ GFA GFA held
Expected Site Total Total available Other Total  Saleable for future  Ownership
Project Project type completion dates area GFA® GFA®  for sale® GFA® GFA® GFA®  development® interest™
(Frw)  (FrK)  (Frx) (FERN) (Frk)  (Fpk)  (Frr) (F5K)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
%
Zhuhai
KESEER EThEZ ) 51,003 154,224 63,541 - - 90,683 89,784 - 100
(BfS o B mE) Residential and —E-mE
Zhuhai Jingrun Project (phase  commercial 2013-2014
4 of Times Eolia City)
KETHEE frEREE ZE-1F 81393 262,373 - - - 202373 211,762 - 100
Zhuhai Pingsha Project Residential and 2015
commercial
EHEER FERER “5-1fF 52,950 171,041 - - - 171041 145874 - 100
(BRI (558) %)  Residentialand 2015
Zhuhai Guoji Project commercial
(phase 1 of Times King City
(Zhuhai))
KERERER i) ZT-1EE 198204 396,400 - - - - - 396,400 100
(BRI (K8) = =) Residential and e e
Zhuhai Baijiao Project commercial 2016-2017
(phase 2 and 3 of
Times King City (Zhuhai))
HEREIER FERER —E-7E2 119,169 297,93 - - - - - 297,923 100
Zhuhai Friendship River Residential and “E-tE
Project commercial 2016-2017
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BT Ban
Completed Under development
e BERR
.4 g aEs BE  HtEE agg THE R figiE
&R BRER BHRIAH HEER H&e [ HEew HEs HEY BEEERO  BEEEC &
Actual/ GFA GFA held
Expected Site Total Total available Other Total  Saleable for future  Ownership
Project Project type completion dates area GFA@ GFA®  for sale® GFA® GFA® GFA®  development® interest?
(Frk)  (Fp&) (FrK)  (Fpk)  (Fpk)  (BrK)  (F5K) (F7x)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BE
Qingyuan
BE (5%) EThEE —E-QmEZE 204,458 832,190 - - - 45898 422617 373,205 100
Times King City (Qingyuan) ~ Residential and “E-)\F
commercial 2014-2018
BEAKER i) RE 551,087 1,102,173 - - - 37391 367,391 734,782 100
Fogang Shilian Project Residential and ~ Pending
commercial
BEEERER BT e 477,020 953,800 - - - - - 953,800 100
Fogang Huanghua Lake Residential and ~ Pending
Project commercial
Changsha
BRI (RY) i) o ) 460,138 1,627,077 115261 - - 172879 166,711 1,338,937 100
Times King City (Changsha)  Residential and —Z-%%
commercial 2013-2020
@t 3,577,969 9,314,864 1,174,653 18,099 7,242 3,253,274 2,916,539 4,886,937
Total
ELEREERE 3,545,345 9,237,749 1,173,797 18,099 7,242 3,214,733 2,886,181 4,849,219

Total attributable GFA"Y
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(8)

(9)
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ERBE(OWAKECEBGER LERE - Bm AR
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BRIZAIFIELRTIERAEDAHNET - &
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[t EREERE] TEERMESRCRTHAR
FHERBRPREEMRSZ (TRHRESERHANEEMER
BRETXNTERFRE) mEEEESD -

[Hit2EEE | R MESHERTIHBETRER
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(A EREmE] R IHERRAENEERBE] T)
B =R e Lol B S I

[H AR DERAREESEE AANERAA
RS -
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BRETKREERE -
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Notes:

(1)

4)

(10)

The table above includes properties for which (i) the Group has obtained
the relevant land use rights certificate(s), but have not obtained the
requisite construction permits or (ii) the Group has signed a land grant
contract with the relevant government authority, but have not obtained
the land use rights certificate(s). The figures for total GFA and saleable
are based on figures provided in the relevant governmental documents,
such as the property ownership certificate, the construction work planning
permit, the pre-sale permit, the construction land planning permit or the
land use rights certificate. The categories of information are based on our
internal records.

“Total GFA” is based on figures stated in the surveying reports, planning
permit for construction works or completion certificates by relevant
government departments. It includes the attributable value of amenities.

Certain completed projects have no GFA available for sale by the Group as
all saleable GFA have been sold, pre-sold or rented out.

“GFA available for sale” does not include the portion of GFA for ancillary
use, which is not available for sale and has yet to be delivered to
purchasers of properties in the relevant property developments, of each of
the completed projects or phases of projects.

“Other GFA” comprises the portion of GFA for ancillary use, which is not
available for sale and has yet to be delivered to purchasers of properties in
each of the completed projects.

“Saleable GFA” and “GFA held for future development” are derived from
the Group’s internal records and estimates.

“Ownership interest” is based on the Group’s effective ownership interest
in the respective project companies.

We are in the process of converting the land use for Guangzhou Tianhe
Project from industrial use to residential and commercial use.

We are in the process of converting the land use for Guangzhou Tiansi
Project from industrial use to residential and commercial use.

“Total attributable GFA” comprises the portion of the total GFA that is
attributable to us, based on our effective interests in the relevant project.

B AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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BT HAEMBmELNR92,123F 5K
MEREMER264,965F F K o WLIEE R
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% o
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ERGEAREENTRERR] (FR
BR¥R) BMEMN [ HZXPFERE - KA
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2011 EEMN e XEBMLE — B L4
e

P,

Guangdong Province

Guangzhou
(1) Times Bund (#5145} %)

Times Bund is located in Panyu District (F&[&), Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province. Times Bund is a residential
development that comprises high-rise apartment
buildings and ancillary facilities such as a multi-function
clubhouse, an elementary school and a kindergarten. It
is one of our “Prosperity Series” properties developed
with the “Luxurious and Extraordinary” theme. The Group
commenced this project in July 2011 and expect to
complete construction of various phases of this project
from 2013 to 2015. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 92,123 sqg.m. with a total GFA of 264,965
sg.m.. This project is being developed by Guangzhou
Panyu Nanying Real Estate Co., Ltd.

The Group awarded the “2013 China Real Estate
Development Enterprise Classic Project Top 10” (2013
hEEMAERSMEMAIIEE1058) by China Real Estate
Research Association (B E#EH 7€), China Real
Estate Industry Association (F B =t & ¥ # €) and
China Real Estate Appraisal Center (¥ B 5= 2 A5 $
L)), the “2012 Guangzhou Real Estate Network Festival
Most Artistic Mansion Award” (2012 i B 48 4% 2% # fx
FE&ii5E K%) by Sohu Focus (FEINFEZH), the “Most
Anticipated Property Award — Times Bund” (& HifiE88
# — B ONEE) by Yangcheng Evening News (CEIERZR),
the “2011 China (South China) Best High-end Residence
— Times Bund” award (2011FFB(ER )SESHET —
B SMNEE) by Sina House, Baidu House (¥ R%4/E A 8 44
f&) and the “2011 Real Estate Brand List of “Influence
Guangzhou” — Most Artistic Community — Times Bund”
award (FZZEM2011HE MR : 20112 EMNex EE
fiTtt[® — BFCINEE) by Guangzhou Xinkuai Newspaper (&
PNFTER¥RAE) in December 2011.
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A o
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M) 18 A REFRIMERBEEN [2012
EMNSEFAGRAREESER - KR

(2) Ocean Times (A5 1L &

Ocean Times is located in Nansha District
(FY[&), Guangzhou, Guangdong Province. Ocean Times
is a residential development that comprises high-rise
apartment buildings, townhouses and ancillary facilities
such as community service centers and kindergartens.
It is one of our “Prosperity Series” properties developed
with the “Luxurious and Extraordinary” theme. The Group
commenced this project in April 2010 and expect to
complete construction of various phase of this project
from 2011 to 2015. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 354,156 sq.m. with a total GFA of 585,585
sg.m. This project is being developed by Guangzhou
Times Hongtai Investment Co., Ltd.

The Group awarded the “2012 Most Representative Real
Estate — Ocean Times” (2012 EHZARKMEEE- BR
&) by Sina House (¥TRZL/E) in December 2012, the
“Best Investment Properties — Ocean Times” (REREE
1% — BB EE) by Yangcheng Evening News (ZE3 % #R)
in February 2012, the “Most Investment Value Real Estate
— Ocean Times (Guangzhou)” award (R EIZEBEEE —
B EE(EM)) by Sohu Focus (AN 2L) in January
2012, and the “2012 Guangzhou Real Estate Network
Festival Best Seaview Real Estate — Ocean Times” (2012&
M ERG R RRETSER — KREE) by Sohu Focus
(M EE ).

2013 FE 3k Annual Report 2013
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JEH) RRZMERE (04 7 B 5K
) EREEERBIER o B e FEAIIA
[(FHEEK] ATE SRMABLELD

[RREIMEZ— - HRER-FT——F
T—AHRAI BHER_T-HFRT
H@mBERL/R30,965F 7K » FAREE
M8 /3123,531°F 5K o b 18 B IR B i /&
MAABEBEARAR (TEMRM]) FHHE -

(3)

Times Peanut Il (B 1 e 7E4£11)

Times Peanut Il is located in Baiyun District (HZ2[&), Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province. Times Peanut I, a project developed
under the “Urban Redevelopment” policy, is a residential
development that comprises high-rise apartment buildings,
commercial properties which are primarily used as retail
shops and extensive ancillary facilities such as a kindergarten
and a swimming pool. It is one of our “Growth Series”
properties developed with the “Fashionable and Dynamic”
theme. The Group commenced development of this project
in November 2012 and expect to complete construction in
2014. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
30,965 sg.m. with a total GFA of 123,531 sq.m. This project
is being developed by Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd
(“Guangzhou Tianlang”).

AN

TIMES KING CITY

(4) RS (EM)
RARER (BN UREREBMNTES
B = EHGEEERE BEDE
(BETERETEER) MEERE (102
STEMS &R 0) ARMEEHER
B o RARES (BM) RIS HER] RE
B RBRMBEOMEN KA WEZ
— WEARZZE-—=FXARI  EH
HEENETHER _T—NFE_FT—
RFERT - EAMBEIELF60,238F
FTAK - BEEMBER277,334F 5 K - it
HERNHERESEXEREBRAAM

(4)

Times King City (Guangzhou) (BB (E))
Times King City (Guangzhou) is located in
Panyu District (F&[&), Guangzhou, Guangdong Province.
Times King City (Guangzhou) is a residential development
and comprises high-rise apartment buildings, commercial
properties which are primarily used as retail shops and
ancillary facilities such as kindergarten and senior community
center. It is one of our “Blossom Series” properties developed
with the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The Group commenced
development of this project in June 2013 and expect to
complete construction of various phase of this projects
from 2014 to 2015. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 60,238 sg.m. with a total GFA of 277,334
sg.m.. This project is being developed by Guangdong
Guangchang Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
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(5)

Guangzhou Tianhe Project (Pige Factory Project) (&
MAEEE (KEBEE))

Guangzhou Tianhe Project is located in Baiyun
District (B2 [&), Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, with
an aggregate site area of approximately 34,325 sg.m.. This
project will be developed by Guangzhou Tianhe Construction
Material Co., Ltd. The Group are in the process of converting
the land use for Guangzhou Tianhe Project from industrial
use to residential and commercial use.

(6) BMXETER (BHAEEHELH)

BMREBEEUREREEMNT KR
MR EAEL) R45,579F F K - %A B #
HEMTRAYEERFRAABRE =
BEUCE | BURF3 - RSB IS EMKH
HEMT AR IXREERETKE
R e

(6)

Guangzhou Tiansi Project (Qingchu Shiliu Gang
Project ) (B/NAXHTE B (B4 A 18 EH))
Guangzhou Tiansi Project is located in Haizhu
District (# ¥k [&), Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
with an aggregate site area of approximately 45,579
sg.m.. This project will be developed by Guangzhou Tiansi
Property Management Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Tiansi Project
will be developed under the “Urban Redevelopment”
policy. The Group are in the process of converting the
land use for Guangzhou Tiansi Project from industrial use
to residential and commercial use.

(7) BN A F k5B E

BEMAFHERBUANEREEMNTASE
B R-HUASEEERAERTNEER
BHEE - EER_-_ZE—=F+—AF
I EHER-_ZT-—HFRIT - HAEMR
EEARL7,480F K BEEEBER
74,813F 75K o I8 B A d BN AR B
EEXBRAFME -

(7)

Guangzhou Wuyang Paint Factory Project (B 713
JHERE H )

Guangzhou Wuyang Paint Factory is located in Baiyun
District (BZ[&), Guangzhou, Guangdong Province. It is a
commercial development project that mainly comprises
high-rise apartment buildings. The Group commenced
development of this project in November 2013 and
expect to complete construction in 2015. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 17,480 sq.m. with a
total GFA of 74,813 sq.m.. This project is being developed
by Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun Asset Co., Ltd.
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Foshan
(1) Times City Phase | to VI (Bt —Z N 4f)

Times City is located in Sanshui District
(=7KI&), Foshan, Guangdong Province, and is one of
the largest property development projects in Foshan in
terms of GFA. Times City is a residential development
that comprises mid-rise apartment buildings, commercial
properties which are primarily used as retail shops and
extensive ancillary facilities such as a kindergarten,
clubhouse, swimming pool, tennis court, soccer field,
supermarket and a park. It is one of our “Blossom
Series” properties developed with the “Noble and
Elegant” theme. The Group commenced development
of this project in June 2008, completed construction of
certain phases of this project since 2010 and expect to
complete construction of other phases of this project
from time to time until 2017. It occupies an aggregate
site area of approximately 505,776 sq.m. with a total GFA
of 1,134,690 sg.m.. This project is being developed by
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

The Group received the “China New Vision of Real Estate
“City Landmark”” (9 B3 & ¥ 4R A 3l i 3 AR 1 iR SR 58)
from Sohu Focus (M £=2h) in January 2011.
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Foshan Stainless Steel Factory Project (phase VII of
Times City) (#8111~ # @ E 5 (FF L5+ 5F))

Foshan Stainless Steel Factory Project is located in Sanshui
District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, next to the phase
Il of Times City. Foshan Stainless Steel Factory Project
will be a residential development that comprises mid-rise
apartment buildings and commercial properties which are
primarily used as retail shops. It is one of our “Blossom
Series” properties developed with the “Noble and Elegant”
theme. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
12,860 sq.m. with a total GFA of 32,148 sq.m..

(3)
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(3)

Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan) (FFLZE(#11)))

Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan) is located in Chancheng District
(#8 ¥ [&), Foshan, Guangdong Province. Times Cloud
Atlas (Foshan) is a residential development and comprises
high-rise apartment buildings, commercial properties which
will be primarily used as retail shops and ancillary facilities
such as gym facility. It will be one of our “Growth Series”
properties developed with the “Fashionable and Dynamic”
theme. The Group commenced development of this project
in March 2013 and expect to complete construction of
various phases of this project from 2014 to 2015. It occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 37,996 sg.m. with a
total GFA of 219,917 sqg.m.. This project is being developed
by Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd.

(4)
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(4)

Foshan Fengrui Project (#1112 &5 H )

Foshan Fengrui Project is located in Nanhai District (/&
[&), Foshan, Guangdong Province. It will be a residential
development and is expected to comprise high-rise
apartment buildings and commercial properties which will be
primarily used as retail shops. It will be one of our “Blossom
Series” properties developed with the “Noble and Elegant”
theme. The Group expect to commence development of this
project in March 2014 and complete construction in 2015.
It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 34,308
sg.m. with a total GFA of 115,236 sq.m.. This project will be
developed by Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd.
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Zhongshan
(1) Times King City (Zhongshan) (F{L #8158 (F (1))

Times King City (Zhongshan) is located in Shaxi Town (/%
Z$8), Zhongshan, Guangdong Province. Times King City
(Zhongshan) is a residential development that comprises
high-rise apartment buildings, commercial properties
and extensive ancillary facilities such as a clubhouse and
swimming pool. It is one of our “Blossom Series” properties
developed with the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The
Group commenced this project in June 2011, completed
construction of certain phases of this project since 2013
and expect to complete construction of the phases of
this project from time to time until 2015. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 110,074 sq.m. with a
total GFA of 572,778 sq.m.. This project is being developed
by Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(2)

AU IR H
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L YR_T—RAFRIT HEMR
&4 R46,667F T K BEEEMER
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(2) Zhongshan Shiqgi Project (/1A UETEH)

Zhongshan Shigi Project is located in Shigi District (fI5[&),
Zhongshan, Guangdong Province. Zhongshan Shigi Project
is a residential development that is to comprises high-rise
apartment buildings and commercial properties which will
be primarily used as retail shops. It is one of our “Growth
Series” properties developed with the “Fashionable
and Dynamic” theme. The Group expect to commence
development of this project in March 2014 and complete
construction in 2015. This project occupies an aggregate
site area of approximately 46,667 sq.m. with a total GFA
of 116,666 sqg.m.. This project will be developed by
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.
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Zhuhai
(1) Zhuhai Jingrun Project (phase 4 of Times Eolia

City) (BEREEE (FF1C o 1L/ 0H))

Zhuhai Jingrun Project is located in Jinwan District
(£ & [@), Zhuhai, Guangdong Province. Zhuhai Jingrun
Project is a residential development and comprises
high-rise apartment buildings and commercial properties
which will be primarily used as retail shops and ancillary
facilities such as a clubhouse and kindergarten. It will be
one of our “Blossom Series” properties developed with
the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The Group commenced
development of this project in August 2011, completed
construction of certain phases of this project since 2013
and expect to complete construction of other phases of
this project from time to time until 2014. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 51,003 sg.m. with a
total GFA of 154,224 sq.m.. This project is being developed
by Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
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(2)

Zhuhai Pingsha Project (¥%&-FXIEH)

Zhuhai Pingsha Project is located in Pingsha Town (%
$8), Zhuhai, Guangdong Province. Zhuhai Pingsha Project
is a residential development and comprises high-rise
apartment buildings, commercial properties that will be
primarily used as retail shops and ancillary facilities such
as a kindergarten and swimming pool. It will be one of our
“Blossom Series” properties developed with the “Noble
and Elegant” theme. The Group commenced this project
in March 2013 and expect to complete construction in
2015. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
81,393 sg.m. with a total GFA of 262,373 sg.m.. This
project is being developed by Zhuhai Shenghui Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

(3) HRAEEIREH (FFRER (5AE) —H)

REEEBEEUNERAKEM MR
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(3)

Zhuhai Guoji Project (phase 1 of Times King City
(Zhuhai)) (H&EIZIE B (65 (A5 (2K 4) — A1)
Zhuhai Guoji Project is located in Dou Men District
(=2}F9I®), Zhuhai, Guangdong Province. Zhuhai Guoji
Project is a residential development and comprises high-rise
apartment buildings, commercial properties which will be
primarily used as retail shops and ancillary facilities such as
a clubhouse. It will be one of our “Blossom Series” properties
developed with the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The Group
commenced development of this project in May 2013 and
expect to complete construction in 2015. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 52,950 sg.m. with a
total GFA of 171,041 sq.m.. This project is being developed
by Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
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(4)

Zhuhai Baijiao Project (phase 2 and 3 of Times
King City (Zhuhai)) (¥ &8 B (b5 (185 (F
)=~ =Hj))

Zhuhai Baijiao Project is located in Dou Men District
(2}PF9&), Zhuhai, Guangdong Province. Zhuhai Baijiao
Project will be a residential development and is expected
to comprise high-rise apartment buildings, commercial
properties which will be primarily used as retail shops.
It will be one of our “Blossom Series” properties
developed with the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The
Group commenced development of this project in March
2014 and complete construction of various phases of this
project from 2016 to 2017. It occupies an aggregate site
area of approximately 198,204 sqg.m. with a total GFA of
396,400 sg.m.. This project will be developed by Zhuhai
Jiayu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
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(5) k&K HHEH (5) Zhuhai Friendship River Project (%8 5 7 H)
KEREBITEBEMRERE K E MM Zhuhai Friendship River Project is located in Doumen
% 2 EEASEEBEEAE  BE District (3}F5[&), Zhuhai, Guangdong Province. Zhuhai
ME(KRIZAESEERH) ARNE=E Friendship River Project will be a residential development
FEIEE - B RFETIEE N [ =& E ] that is expected to comprise high-rise apartment buildings
ABEE RRMABLELSNRAE]|Y and commercial properties which will be primarily used as
¥z WEBBEHER-_FT—NUFNLAH retail shops. It is one of our “Blossom Series” properties
ITERZE—ARFEZE—+FTHUILIE developed with the “Noble and Elegant” theme. The
BEmeETH HEMEEELNARL19,169 Group expect to commence development of this project
FHEOK - BEEEER297,923F 5K in September 2014 and complete construction of various
HEESHKSTREFHERZEERER phases of this project from 2016 to 2017. It occupies an
Al E - aggregate site area of approximately 119,169 sq.m. with a

total GFA of 297,923 sq.m.. This project will be developed
by Zhuhai Jinrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
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Qingyuan

(1)

Times King City (Qingyuan) (# £#E1 (& i&))
Times King City (Qingyuan) is located in Qingcheng
District (/&¥[&), Qingyuan, Guangdong Province. Times
King City (Qingyuan) will be an integrated development
that will comprise high-rise residential apartment buildings,
commercial properties which will be used as retail shops,
and extensive ancillary facilities such as clubhouses,
primary school and kindergarten. It will be one of our
“Blossom Series” properties developed with the “Noble
and Elegant” theme. The Group commenced this project in
April 2013 and expect to complete construction of various
phases of this project from 2014 to 2018. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 204,458 sq.m. with a
total GFA of 832,190 sg.m.. This project is being developed
by Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd.
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(2)

Fogang Shilian Project (/i £ 578 H )

Fogang Shilian Project is located in Shijiaozhen (f A
$8), Fogang, Qingyuan, Guangdong Province. Fogang
Shilian Project will be a residential development and is
expected to comprise high-rise apartment buildings, mid-
rise apartment buildings, low-rise apartment buildings and
commercial properties which are primarily used as retail
shops. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
551,087 sq.m.. with a total GFA of 1,102,173 sq.m.. This
project is being developed by Fogang Times Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
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(3)

Fogang Huanghua Lake Project (17 & /2478 H )
Fogang Huanghua Lake Project is located in Tangtang Town
(Z¥E3H), Fogang, Qingyuan, Guangdong Province. Fogang
Huanghua Lake Project will be a residential development
and is expected to comprise high-rise apartment buildings,
mid-rise apartment buildings, low-rise apartment buildings
and commercial properties which are primarily used
as retail shops. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 477,020 sg.m.. with a total GFA of 953,800
sg.m.. This project will be developed by Fogang Zhongyi
Asset Development Limited Liability Company.
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Hunan Province

Changsha

Times King City (Changsha) (518 %(K2))

Times King City (Changsha) is located in Wangcheng District (S24[&),
Changsha, Hunan Province. Times King City (Changsha) is an
integrated residential development that comprises high-rise
apartment buildings, commercial properties which will be
primarily used as retail shops and extensive ancillary facilities
such as clubhouses and kindergartens. It is one of our
“Blossom Series” properties developed with the “Noble and
Elegant” theme. The Group commenced this project in June
2011, completed construction of certain phases of this project
since 2013 and expect to complete construction of other
phases of this projects from time to time until 2020. It occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 460,138 sg.m. with a
total GFA of 1,627,077 sq.m.. This project is being developed
by Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

i
Changsha
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Properties for Leasing and Sub-leasing

As at 31 December 2013, the Group held a GFA of
approximately 47,068 sg.m. and 249 car parking spaces
at Times Property Center for rental purposes and the GFA
for Guangzhou Zhide Commercial Management Co., Ltd.
(the “Guangzhou Zhide”) and its subsidiary for sub-leasing
purposes was approximately 206,783 sg.m.. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s rental income
amounted to RMB154.4 million, contributing to 1.6% of the
total turnover.

Property Management Services

Property management fee income represents revenue
generated from property management services provided
in relation to delivered properties. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group provided property management
services for 30 project phases. Our revenue from property
management services increased from RMB67.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB97.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. This increase was primarily due to
the increase in the number of project phases that we managed
with the delivery of the properties we made in year 2013.
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+ i S Land Reserves
AEERZEREEGHELHHE  BEZ The Group continued to expand its land reserves through

HEBFARBE  —EXREEE - —RFAE various channels, including participations in public land
A1 URIEE RRIME - auctions, urban redevelopment projects, primary development,

cooperation, and through acquisition of project companies.

Hz—Z—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE &E& For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired

BREM 28 Bl EhILBARNEDLE - six parcels of land in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Foshan and
THRKABEN R ARK2 142888 T Zhongshan, the aggregating land acquisition cost amounted

BE¥YFAREHGLIHEAEANBEEETRARE to approximately RMB2,142.8 million, the average land
2,653 AEERELEEREATEEENE acquisition cost per sq.m. was approximately RMB2,653

REEEEE LREL A807,827FF K per sq.m.. The planned GFA at maximum allowed plot ratios
attributable to the Group aggregated would be approximately
807,827 sq.m..
BENRS
ATFRER
ol
Wi A 7 1t B PEfh g WhBRHEE BEEE TR
Attributable GFA
Month of Attributable per maximum
acquisition Location interest Site area allowed plot ratio Land cost
FIAK FHK (ANE¥EET)
(%) sq.m. sg.m. (RMB in million)
—E-=FtHA G
July 2013 Foshan 100 34,308 115,236 284.5
“E-=F+ZRH B
December 2013 Foshan 100 12,860 32,148 67.5
—E-=%+—-H HU
November 2013 Zhongshan 100 46,667 116,666 200.0
“E-=FTZH KB
December 2013 Zhuhai 100 119,169 297,923 1,004.0
—E-=%F+tH BM
July 2013 Guangzhou 50 17,480 74,813 4457
—T-=%-H 79!
January 2013 Zhuhai 100 52,950 171,041 141.1
283,434 807,827 2,142.8
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total land reserves
of approximately 8.17 million sq.m., which the Group believes
will be sufficient to support the Group’s development need in
the next three to five years. The table below set forth detailed
information of land reserves in major cities the Group entered:

E3] FHERAE T TR

i & Region Reserves Unit cost/sq.m.
(FFK)
(sq.m.)
= Guangzhou 1,040,242 2,420
G Foshan 1,023,872 1,248
el Zhongshan 483,040 1,326
b2 7! Zhuhai 1,218,420 1,854
BIR Qingyuan 2,888,163 249
=D Changsha 1,511,815 773
et Total 8,165,552 1,051
A= Outlook

“E-=F PRUAEMT BT L ZEAE
BHHEEK  ZEHREOIELS BRELEE
BEITERHRTEMEE  BHRNHELS
BARTEB -] BRNETTRATSH
Ko AEEDHTERFEMERNA R KD %
B YHETEFPBREKARBRY - KK A&EHE
BEEANRBRFIORE  EABESEREN
M RIE ML G RREBRECIEEE
MRIOEMN > BPFLEBERESTRARRE
MEZFTN - BREBERERERNERE -

Bt ¥ [

PN

AEBMBAFTZEHDERR VEBREME
HAEMEEERBELE BHER_T—ZF
HOUR AAG L D BI 40 B97.4% ~ 1.6% K% 1.0% °
rEEBUWABBEE TS ——F+_A=+—
BIEEEMARE3 197.18ETENERE
TE-ZHE+ A=+ HILFEFENARE
9,694.7HB T EIARG,497.6EH B LK
203.2% c WA EBREYWEHE R AL
hn e

In 2013, the Central Government and local governments
introduced various tightening measures for the property
market to rein in speculative activities. Despite these measures
inflicted short-term repercussions in the industry, the Group
remains optimistic about the prospect of the property market
in China and believes the customer demand will remain strong.
Deepening of the urbanization policy and easing of the “single
child policy” will also stimulate the market demand. In the
future, the Group aims to maximize return for the Shareholders
through competitive costing, accumulation of land reserves in
areas with high growth potential, strengthening our “Life Stylist”
positioning to bring modern and artistic lifestyles to middle to
upper class households.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily generated from property
development, property leasing and sub-leasing and property
management services, which contributed about 97.4%, 1.6%
and 1.0% respectively of the revenue of year 2013. The
Group’s revenue increased by RMB6,497.6 million, or 203.2%,
to RMB9,694.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
from RMB3,197.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. This increase was primarily attributable to an increase in
revenue from the sale of properties.
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The table below sets forth our revenue by operating segments

AR - for the years indicated:
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2013 2012
AR¥EET AR EHE T
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Y SHE WA Sale of properties 9,443.3 97.4 3,090.8 96.7
HEUWA Rental income 154.4 1.6 38.4 1.2
MEEEERA Management fee income 97.0 1.0 67.9 2.1
9,694.7 100.0 3,197.1 100.0
MEERE Property development
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The Group’s revenue from sales of properties increased by
RMB6,352.5 million, or 205.5%, to RMB9,443.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB3,090.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in the total delivered GFA from
approximately 384,348 sq.m. for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately 1,152,208 sq.m. for the year ended 31
December 2013. The projects that contributed substantially
to the Group’s revenue for 2013 mainly include Times Bund
(Guangzhou), Ocean Times (Guangzhou), Times Sweet House
(Jinshazhou), Times King City (Zengcheng), Times City
(Foshan), Times King City (Zhongshan) and Times Eolia City
(Zhuhai).

Property leasing and sub-leasing

The Group’s gross rental income increased by RMB116.0
million, or 301.9%, to RMB154.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from RMB38.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2012. This increase was primarily due to the fact
that we acquired Guangzhou Zhide in December 2012 and
engaged in sub-leasing business through Guangzhou Zhide
and its subsidiaries, which recorded rental income amounted
to approximately RMB114.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services
increased by RMB29.1 million, or 42.8%, to RMB97.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB67.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. This increase was
primarily due to the increase in the number of project phases
that we managed with the delivery of the properties we made
in year 2013.
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Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by RMB5,066.5 million,
or 221.4%, to RMB7,354.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from RMB2,288.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. This increase was primarily attributable to
an increase in the total GFA of properties delivered. The table
below sets forth a breakdown of our cost of sale for the periods

Y 35 & K ZNBR A4 indicated:
BE+-A=1+—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=F —E-—fF
2013 2012
(AR#Fi) (ARETFT)
(RMB in (RMB in
thousands) (%) thousands) (%)
B HEMERAR Cost of properties sold
+ 3 U BE B AR Land acquisition costs 1,339,222 18.2 420,479 18.4
AR Construction costs 5,468,332 74.4 1,649,003 72.1
BRCBEKA Capitalised finance
costs 392,421 5.3 145,124 6.3
N Subtotal 7,199,975 97.9 2,214,606 96.8
RIREERE GFA delivered 1,152,208 384,348
F7K sq.m. FHK sg.m.
WEME e MEMESES Direct operating
BEREZERY expenses (including
(REEERRERY) repairs and
maintenance) arising
from rental-earning
properties 73,596 1.0 4,084 0.2
REMEEERBHHAMKA Cost of property
management
services provided 81,140 1.1 69,494 3.0
mEt Total 7,354,711 100.0 2,288,184 100.0
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Gross profit

As a result of above, the Group’s gross profit increased by
RMB1,431.1 million, or 157.4%, to RMB2,340.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB909.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group’s gross profit margin decreased
to 24.1% from 28.4% for the year ended 31 December 2012.
This decrease was primarily due to the fact that projects with
lower gross profit margin, such as Times King City (Changsha),
Times King City (Zhongshan) and Times Bund, took up a larger
proportion of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2013 as compared to that of 2012. It is our marketing strategy
to seize the market share by offering lower price for new
market regions and new projects and then gradually increase
the price in future. We target to achieve higher gross profit
margin afterwards.

Other income and gains

The Group had other income and gains of RMB78.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013, when compared with that
of RMB138.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in fair value
gains on Times Property Center in year 2013 compared with
that of year 2012, which was in line with slightly increase in
the capital value of commercial properties nearby during year
2013.

Selling and marketing costs

The Group’s selling and marketing costs increased by
RMB206.9 million, or 101.3%, to RMB411.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB204.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012. This increase was attributable
to higher advertising, staff and other promotional costs incurred
in our pre-sale activities for a larger number of our projects
and the fact that we commenced pre-sales in new geographic
markets, for example, in relation to Times King City (Qingyuan),
which was our first property project in Qingyuan during 2013.
As a result, more sales, marketing activities incurred and sales
commission paid in relation to the higher GFA we delivered
also increased.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by RMB140.5
million, or 96.9%, to RMB285.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from RMB145.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. This increase was primarily due to the
expansion of business in year 2013 and the commencement
of our sub-leasing business after the acquisition of Guangzhou
Zhide in December 2012, which led to an increase in staff
costs, office expenses, improvement cost amortisation and
rental expenses for properties to be sub-leased. The Group also
incurred higher legal and professional fee in 2013 in relation to
our initial public offering in December 2013.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by RMB17.9 million, or
52.0%, to RMB16.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 from RMB34.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease of
donation and sponsorship made by the Group during year
2013 as compared to 2012.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB45.6 million, or
108.6%, to RMB87.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 from RMB42.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. This increase was primarily due to the increase in
bank and other borrowings in 2013 in relation to the Group’s
expanding property development activities.

Share of profits and losses of associates

The Group’s share of profits and losses of associates
significantly increased to RMB2.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 from RMB5,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012. The increase was arisen from the share of
profit of Guangzhou Baiyun Heyintaifu Micro-credit Co. Ltd., an
associate in which the Group has a 20% equity interest.
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Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by RMB378.4
million, or 141.3%, to RMB646.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 from RMB267.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. This increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in the profit before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The Group’s effective income tax
rate decreased to 40.0% for the year ended 31 December
2013 from 43.0% for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The decrease was primarily due to the lower average land
appreciation tax (“LAT”) rates in 2013 as compared to 2012
since projects with low gross profits were delivered more than
2012 in terms of proportion to the total projects delivered
during the respective years.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit increased by
RMB620.3 million, or 175.4%, to RMB973.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB353.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The Group’s net profit margin
decreased to 10.1% for the year ended 31 December 2013
from 11.1% for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded loss attributable
to non-controlling shareholders of RMB13.1 million, which
increased by about RMB3.8 million as compared to the loss
of RMB9.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The increase in losses was primarily due to the fact that
Guangzhou Tianlang, which engaged in property development,
was still under the stage of development and pre-sale and its
revenue then has not yet been recognised, and Guangzhou
Guangdechang Commercial Management Services Co., Ltd,
which engaged in sub-leasing operation, was still under
construction and has not yet commenced operation.

Profit attributable to owners of our Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners of
the Company increased by RMB624.1 million, or 172.0%, to
RMB987.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from
RMB362.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying balance of the Group’s
cash and bank deposits was approximately RMB3,667.6 million
(31 December 2012: RMB1,833.7 million), representing an
increase of 100.0% when compared with that of 31 December
2012. Under relevant PRC laws and regulations, some of the
Group’s projects companies are required to place a certain
amount of pre-sale proceeds in designated bank accounts as
guarantee deposits for construction of the relevant properties.
These guarantee deposits may only be used for payments to
construction contractors in the project development processes
and for other construction-related payments, such as purchase
of materials. The remaining guarantee deposits are released
when certificates of completion for the relevant properties
have been obtained. In addition, a portion of the Group’s
bank deposits represented loan proceeds in the monitoring
accounts designated by the banks, in which case the use of
the restricted bank deposits, subject to the banks’ approval,
is restricted to the purposes as set out in the relevant loan
agreements. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s restricted
bank deposit was RMB1,946.1 million.
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Exchangeable Notes and the Restructuring Deed

On 9 January 2008, several investors provided loans to one of
the Group’s controlling Shareholders, Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
(“Asiaciti”), in an aggregate principal amount of US$200.0
million (approximately RMB1,440 million). Meanwhile, Asiaciti
issued to the investors the exchangeable notes in an aggregate
principal amount of US$200 million. The relevant proceeds
were provided to the Group for use in its business operation
and funding various property development projects. Pursuant
to the restructuring deed (the “Restructuring Deed”) dated 12
July 2013 entered into by and among the Company, Mr. Shum
Chiu Hung, Asiaciti, Renowned Brand Investments Limited
(“Renowned Brand”), East Profit Management Limited (“East
Profit”) and Highup Holdings Limited, part of the debt aforesaid
owed by Asiaciti to the investors has assumed by the Company.
As at 31 December 2013, the balance due to the investors
by the Company was approximately US$86.0 million. Further
details of the exchangeable notes and the Restructuring Deed
are set out in the section entitled “History and Corporate
Structure — Pre-IPO Investment and Debt Restructuring” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 29 November 2013.
Given the sufficiency of working capital and the benefits of
releasing the Company from the secured obligations and
allowing the Company to focus its attention on operation, the
Board decided to pay all outstanding installments in full ahead
of the schedule. On 6 January 2014, the Company paid all
outstanding installments (being the third to fifth installments
originally due on 15 January 2014, 15 March 2014 and 15 May
2014, respectively) under the Restructuring Deed in full. As a
result, all the Company’s obligations under the Restructuring
Deed was discharged in full in January 2014.

Borrowings

The Group had aggregate borrowings of approximately
RMB7,402.5 million as at 31 December 2013, of which
approximately RMB1,977.5 million are due within one year,
approximately RMB5,207.1 million are due within two and five
years and approximately RMB218.0 million are due in over
five years. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s outstanding
bank loans were secured by its completed properties held for
sale, properties under development, investment properties,
and pledged time deposit with carrying values of approximately
RMB20.0 million, RMB1,847.5 million, RMB1,582.0 million,
and RMB70.0 million, respectively.
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The Group's domestic bank loans carried a floating interest
rate linked with the base lending rate of The People’s Bank of
China. As at 31 December 2013, the Group was exposed to
interest rate risk, primarily in relation to our bank loans bearing
floating interest rates, which amounted to be RMB5,316.9
million.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net debts (total
borrowings net of cash and bank balance) over total adjust
equity (all components of equity and the net amount due to Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung) was 93.2% (31 December 2012: 116.2%).
The Group’s net current assets increased by 88.2% from
RMB3,680.6 million as at 31 December 2012 to RMB6,926.4
million as at 31 December 2013, and the current ratio
increased from 1.2 times as at 31 December 2012 to 1.5 times
as at 31 December 2013.

Foreign currency risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. The Group’s functional
currency and the currency in which the Group denominates
and settles substantially all of its transactions are Renminbi.
Any depreciation of the Renminbi would adversely affect the
value of any dividends the Group pay to the Shareholders
outside of the PRC. The Group currently do not engage in
hedging activities designed or intended to manage foreign
exchange rate risk.

Financial guarantee

As of 31 December 2013, the outstanding guarantee mortgage
loans that domestic banks provided to purchasers of the
Group’s properties amounted to approximately RMB4,068.4
million (31 December 2012: approximately RMB3,210.2
million). These guarantees are released upon the earlier of
(i) the relevant certificates of registration of mortgage or the
certificates of other interests with respect to the relevant
properties being delivered to the mortgagor banks and (ii) the
settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagor banks and
the purchasers of the Group’s projects. If a purchaser defaults
on a mortgage loan before the guarantees are released, the
Group may have to repurchase the underlying property by
paying off mortgage. If the Group fail to do so, the mortgagor
bank may auction the underlying property and recover any
additional amount outstanding from the Group as the guarantor
of the mortgage loans. In line with industry practices, the
Group do not conduct independent credit reviews of our
customers but rely on the credit reviews conducted by the
mortgagor banks.
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After balance sheet event

(a) On 6 January 2014, the Company settled all outstanding
installments (being the third to fifth installments
originally due on 15 January 2014, 15 March 2014 and
15 May 2014, respectively) of the Restructuring Deed.
Please refer to the section entitled “Exchangeable Notes
and the Restructuring Deed” above for further details.

(b) On 15 January 2014, Foshan Times Yongheng
Investment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
won the bidding to acquire a parcel of land located
in Chancheng District, Foshan City, through on-
line public bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB632,820,000, of which Foshan Times Yongheng
investment Co., Ltd. has paid RMB68,040,000 as of the
date of approval of these financial statements.

(c) On 8 February 2014, Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
won the bidding to acquire a parcel of land located
in Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City, through on-
line public bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB197,000,000, of which Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. has paid RMB40,000,000 as of
the date of approval of these financial statements.

(d) In March 2014, the Company has successfully issued
the 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$225 million (the “Notes”). The
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Notes was
approved by the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds
from the Notes of approximately US$217.5 million
is planned for refinancing certain of the Company’s
existing indebtedness, financing existing and new
property development projects (including land premium
and construction costs), and for other general corporate
purposes.

Material acquisitions and disposals of assets

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group i) acquired
subsidiaries of Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., Zhuhai Doumen District Jinwu Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., Guangzhou Tiansi Property Management Co., Ltd., ii)
disposed subsidiaries of the Foshan Zhide Wangu Supermarket
Company Ltd., Zhuhai Times Shengyuan Bio-technology Co.,
Ltd. and iii) deregistered a subsidiary of Guangzhou Times
Zhongtong Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.

2013 E# % Annual Report 2013 EsRUEZREMRA T Times Property Holdings Limited



BB R am S AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEREMBUER
HEeE-_Z—=F+-A=+—B &Xx&E£E%AE
#2711 EE(ZE—=F+=_A=+—8:
24702 EE) - EEFHHEREEDNE
e AFE - CREMBBEMAEML - K
SERENEERABEALESHE - BER
BRitdEl c RERRFASREELAES - £5E
FHRAFMBRRELTR T SEHKERE
PAEEBEITEE KRR - REXRFIN
EEARESEENRAERHNBILA LIRS I
Ej] °

™ 3% Bl B

—E-ZF HPEEHETSE_T-_FK
AR LE—FOE BE-_ZT——FEMEE
AT RPERAN KU - ERRAEHF
BT - TEER RO MM RF SR EHE T A 98 RUAY il R
M o BIE R RETHE R Z RS RAZEBR
2EITHTIZARBHET SRS ABE -

BIECREISF &8 — T —=ZFEME
EHEHESF H KA RKLZ 2487
B b £ A87% - = F — = & §§ 51,057
BEFXAAK R TH232% 2855 E 8
FHRLEARBLIALINBE L & - F
— Z—F ER6.23% - BEBE R KB EIE
(www.stats.gov.cn)» —E—=F2F t i
ELEARKIISERBTAFS o

R-ZF—=F9 BHEEEHEEILET [H
hiE| FHERZES  HFTFEZEH R
BRBHRTRE =5 EERE  BAEEMR
AE UREMEBRESLALHEES  Bfh
RERBREIK  BMREKEENLEYE -
HRE—SUmESER [ DR
B FHEMMENER  BREZEE
TR R o

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately
2,711 employees (31 December 2012: approximately
2,470 employees). The remunerations of the employees are
commensurate with their performance, skills, knowledge,
experience and the market trend. Employee benefits provided
by the Group include provident fund schemes, medical
insurance scheme, unemployment insurance scheme and
housing provident fund. The Group reviews the remuneration
policies and packages on a regular basis and will make
necessary adjustments that accommodate the pay levels in the
industry. In addition to basic salaries, the employees may be
offered with discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2013, the real estate market in the PRC further recovered
as compared to 2012. Property markets in tier-one cities that
had been heavily hit by the stringent austerity measures in
2011 saw strong rebound in 2013 in light of the relative stable
operating environment. Suppressed demand from home buyers
was relaxed and added further impetus to the property market.
Despite of the various control policies promulgated by the
Central Government, both land market and real estate market
remained robust.

According to data compiled by China Real Estate Index
System (“CREIS”), the average housing price in year 2013
in Guangzhou rose by 8.7% year-on-year to RMB13,248 per
sg.m.. Residential property sales of year 2013 slipped by
2.32% to 10.57 million sg.m. while sales of newly-bought
house recorded online were up 6.23% from 2012, reaching
RMB140.103 billion. According to the data from the National
Bureau of Statistics (www.stats.gov.cn), on a national basis,
land premium revenue hit a record high of RMB991.8 trillion in
year 2013.

At the beginning of 2013, an executive meeting of the State
Council issued the “Five National Measures” on the real
estate sector, including setting property price control targets,
strict purchasing limits, differentiated credit policy, expanding
property tax pilot program and increasing supply of ordinary
houses and land supply. However, such measures only caused
transient psychological impact due to its limited effect. After
that, some tier-one cities also ramped up cooling measures
including “Beijing Seven Rules”, “Shenzhen Eight Rules” and
“Shanghai Seven Rules”, all of which exerted a temporary
effect to cool down the regional property market.
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On the other hand, “Communist Party of China (CPC)
Central Committee’s decision on major issues concerning
comprehensively deepening reforms” reviewed and approved at
the Third Plenary Session of the 18th CPC Central Committee
(“Third Plenary Session”) at the end of 2013 did not touch on
further regulation of real estate market nor control of housing
price. In respect of the property development industry, other
measures such as rural land reform, housing security and
supply, legislation in property tax were mentioned instead.
Meanwhile, Communiqué of the Third Plenum Session
highlights the significance of market forces, establishment of
fair, open and apparent market rules, and development of a
mechanism where prices are determined by the market. The
communiqué weakens the role of administrative means and
intends to regulate the real estate market by market forces,
which is deemed beneficial to the industry in the long run.

The increase in housing price also strengthened real estate
developers’ confidence in acquiring land reserve. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, the national land market
was exceptionally buoyant, which drove up the housing price
in return after the impact of policies such as “Five National
Measures” subsided. “Land Kings” sprang up in tier-one cities
including Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou since the third
quarter of last year and lands used for operating projects were
frequently traded at high premium. The active transactions
in commercial property prompted real estate developers to
aggressively increase land reserve. This phenomenon also
demonstrated that the liquidity of property developers had
been improving and the quality land in tier-one cities was in
shortage.

Given that the home-buyer demand persists and the Central
Government’s policies are to promote sustainable and stable
development in the real estate market, the Group will ride
on the market trend and leverage its competitive strengths
to proactively acquire its land reserve with competitive cost.
Meanwhile, it will also exploit its understanding of home-
buyers’ needs and enhance optimisation in terms of geographic
layout, product positioning and house type design, in order
to provide quality products for home buyers while creating
generous returns for the Shareholders.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (£#&|#), aged 43, is the founder of
our Group. He has been the chairman of our Board, chief
executive officer and Director since November 2007 and was
redesignated as our executive Director in February 2008. Mr.
Shum started his business career in real estate development
in 1999, and has experience in trade, finance and real estate
development. In 1999, he founded Guangzhou Sweetland
Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Sweetland
Real Estate”), a company engaged in residential property
development project in Guangzhou. In 2001, he founded
Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd. (the “Times Group”)
and served as the president, primarily responsible for the
strategic development and overall operations of Times Group’s
business. He has been serving concurrently as the head of the
operation center of the Group since January 2014, generally
responsible for the Company’s overall operation plan. Mr. Shum
has led our Group to become the leading property developers
in Guangdong Province, focusing on the development of mid-
market to high-end residential properties. He has over 14 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He graduated
from Fudan University (8 B X2) with an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree (“EMBA”) in June 2006.

Mr. Shum was recognized as an “Innovative Individual in
China’s Real Estate Industry in 2005” (“2005%F & 7 Bl &= 4 &
BIFT A®"), by a number of media outlets including Beijing
Youth Daily Group (3t = & & # L)), Guangzhou Daily
(<& M B #)Y) and China Business News ({Z — Bt &)),
an “Outstanding Leader of Mainstream Chinese Real Estate
Companies in 2005” (“2005%F [ B £ i b EE £ H B E A
#”) by China Properties Economic Mainstream Summit (7
B EE A7 £ 16 €) and one of the “100 Most Influential
Entrepreneurs in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2004” (“2004
FEZEFEEMEIOOMMPZESR") by Media and Promotion
Alliance for Real Estate in China (FEIFR & £ RIEEES [HE
88). Mr. Shum was recognized as an “Excellent Entrepreneur
in China’s Real Estate Industry” (“hFEIEMEESFSELER")
and was awarded the “Golden Horse Award of Excellent
Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2007” (“2007
FREEMEESFSLEZRSE ") by the Urban Development and
Environment Research Center of the Chinese Academy of Social
Science (F B4t & R} 82 3 T 8% & B IR H A 9T ), China
National Real Estate Enterprise Association (F% 2= &
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W45 €) and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association (71
EREXRWE) in 2006 and 2007, respectively. He was also
awarded the “Top 10 Figures with Outstanding Contributions
in 30 Years of China's Real Estate Industry” (“fFBEithE30
F+REBEHERB A" in 2008 by Nanfang Media Group (F
J R EEHEE) and 30 Years of China’s Real Estate Industry
Summit Organizing Committee (FFEIFEMEIOF 5 IERIBAS
&), “l11th Guangzhou Outstanding Youth” (“55+—f&@ EM £t
HBES") in 2010 by the People’s Government of Guangzhou
(EMARENRT), “Most Influential Figures in China's Real
Estate Industry” (“PEIEHMETESETZENAY") in 2010
by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Policy Research Center
(B M BRI R A L), National Federation of Real
Estate Chamber of Commerce (2B TEBEHERE) and
Guangdong Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (J&3%& &
B®) and the “The 1st Top 10 Outstanding Cantonese Youth”
(‘EEEREFATARELEFF") in 2013 by The Ist Global
Conference of the Cantonese Organizing Committee (& /&t R
ERARBEASHZE). Mr. Shum was appointed as a standing
member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 11th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2007 (FEIAR
PApEmERE T —EENTZES®EBZEZE) and executive
chairman of Guangzhou Chamber of Commerce of Private
Enterprises (BMMERE{EEEE). Mr. Shum is currently the
vice chairman of the 14th executive committee of Guangzhou
Federation of Industry and Commerce (BEMT LHEMEE)
and Guangzhou General Chamber of Commerce (M 427
©) since September 2011. Mr. Shum is the elder brother of
Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong.

Mr. Guan Jianhui (B# 2 &), aged 49, was appointed as our
Director in January 2008 and was redesignated as our
executive Director in February 2008. Mr. Guan has been a
vice president of Times Group since January 2002. Mr. Guan
is currently the head of our information and administration
service center and is primarily responsible for information
management, administration and Fund affairs. He assisted
Mr. Shum to found Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and joined
Times Group in May 2001. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Guan
was responsible for finance, funding and cost management.
He has over 14 years of experience in real estate corporate
management. Mr. Guan graduated from South China Normal
University (ZEE3RT &5 A E2) with a bachelor’'s degree in arts
in December 1994, and obtained an EMBA from Peking
University (JbZAE) in July 2009. Mr. Guan is currently a
member of the 14th Guangzhou Yuexiu District Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF B A
RBUahEgRE THERNTESEEZES).
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Mr. Bai Xihong (H 8% #), aged 46, was appointed as our
Director in January 2008 and was designated as our executive
Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president
of Times Group since January 2002. He has also been the
general manager of the Guangzhou regional office of Times
Group since January 2002 whereby he is primarily responsible
for project development, marketing and project management in
Guangzhou. Mr. Bai joined Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and
joined Times Group in May 2001. Mr. Bai has over 14 years of
experience in real estate corporate management. He graduated
from Guangdong Radio & Television University (EREEER
KE) in industrial enterprise operation management in 1990
and obtained an EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University (414
KE) in December 2009. In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognized
as an “Outstanding Contributor to Guangzhou Real Estate in
the Past 20 years” (“EMibE_—_+FEHEEEZA") by the
“Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20 Years’ event organizing
committee” (BMMbE—+F KA EBHEZ F), Guangzhou Real
Estate Organization (&M 5 b ZE % 1 &) and Guangzhou
Real Estate Guide Union (FBiEZ Ttt). He was awarded the
“2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in Mainstream Real
Estate in China” (“2006 B 7t & # 424 EBACEQ”) in
2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit (7
Bl E LB RIESE), “Innovative and Meritorious Individual
in China’s Real Estate Industry in the 60 years since the
Founding of the PRC" (“BE60FHEEEZHEIFINEZ
A7) in 2009 by the 7th China Real Estate Economy Summit (5
B E AL £ RIEE) and “Real Estate Pioneers Award”
(“HbEE 82 AHEE”) in 2010 by Xin Kuai News (¥ER#R). Mr.
Bai is currently a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (B A R
emEgREMNTEE

Mr. Li Qiang (Z38), aged 39, was appointed as our Director
in January 2008 and was designated as our executive Director
in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times
Group since July 2009. He is currently also the head of the
human resources and legal affairs center of Times Group and
is primarily responsible for human resources and legal matters.
Mr. Li joined Times Group in July 2005 as an assistant to the
president and has served as our vice president since July
2009. Mr. Li has over eight years of experience in real estate
corporate management. Mr. Li obtained a master's degree in
law from Hunan Normal University CHFIBEIEEKEE) in June
2000, and an EMBA degree from Sun Yat-Sen University
(F1UKE8) in December 2007. He was admitted as a lawyer
in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Li is currently a member of the
15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (&M
HERETOLEARREKEKRS).
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Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong (£ Jk#), aged 39, was appointed as our
executive Director in November 2013. He has been a director
of the investment and development center of Times Group
since May 2012, responsible for land development and project
pre-planning work. Mr. Cen joined Sweetland Real Estate as a
project assistant in 1999 and was promoted as a manager of
the development department in May 2001 and a manager of
the tender department of Times Group in September 2009. Mr.
Cen was the general manager of the Qingyuan regional office of
Times Group between December 2010 and May 2012. Mr. Cen
is a younger brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

Mr. Niu Jimin (4 & 8), aged 34, was appointed as our
executive Director in November 2013 and is currently the head
of the finance department of Times Group, responsible for
planning and management of financial accounting, operation
and taxation matters. Prior to joining us in 2011, Mr. Niu
worked in the finance management department of Guangzhou
Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BEM W EREHEAR Q7))
(“Guangzhou Vanke”) as regional finance manager from
December 2005 to December 2007. He was head of operation
analysis of the operation management department and a senior
manager of the project development department of Guangzhou
Vanke from December 2007 to April 2008 and from November
2010 to March 2011, respectively. He was head of finance
department of Wuhan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (RZEME
REEARAR) from May 2008 to October 2010. Mr. Niu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Sun Yat-Sen
University (F11K&) in June 2001 and a master of business
administration degree from Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2012. Mr. Niu is pursuing an EMBA at the School of
Finance of Renmin University of China (B AR AZ 8B4 7t
Bfr).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Sun Hui (& ), aged 52, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director in November 2013.
She has been a partner of Shanghai Huanzhong Law Firm
(LB T ERP EEMETFA since July 1996, a chairman of
Zengcheng Jianglong Electric Power Co., Ltd. (U&HIEEEHA
fR A ®]) since 2009. Ms. Sun graduated from the school of law
of East China University of Political Science and Law (R FUA
Ef3) in 1983. She obtained a degree in law from Georgetown
University in 1992.
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Mr. Lin Rupeng (#20[E), aged 45, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2013. Mr. Lin
was appointed as the vice president of Jinan University (A
2) since July 2008. Mr. Lin obtained a master’s degree in legal
studies from Jinan University (BmAX2) in February 1993
and a Ph.D. in arts from Fudan University (£ B X£) in June
2004, and engaged in postdoctoral research on management
science and engineering in Tsinghua University (& % A £)
from October 2004 to December 2006. Mr. Lin has been the
vice chairman of the 11th committee of Guangzhou Youth
Federation (BMM S FHERE+—EZEE) since July 2009
for a term of five years.

Mr. Wong Wai Man (E{EX), aged 45, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2013. From
August 1991 to April 1996, Mr. Wong worked as an auditor
with Ernst & Young. From 2006 to 2010, he was an executive
director of China Household Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Bao Yuan Holdings Limited and Ching Hing (Holdings)
Limited) (stock code: 692), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1991 and a master of science degree in financial
economics from the University of London in December 1997.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Senior Management

Mr. Liu Yongshao (8] 7k #B), aged 49, has been a vice
president of Times Group since 2004 and a general manager
of Guangzhou Times Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Times
Property Management) and Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Donghe”) since 2008.
He is primarily responsible for property service management
for Times Property Management and leasing and project
development for Guangzhou Donghe. Mr. Liu was a teacher of
Nanhai High School in Foshan (#|LTF/EREE/EFE) from
July 1984 to July 1993. He was head of the principal’s office
of Foshan Nanhai Guicheng Street Guijiang First Junior High
School (BILTIEERERBEEETIE —VIEPE) from July
1993 to July 1996. He joined Sweetland Real Estate in 1999
and joined Times Group in May 2001. He has over 14 years
of experience in real estate development. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor of arts degree from South China Normal University (£
EIATEE A Z) in December 1994 and an EMBA degree from Sun
Yat-Sen University (1L X&) in December 2010.
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Mr. Tao Chengjiang (FR3I), aged 45, has been the head of
the funds center of Times Group since December 2006. He is
responsible for capital financing of our Group. He joined Times
Group in May 2001 as a manager of our finance department
and was promoted as the finance director in January 2004.
Prior to joining us, from November 1999 to March 2001,
Mr. Tao worked in the finance department and corporate
management department of Kingold Group Companies Limited
(BEEEARAA). Mr. Tao has been a qualified accountant
in the PRC since April 1997 and he is a non-practising
member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (£ 3R & = ft @ 5 Al # &) since 2010.
Mr. Tao graduated from Xi'an Petroleum College (P8% A&
Ft) with a bachelor’s degree in economics in June 1992 and
obtained an EMBA degree from Sun Yat-Sen University (111K
E) in December 2008.

Mr. Chan Wai Kin (BR{242), aged 33, has been appointed as
the chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and the
authorized representative of the Group since 21 February 2014,
responsible for the Group’s financial reporting and investor
relations related matters. Mr. Chan worked with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as an auditor from December 2005 to
August 2010, with KPMG as an auditing manager from August
2010 to October 2011, and with Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings
Company Limited (“Golden Wheel Tiandi”, stock code: 1232),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, as the executive
director, chief financial officer and company secretary from
October 2011 to September 2013, responsible for taking part
in auditing of financial reports and in investor relations related
matters. Mr. Chan ceased to be the non-executive director
of Golden Wheel Tiandi on 28 February 2014. Mr. Chan
graduated from Indiana University at Bloomington in the United
States of America with a degree of bachelor of science in
business in May 2005. He has been a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2009.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
14 November 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law”). The Company’s shares (the “Shares”)
were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11 December 2013 (the
“Listing” or the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is one of the leading property developers
in Guangdong Province, focusing on the development of
mid-market to high-end residential properties. Main business
comprises three areas: (i) property development, i.e., the
development of residential and commercial properties for
sale, (ii) property leasing, i.e., the development, leasing and
sub-leasing of commercial properties owned by the Company
or independent third parties, and (iii) property management,
i.e. the provision of property management services to our
residential customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 98 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB10.94 cents per Share for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil) to the Shareholders. The final dividend will
be payable on 19 May 2014 and is subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 30 April 2014 (“AGM”).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the
last four financial years are set out on page 243 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting
fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$1,477.4 million, was intended to be applied in the manner
disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 29 November
2013, of which approximately 56.7% is intended to be
used for financing new existing projects, including the land
acquisition and construction costs of potential development
projects, approximately 33.3% was used for settling part of the
outstanding installments under the Restructuring Deed and
the remaining for the Group’s general working capital and daily
operating expenses.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 3.2% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2013. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 75.1% of the total
purchase for the year ended 31 December 2013 and purchase
from the largest supplier accounted for 46.3%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in note 14 of the notes to financial
statements in this annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in note 16 of the notes to financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note
32 of the notes to financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out on page 102 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual
report and in note 34 of the notes to financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB1,577.6
million (as at 31 December 2012: RMB1,439.0 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 31
of the notes to financial statements in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and

up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as a Director on 14 November 2007 and
redesignated as Executive Director on 15 February 2008)

Mr. Guan Jianhui

(appointed as a Director on 9 January 2008 and
redesignated as Executive Director on 15 February 2008)

Mr. Bai Xihong

(appointed as a Director on 9 January 2008 and
redesignated as Executive Director on 15 February 2008)

Mr. Li Qiang

(appointed as a Director on 9 January 2008 and
redesignated as Executive Director on 15 February 2008)

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong

(appointed as a Director on 19 November 2013)

Mr. Niu Jimin

(appointed as a Director on 19 November 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Sun Hui

(appointed on 19 November 2013)
Mr. Lin Rupeng

(appointed on 19 November 2013)
Mr. Wong Wai Man

(appointed on 19 November 2013)

In accordance with articles of association of the Company, one-

E(MEEBBAFA=ZNFEH  MERKEELD
MAIR=n—2%EB) BHESR XBHE
REBABRRBEFAGBEREERENZRET
HEEFRAKIB=FREER K-

third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be
eligible for re-election and re-appointment at every annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
BEXARGNEABERZMAR  FWHESFSZE In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
AAERGRRTE  KEAMBRENEST any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
HREZEEZETRARATERERE A vacancy or as an addition will hold office until the next following
1E e general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.
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In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Mr. Bai Xihong, Mr. Guan Jianhui and
Mr. Li Qiang will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the AGM.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong, Mr. Niu Jimin, Ms. Sun Hui, Mr. Lin
Rupeng and Mr. Wong Wai Man will retire and being eligible for
re-election as the Director at the AGM. All the five Directors will
offer themselves for the re-election.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM of the
Company are set out in the circular dated 24 March 2014 to
the Shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 54 to 59 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Board considered all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 19 November 2013 for a term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and may
be terminated pursuant to the respective terms of the service
contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment on 19 November 2013 for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 41 of the
notes to financial statements and in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, no Director has any material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the Group’s business to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies
were a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2013.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Prior to the Listing, the Company conditionally adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 November
2013 which became effective and unconditional upon the
Listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the Eligible Participants (as
defined below) as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group.

(a) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme
and is established to enable the Company to grant options
to the Eligible Participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution they had or may have made to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize
their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.
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(b) Eligible participants

(c)

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board may determine at an exercise price
determined in accordance with paragraph (e) below
to: (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
(ii) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (iii)
any advisers, suppliers, customers, distributors and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (iv) any
such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries (collectively the “Eligible Persons”).

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue immediately following
the completion of the Global Offering (“the Hong Kong
Public Offering and International Offering”) (but taking no
account of any Shares which may be allotted and issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option),
being 172,296,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose
Shares which would have been issued on the exercise in
full of options in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company, but not canceled, lapsed or exercised). Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time
to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at any time to
10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the approval
by the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant
options beyond the 10% Ilimit to Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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(d)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share
Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being
exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in respect
of which options may be granted shall be adjusted,
in such manner as the auditor of the Company or an
approved independent financial adviser shall certify to
be appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any
alteration in the capital structure of the Company whether
by way of consolidation, capitalization issue, rights issue,
sub-division or reduction of the share capital of the
Company but in no event shall exceed the limit prescribed
in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue
of a circular by the Company which shall comply with
Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing Rules containing
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time with
such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting. The numbers
and terms (including the exercise price) of options to
be granted to such participant must be fixed before the
Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting
at which the Board proposes to grant the options to such
Eligible Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price of the Shares.
The Board shall forward to such Eligible Participant an offer
document in such form as the Board may from time to time
determine.
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(e)

(f)

An option may be accepted by a participant not later than
30 days after the date of the offer for the grant of the
option.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will be at less the
higher of: (i) the official closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities;
(ii) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If the Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) which will result in the number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant: (i) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage as may
be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules of
the Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million or such other sum as may be from
time to time provided under the Listing Rules, based on
the official closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, such further grant of options will be subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of
the Shareholders in general meeting by way of a poll at
which all connected persons of the Company shall abstain
from voting in favor of the resolution concerning the grant
of such options at the general meeting, and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time
to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant
of such options shall be taken as a poll.
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(g)

(h)

(i)

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the
Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date
upon which the Option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of ten years from that
date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted. No option may be granted more
than ten years after the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from the date of its adoption.

Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company may by resolution in general meeting or the
Board at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme
and in such event no further option shall be offered but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. Options granted prior to such termination
but not yet exercised at the time of termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the
Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional and has a
remaining term of approximately 9 years and 9 months as
at the date of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of the
Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 of the notes to
financial statements in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN
RESPECT OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, there was no change to
any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to
any Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.
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REB#H DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

BEZEKZAKX INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

=F+-_A=+—H AQEEZEK As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short position of the
AERAKNARISKEMREEZE (FER Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,

FBENEEED ([FAEREEEM]) EXVERD) underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its

B - MBERD RE#EZES - %ﬁ,/jﬁ}fé 5 as associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
E R EE ISR EXVBET RIS FAE RN T Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) required to be

M (BEREESLE j"j1|7,<1§|J; 1@}2&%& notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

BEIEREABEAENEZRIORE) - ym;ggg%—e Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or
R EAE & E35218 18 8 & .:EE"EZ 168 Py 3t & =0 short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
- BE FmEAMESETRECETATE such provisions of the SFO), or which would be required,
EHEHTEET SR IEESF J>>(M$2;E$/E\\H) w pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
BRHERATI KRBT EZIARTT ¢ register referred to therein, or which would be required to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) XATFIHIRES (i) Interest in the Company
REBAD
EEnE EEME EHHAHW ER e
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Number of securities ¥ shareholding
24 MNZEHEE R ERC 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Shum Chiu Hung®® Interest in a controlled 64,611,000 (S) 3.75%

corporation®

M st Notes:

1. ?\flLJ ﬁiﬁ? FHWEFRE  MFHISIKRE 1. The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities and the letter
REFWKE © “S” denotes short position in such securities.

2. RZZ—=F+ZRA=+—8 ' Z8EXER 2. As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung had deemed
RAMN1,292,220,000 8 H R Az HE interests in 1,292,220,000 Shares, representing an approximate
RARBBEBEZETRAEAN i*]75% LTEAE total of 75% of the existing issued share capital of the Company. The
1,292, 220,000/ B 5 - ﬂﬁ%%&ﬁ&%ﬂ@%” 1,292,220,000 Shares were held by Asiaciti, which is 60% and 40%
?ﬁﬁié?ﬁ:' H160% K40% - S8R ELEHME owned by Renowned Brand and East Profit respectively. Renowned
EREERE - Brand is wholly-owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

3. //ﬁééﬁ§1372¢+:ﬂ E‘*’*E"_U:E"JWT\B(EE 3. Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
& ZoIHEEE - %E\E&E%&ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ@ﬂ ! notifications were received from Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Asiaciti and
94,611,000&&%@9’97%%3’:\:%*@E*ﬂ + Renowned Brand that the short position of the 64,611,000 Shares
—H#IE - were ceased on 13 January 2014.
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(i) RAEB ZE N ER

(ii) Interest in associated corporations

Exps HEEEERE

Associated

Name of Director Corporation

R EE T
mERH
BHABES T
Approximate
percentage in
the registered
capital of the
associated
corporation

EEME HEHE

Number of

Nature of interest securities

24 HED 1
Shum Chiu Hung® Asiaciti

=85
Shum Chiu Hung

=RERE

Renowned Brand
Hat -

1. ERBREHAO%RLYTDHITRMN  MERKRE
BMEEEREZERR

BRAEKEEIN BE_T—=F+_A=1+—
B BEBEARAEERESTBRAERARA
S HMEEEE (EERESF LB ERDIEXVED)
iy - HERDRERET  BEOELR
REEHFLPEGRIEIL2HEATFENERL
A H(DRBERETHESTHEARR R
i X P R SOR B o

ESRBEROIEREENER

R ARFERABMEESIN  BBERAEMESHRE
EEANEBIARFFRELEREARA
By EREMESHENEN  RETET
EEMZFERN : MARE REERKIERA
BT EEEFIHRESTANE
BRARFFRE LT AHPLEFREMNH M
AANBERZFERN -

RE SR EE R 120 60%
Interest in a controlled
corporation

E=EBA 1 100%
Beneficial owner

Note:

1. The issued shares of Asiaciti is owned as to 60% by Renowned

Brand which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of
our Directors and chief executives of the Company has any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or (ii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate since the Listing Date.
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M ERPIFEXVERF 2R3 BRI T LA
BREOERR TORE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) were taken or deemed
to have an interests and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

REBA
a2/ MR By EmttE EHHAW Aok
Approximate
Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Name Nature of interest securities ¥ shareholding
F—Few NG EE o S 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Li Yiping®® Interest in a controlled 64,611,000 (S) 3.75%
corporation
[ TEICR BEDEAA 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Asiaciti®® Beneficial owner 64,611,000 (S) 3.75%
FEREEOW RZEHEE N = 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Renowned Brand®® Interest in a controlled 64,611,000 (S) 3.75%
corporation
RAe® P2 1A [ B B am 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
East Profit®@ Interest in a controlled 64,611,000 (S) 3.75%
corporation
Bzt - Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities and the letter “S”

1. FEILUKARZIFNGRE MFHISIKRZIES
) .

9

ZE-=ZF+ZRA=+—8B F-—%xt (8
EMBE) HR AK1,292,220,0008% BR 17 %5 A #
@ MERARRRBEREITRANLDTE% - BHH
£1,292,220,0008 B0 - T fE R K E R R D Bl #
BERHNE0%K40% - F— R L2 EHEART -

3. EEREREAD A Y BE0% R0 % - K
i AR B 5 M 25 5 7 01,292,220,0008 5
i 5 2 -

4. REEZZ-—=F1+ZA=+—BUHBBFE®E -
FoNALL ET ERREARRFMBBHEAN
64,611, 000BMHEREBER T —MF-A+=HK
1F e

denotes short position in such securities.

2. As at 31 December 2013, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung, had deemed interests in 1,292,220,000 Shares, representing
an approximate total of 75% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company. The 1,292,220,000 Shares were held by Asiaciti, which is 60%
and 40% owned by Renowned Brand and East Profit respectively. East
Profit is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Yiping.

3. Renowned Brand and East Profit held 60% and 40% equity interest
respectively in Asiaciti. As such, it is deemed to be interested in the
1,292,220,000 Shares held by Asiaciti.

4. Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2013, notifications
were received from Ms. Li Yiping, Asiaciti, Renowned Brand and East
Profit that the short position of the 64,611,000 shares were ceased on 13
January 2014.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the period commencing on the Listing Date to 31
December 2013, there was no purchase, sale and redemption
of any listed securities of the Company by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands that would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 21 November 2013 (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) was entered into between the
Company and the controlling Shareholders, including the
Directors namely Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Ms. Li Yiping, the
spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Renowned Brand, East Profit
and Asiaciti, who have undertaken to the Company that they
will not (1) directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of or through any person, body
corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement and whether for profit or otherwise, participate,
acquire or hold any right or interest, provide any support to,
financial or otherwise, or otherwise be interested, involved or
engaged in any business that directly or indirectly competes
with Restricted Business (as defined below), or acquire or hold
shares or interests (in each case whether as a Shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward
or otherwise) in any company or business that competes
directly or indirectly with the Restricted Business (as defined
below); and (2) engage, invest, participate or be interested
(economically or otherwise) in any property development
business involving the development of residential and
commercial properties for sale; property management business
involving the provision of property management services to
the Company’s residential customers; and property leasing
business involving the development, leasing and sub-leasing of
commercial properties owned by the Company or independent
third parties (the “Restricted Business”).

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of
Non-Competition.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Deed of Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling
Shareholders have abided by the non-competition undertaking.
The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that
the controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of
the non-competition undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors held any
interests in any business that competes directly against the
Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Following the Listing of the Company on 11 December 2013,
the transactions between the Group and certain connected
persons of the Group became continuing connected
transactions. The Company has applied and the Stock
Exchange has granted a waiver from, among others, strict
compliance with the announcement and/or Shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing
Rules for the continuing connected transactions set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 29 November 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and are in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed below by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions of the
Company are as follows:

(a) Continuing connected transactions which are

exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement, but subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules

Property lease

Our subsidiary, Guangzhou Times Hongtai Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Hongtai”), leased certain properties
situated at 2601 and 2602, 26th Floor, No. 410 Dongfeng
Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (collectively the “PRC Premises”) with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 1,079.13 sg.m. from
Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.
(“Times Development Group”) and Ms. Li Yiping, pursuant
to a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) entered
between Times Development Group and Ms. Li Yiping
and Guangzhou Hongtai on 24 May 2010 for a term of
three years effective from 1 April 2010 until 31 March
2013. The Lease Agreement was renewed on 20 March

HETEEINER  MEITEEREN D 2013 and amended and supplemented by a supplemental
T agreement dated 28 June 2013, the principal terms of
which are set out as follows:
B
A= /T HE BAHEE TERZE HEHR
Approximate
Contracting gross floor Monthly  Intended Duration of
Location Parties area Rental use agreement
(‘FFK) (AE#)
(sq.m.) (RMB)
PEEREBEMT BN 2R 1,079.13 107,913 HA=E —F—=
575 (R 2R L B (H/P) MA—AZ
410%£261£2601 —=_F
}26027%F BHREEEE K +=—A=+—8
F—Nut
(%%)
2601 and 2602, Guangzhou Hongtai 1,079.13 107,913  Office 1 April 2013 to
26/F, No. 410 (as tenant) 31 December

Dongfeng Road,
Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong
Province, the PRC

Times Development
Group and
Ms. Li Yiping
(as landlords)

2015
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Under the terms of the Lease Agreement, Guangzhou
Hongtai is obliged to pay an aggregate annual rental of
RMB1,294,956 (exclusive of management fees). Our
PRC legal adviser, Commerce & Finance, confirmed that
the terms of the Lease Agreement are valid, binding and
enforceable against the parties thereto.

DTZ, an independent valuer, has confirmed that the
terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement are fair and
reasonable.

Historical transaction values

In 2013 and 2012, Guangzhou Hongtai had incurred an
aggregate rental of RMB1,294,956 and RMB1,294,956,
respectively (exclusive of management fees) to Times
Development Group and Ms. Li Yiping in relation to the
leasing of the PRC Premises.

Annual caps

Pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement, the
annual rentals payable by Guangzhou Hongtai to
Times Development Group and Ms. Li Yiping will be
RMB1,294,956, RMB1,294,956 and RMB1,294,956 for
the three financial years ended 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015, respectively (the “Property Lease Caps”), which
are determined on the basis of the prevailing market rate
and on normal commercial terms.

Listing Rules implication

Given that (i) Mr. Cen Jiancai (& #8f), father of Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung who is a controlling Shareholder and
an executive Director, owns 90% of the equity interests
in Times Development Group; and (ii) Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong,
the younger brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung holds the
remaining 10% equity interest in Times Development
Group, Times Development Group is regarded as a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Ms. Li Yiping is the wife of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.
Ms. Li Yiping is an associate of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
and therefore is regarded as a connected person of the
Company.

Given that one of the applicable percentage ratios under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect of the above
transactions is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Lease Agreement will be exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Confirmation from the Directors

The Directors (including our independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that (i) the Property Lease Caps
are determined through arm’s length negotiations between
the parties to the Lease Agreement and (ii) the continuing
connected transactions described above (including the
Property Lease Caps) have been entered into on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of our Shareholders as a whole and in the ordinary and
usual course of business of our Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements,
to the extent they are not waived by the Stock Exchange, in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2013.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 is contained
in note 41(a)(i) to financial statements. The transactions
summarised in 41(a)(i) of such note fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
The transactions summarised in note 41(b)(iii) and (iv) fall
under the definition of “connected transactions” under the
Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB13.1
million.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report for a summary of the major
events that have occurred in relation to the Company since the
balance sheet date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed together with the
management and external auditor the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code of
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been
made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange as its own code of
corporate governance.

Save for the deviation disclosed in the corporate governance
report in this annual report, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code during the period from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 25
April 2014 (Friday) to 30 April 2014 (Wednesday), both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the forthcoming AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Investor Services Limited, at
shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 24 April 2014
(Thursday).

B AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited



EFQHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

NEERKBREZRARENCHAYRA =T
—MERA+T=RA (EH—) - BEERRKR
EERERSHEN (EAFRRNAGRT
WBRRBEFAE LHETAEE)  ARFH
RZZE-—MNFRANR (EHM) E-FT—N
FAA+T-R(EH ) (BRERMX) &F
MEBRMBPERL - MAKRNBPE XFERE
AERENEBPREBBAR_FT—NFAALH
(EH=) THFOB=1+2AXEARABNEE
R BPFELREETREFECARRAT
Wi BB R EFERAERISIFAMB LT
B1712-1716% -

AENARERE

RBAR T AFRCED 0L R IEE S
Fifl R-E—WE= A8 (FBEASE
BHOBREERTTAY)  EERRALA
B4 F5 R AIT T AR RE -

P B Em
RAEHAEEFEBRRE-F—=F+=
B=t+-BILEENGARBRE -

ZK BRI R AN B RITHRITBEFK
GLRE UYNAEMARBEEEREME - 5H
BIEZ oK GRTEN B TE T R R A A BB H) R 35
ERRABRITHORRAFAE LERS -

RREFE
FIE
= 8§

FEREN  —FE-NFE=A+N\A

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final
dividend is 12 May 2014 (Monday). In order to determine the
right of Shareholders entitled to receive the proposed final
dividend, which is subject to the approval by Shareholders in
the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will also be closed from 8 May 2014 (Thursday) to 12 May
2014 (Monday), both days inclusive. All transfer accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Investor Services Limited, at shops 1712-1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 7 May 2014 (Wednesday).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 18
March 2014, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained a public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman

Guangzhou, the PRC, 18 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, in the
opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provision as set out in the CG Code during the period
since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2013.

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung currently assumes the roles of both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr.
Shum is one of the founders of the Group and has extensive
experience in property development. The Board believes that
by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be able to provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for
more effective and efficient business planning and decisions as
well as execution of long-term business strategies of the Group.
As such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of
the Group. Furthermore, the Company’s present management
structure comprises sufficient number of independent non-
executive directors, and thus the Board believes that a balance
of power and authority have been and will be maintained.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its directors. The Company has arranged an
insurance in early February 2014 with 12 months coverage
starting from March 2014 in respect of legal actions against its
Directors.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the
Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All' Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all
times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
9 members, consisting of six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui
Mr. Bai Xihong
Mr. Li Qiang
Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong
Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Sun Hui

Mr. Lin Rupeng
Mr. Wong Wai Man

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company also complied Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
which relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, except that
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, is the elder brother of Mr.
Cen Zhaoxiong, another Executive Director of the Company.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments as well as
their identity and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a
timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant status, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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All of the existing Directors has gone through a two-hour
training provided by Sidley Austin on 31 May 2013 about

FEI - BRREEEZEEINBERENT the responsibility of the directors, and the attendance of the

= individual Directors at these trainings is set out in the table
below:

EsnR EHERE A HERE

Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend

S et

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1

FRE L

Mr. Guan Jianhui 1/1
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Mr. Bai Xihong 1/1

FoRESE

Mr. Li Qiang 1/1

B RAE

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1/1
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Mr. Niu Jimin 1/1

BREL L

Ms. Sun Hui 1/1
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Mr. Lin Rupeng 1/1
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Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals.

Under the current organization structure of the Company, Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung is the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. With his extensive experience in the property
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to
the business prospects and management of the Group. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 19 November 2013 for a term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and may
be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the
service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company on 19 November 2013,
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the
first general meeting of the Company after appointment and
any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting of the Company after
appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election
and succession planning of Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notices of not less than fourteen days will
be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, fourteen days notice will
be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will
be recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and committee meeting are/will be sent
to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
one Board meetings were held and the attendance of the
individual Directors at these meetings is set out in the table
below:

EsnR EHERE A HERE
Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend
S e E

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1

FRE L

Mr. Guan Jianhui 1/1

SEZ )it

Mr. Bai Xihong 1/1

FoRESE

Mr. Li Qiang 1/1

B RAE

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1/1

TP L

Mr. Niu Jimin 1/1

BREL L

Ms. Sun Hui 1/1

MRAnME % A

Mr. Lin Rupeng 1/1
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Mr. Wong Wai Man
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(joined by telephone dial in)

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code of
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been
made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2013.
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Since the Listing Date, the Company has also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the
Model Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Remuneration paid to the senior management
(excluding the Directors) for the year ended 31 December
2013 is within the range of RMB800,001 to RMB1,200,000
each.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance with 12 months
coverage starting from March 2014 in respect of legal action
against its Directors in early February 2014.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (chairman), Ms. Sun
Hui and Mr. Lin Rupeng, two of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will assess
the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as education
background, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision.

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held and the
attendance record of the Nomination Committee members is
set out in the table below:

EEns EHERE S AHERE
Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend
ZEHRE

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1

BB+

Ms. Sun Hui 1/1
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Mr. Lin Rupeng 1/1
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The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and proposed re-election
of the retiring directors Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Mr. Guan
Jianhui, Mr. Bai Xihong, Mr. Li Qiang, Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong,
Mr. Niu Jimin, Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man and
recommended to the Board for approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation
to the nomination and appointment of new directors, which
sets out: the selection of board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted
when the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of
the Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills
and experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination
Committee confirmed that the existing Board was appropriately
structured and no change was required.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Sun Hui (chairman), Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and Mr.
Wong Wai Man, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board for approval on the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages
of the Directors and the senior management, to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management/to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held and the
attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is
set out in the table below:

Esps 2 HERE W ERE
Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend
BREZL

Ms. Sun Hui 1/1

=it

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1

=HIEXEE

Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
of Directors and senior management for the year 2013, as
well as the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management. As a result, the
Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Wai Man (chairman), Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Lin Rupeng,
two of them are independent non-executive Directors. The
main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

— To review the financial statements and reports before
submission to the Board;

—  To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard and discuss with
external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

— To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures, including the adequacy of the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of
the Group, reports to the Board on any material issue, and
makes recommendations to the Board.

The written terms of reference of Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, one meeting of the Audit Committee was held and the
attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out
in the table below:

EEHA EHERE A HERE
Name of Director Attended/Eligible to attend
mEXSEE

Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1

FEZ+

Ms. Sun Hui 1/1

MRanms L A&

Mr. Lin Rupeng 1/1
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The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management systems
and processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor.
The Board has not deviated from any recommendation given by
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditor.

They also reviewed final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit report
prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013 which give a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and
cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on page 96 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for maintaining an adequate internal control system to
safeguard Shareholders investments and the Company’s assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

B ERRAMR AT Times Property Holdings Limited 2013%E % Annual Report 2013



AEENABEZEFRERRARANARE
AATHMEEEERAC NEEEEBFNER
BERMRE MBI ARANAMEZERERHE
BEE  MEARANMAED XHENHEQ
AETTEREEEX

MELEGEFRNESTSERMK
%

ZEMERE—(HhABEZERAERN
e

BHRE YRSABEEFNETZA
BEMERFEARFEEEIE -

ot

BEET &
BE-Z—=E+-A=+—RILEE i
YR EEIEERBE RN T AR T e

A2 KB EBAOMSRBEER_RARK
2,300,0007T -

AN B EEHMEBMERRRIZEEAE
%H"F’fﬁ%%ﬂxfﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂ#&’ ETED R B E
NTFTLZXEFAMEBINEREERARE
7,200,0007T °

ENHENTLZKEFMEZAMEODITE
Za

The Group’s Internal Control Team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The major
duties of the Internal Control Team are regulating and reviewing
the internal control and compliance-related matters of the
Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches
and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Internal Control Team reports twice a year to our Board.

The Audit Committee has received an internal control report
prepared by Internal Control Team and considered the internal
control system remains effective and no material issue is
required to be brought to the Board’s attention.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, for
audit and audit related services amounted to RMB2,300,000.

In addition, Ernst & Young was appointed by the Company
as the reporting accountant for its initial public offering of
shares, in relation to which total fees paid or payable to Ernst
& Young during the year ended 31 December 2013 were
RMB7,200,000.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst &
Young is set out below:

g
ZEERISEB Items of auditor’s services Amount
(ARK)
(RMB)
ZERT Audit services:

FERERE Annual audit service 2,300,000

IEZERTE - Non-audit service:
B e ERestEmRAS Reporting accountant’s services in relation to the Listing 7,200,000
st Total 9,500,000
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Mei Jing (“Ms. Mei”), one of our joint company secretaries,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures,
and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Ms.
Mei resigned on 21 February 2014 and the Board appointed
Mr. Chan Wai Kin (“Mr. Chan”) as the joint company secretary
on 21 February 2014.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, manager
of KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service
provider), as another joint company secretary to assist Ms. Mei/
Mr. Chan to discharge her/his duties as company secretary of
the Company. Following the resignation of Ms. Mei, the primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Chan, one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Mei and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training respectively in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2013.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of
the Board Committee of the Company will attend the annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions. The
external auditor of the Company will also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

B ERRAMR AT Times Property Holdings Limited 2013%E % Annual Report 2013



BREEARNBR - AQ A RN EBAR
R OBEBYARAERENEL BERRE
B IR E M (www.timesgroup.cn) © AR
AERALTIEEREEBEEREENST
iR MBHE - CEEATHAREMEE
A ARATER o

B R R
BREREONGEIEN - ARRFRBREX
ErREERE (BREERENEE) REBY

2
/j&uﬁ% °

RERAEGLREENAARBRLERELHR
AIRNEBRETAETRR RELERARERRE
RERTRMBNRARAMERAHEETE -

BRRRBIAEREZER

REBEABERMAAY - — XA EREFERE
BRATNDRARABRERA (A #NER
RAEELERE) +o2—0KRR  ATEXKAH
BREFHIAE -

EHSRTREESAREREIEY  ERE
ECAMBREBHAR  UEREHERAE
ROEE - ARARAR R ZER%MIE A
BT -

ARERRAZEBESNEH
w2 HBRIER -

MESERHES
EROMAAEEEHFELEBARTNER
AEBREBARERLEENRN EHHLUS

kennychan@timesgroup.cn °
ERNXHHNER

ARABR=E-=F+—A+ABRH— 15
SIS R BRI AR AW E IR AR
LT A -

2013 FE 3k Annual Report 2013

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintains a website at
www.timesgroup.cn, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to Mr.
Chan Wai Kin at his email address: kennychan@timesgroup.cn.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company was adopted by the Company on
19 November 2013 and became effective on the Listing Date.
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To the shareholders of
Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Property Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 242, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

HEZZE—=F+-A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2013

—E—= B4
2013 2012
KizF AR¥ T AR TFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
LON REVENUE 5 9,694,735 3,197,142
HER A Cost of sales (7,354,711) (2,288,184)
EF GROSS PROFIT 2,340,024 908,958
E b Ug A K U 2= Other income and gains 5 78,700 138,269
565 Ko T35 T R AR Selling and marketing costs (411,137) (204,279)
THEX Administrative expenses (285,629) (145,098)
Hibkx Other expenses (16,493) (34,377)
A& B AR Finance costs 7 (87,706) (42,055)
L E A RER Share of profits and losses of associates 2,371 5
B %% AT F 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,620,130 621,423
REY 1 EEa Income tax expense 10 (646,200) (267,775)
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 973,930 353,648
Y& IERE, - Attributable to:
KABER A Owners of the Company 11 987,022 362,916
eI R Non-controlling interests (13,092) (9,268)
973,930 353,648
EAREERREEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EEERER ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
EAR NS Basic and diluted
— FEFHE — For profit for the year RMB75 cents RMB28 cents
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R BERM B HER
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Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.



mEETHWAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BEZZE—=F+-A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2013

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT AR TFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FENE Profit for the year 973,930 353,648
RERERRFEET S Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to
BmmEMEmEmEE - profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BEBINETSHE R Z50 Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (9,748) (3,005)
FEHMEZEEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (9,748) (3,005)
FEXEIALLE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 964,182 350,643
T BB ¢ Attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZ DN Owners of the Company 977,274 359,911
JEFEGE 2 Non-controlling interests (13,092) (9,268)
964,182 350,643
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e MR AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

—E—=F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2013

—EBE—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
k=3 AR¥ T ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB NERE Property, plant and equipment 14 633,806 432,936
FE - Hb T & 2 IE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,385,474 1,229,089
wEYE Investment properties 16 1,582,000 1,540,000
REFERBINIRE Investments in associates 18 45,304 42 934
IRIEF T A & Deferred tax assets 19 84,737 83,504
IEMBNEERRE Total non-current assets 3,731,321 3,328,463
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories - 4,642
FEfT T EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 755,881 265,813
GEagasky/ES Properties under development 20 13,217,733 9,350,228
ERTHERENE Completed properties held for sale 21 803,464 2,641,554
EUWE 5508 Trade receivables 22 472,532 32,546
FENFIE e K Prepayments, deposits and other
H i el srI8 receivables 23 1,895,624 3,580,567
BEZRIIARE Held-to-maturity investments 24 - 305,700
FEU B AR A BRI FUR Amount due from the immediate
holding company 41(c)(ii) = 437,507
JIE WY AR AR PR A R Y FOE Amount due from the ultimate
holding company 41(c)(ii) - 16
FE G Bk 28 N B 85 708 Amount due from an associate 25 70,210 63,880
B EE A Amounts due from directors 26 - 3,438
AIHHERE Available-for-sale investments 3,100 3,100
NEE N Tax prepayments 27 222,349 234,409
ZRRHIRITER Restricted bank deposits 28 1,946,083 897,299
ReRREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,721,481 936,446
MENVEERLTS Total current assets 21,108,457 18,757,145
RBERE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BINE 5318 Trade payables 29 2,413,862 2,872,646
H b fE T R TE K FEET 08 Other payables and accruals 30 9,392,801 8,718,085
FTRIBITERRHEMER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 31 1,977,494 3,177,263
JENTERHFIA Amount due to a director 26 - 101,478
FEBFE Tax payable 27 397,896 207,061
BB ERE Total current liabilities 14,182,053 15,076,533
REBEEFRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,926,404 3,680,612
BEBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,657,725 7,009,075

B E R A S Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 E#H4% Annual Report 2013
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2013 2012
k=3 AR¥ T AEHTFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FPEIRITER M EMER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 31 5,425,054 2,499,536
EILTRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,224,250 1,303,426
ERBEGEHREE Total non-current liabilities 6,649,304 3,802,962
FEE Net assets 4,008,421 3,206,113
= EQUITY
RATVEE AR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
DEITE R Issued capital 32 135,778 -
G Reserves 34 3,669,965 2,719,726
BEAREHRE Proposed final dividend 12 188,486 -
3,994,229 2,719,726
IR Non-controlling interests 14,192 486,387
HERBTE Total equity 4,008,421 3,206,113
81 TR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
EBZE EZE
Director Director

2013 FE#HE Annual Report 2013 BRI EZRR AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited



GARREHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZE—=F+-A=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2013

RS A
Attributable to owners of the Company
BEf it EERE JHER
v ABE  BARR  ELEE MEg  ERRE  BEAE it BE  BEEE
Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital surplus — translation Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity

ANREFT ANREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFrT AREFT ARETr AREFT AREFI
RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMBOO0  RMB000 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'000
(Wit3da)  (We346) (W) (WaE34)
(note 34(2)) - (note 34(b))  (note 34(c))~ (note 34(a))

RZE-Z§-A-H At 1 January 2012 - 1452565 8,113 31,295 94304 (13966) 787504 2359815 491222 2851037

EF2ENA/(FR) 258 Total comprehensive income/

(loss) for the year - - - - - (3,008) 362916 359911 (9,268) 350,643
BESREDNRS (HE34(0)) Transfer to reserve funds

(note 34(d)) - - - - 32,191 - (32,191) - - -
RIMELA Establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
WREEIHB ARl (H123514) (i) Acquisition of a subsidiary

(note 35(A) (iii)) - - - - - - - - 2433 2433
RZE--F+-A=+—-H At31 December 2012 - 1452565 8113 31,295 126,495* (16971 1,118229* 2,719,726 486,387 3,206,113

B E R R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited 2013 % E %% Annual Report 2013



ALNAERARL

Attributable to owners of the Company

B&f7 ki HEBR B3RA FER
g% AR HABR HAGR RS Eiff BEHE ke &3t 3 A%
Share Statutory Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium Contributed Capital surplus  translation Retained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

ABRTL  AREFL  ARBTT  ARRTT  ARETT  ARRTT  ARETn  ARRETr  AREFT  AREFT  AREFR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Wit32)  (WE3de)  (WEb) (W) (W)
(note 32)  (note 34(a)  (note 34(8))  (note 34(c)  (note 34(d)

R=F-ZE+ZB=+-R At 31 December 2012 and

R=F-z§-f-R 1 January 2013 - 1,452,565 8113 31,295 126,495 (16,971) 1,118,229 - 2,719,726 486,387 3,206,113
FE2EMA/(B Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - - = (9,748) 987,022 - 977,274 (13,092) 964,182
ERTEENES (W294(0) Transfer to reserve funds (note 34(d)) - - - - 147,793 - (147,793 - - - -
AERNEAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - (2,807) - 2,807 - - - -
WEHELA Acquisition of subsidiaries
(23600~ (B)0) (notes 35(A)(i), (B)i)) - - - - - - - - - 10,353 10,353
W nRER Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - 6,879 - - - - 6,879 (479,456  (472,577)
i Establishment of & subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Capitalisation issue (note 32(z)) 101,827 (101,827) - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares in connection
with the listing (note 32(b)) 33,951 1,188,051 - - - - - - 1,222,002 - 1,222,002
Share issue expenses (note 32(b)) - (57,739) - - - - - - (57,739) - (57,739)
Dividend declared (note 12) - (873,913) - - = - - - (873,913) - (873,913)
Proposed final 2013 dividend
(note 12) = (188,486) - = = - - 188,486 - - -
RZF-ZE+ZA=1+-R  At31 December 2013 135,778 1418,651* 8,113* 38,174* 271,481* (26,719)*  1,960,265* 188,486 3,994,229 14192 4,008,421
* ZERBREPEGAUWBMRREZPNOLRERHE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_Z—=F+_-HA=+—HIFLFJE Year ended 31 December 2013

—E-Z=F —T——F
2013 2012
k= ARETFT ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RETHIEBHNESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PR B AR Profit before tax 1,620,130 621,423
HE Adjustments for:
BB Finance costs 7 87,706 42 055
JEREE N BER Share of profits and losses of associates (2,371) (5)
BT R EAMF B UA Bank and other interest income (9,574) (21,376)
e Depreciation 55,648 16,454
WEMENLBENE Changes in fair value of investment properties (42,000) (110,000)
BERAESERiEcRs Changes in fair value of certain other
HipENFIBEARBENES payables to a non-controlling shareholder = 2,144
BRTHENENMERN (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of
(CREER),/ FE completed properties held for sale (1,665) 1,665
BNRIE - ke REM Reversal of impairment of prepayments,
YR IEH) R B Bl deposits and other receivables (1,000) -
HEWE  BERKREEEB Loss on disposal of items of
HEE property, plant and equipment 34 658
HoHEM EEH B A R E Gains on deregistration/disposal of
subsidiaries (1,414) -
A EEUNGIE Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary (7,685) -
1,697,809 553,018
a0 AR & FIER (Increase)/decrease in prepaid land
(gm),/ mb lease payments (340,190) 134,229
FERD> Decrease in inventories 1,032 -
B B A W A3 N Increase in properties under development (3,065,490) (1,195,138)
ERTHREHENMED Decrease/(increase) in completed
B /(&) properties held for sale 1,839,755 (445,840)
FEUCE 5 Z0IE N Increase in trade receivables (439,986) (13,382)
BRRE Rk Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
H fth MR IER R L (38 50) deposits and other receivables 1,594,956 (1,410,402
JE UG S 42 1R i B B ZOB B Decrease/(increase) in an amount due from
B (HE) the ultimate holding company 16 (11)
JE U B 2 N RO SR IE B3 0 Increase in an amount due from an associate (6,330) (3,700)
JEE =R FRIBRIR D Decrease in amounts due from directors 3,437 561
FERE S TEN CRid) /& (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (511,273) 316,308
HoAh FEAFRIE K FE AT RIE R (Decrease)/increase in other payables
CRA) /10 and accruals (45,396) 2,869,426
JE T E =AY FRIARTIE N Increase in an amount due to a director 1,006 2,439
ZRHRITERN (380) 4 (Increase)/decrease in restricted bank deposits 28 (1,048,784) 140,240
K (ER)/ EENES Cash (used in)/generated from operations (319,438) 947,748
B IF A Interest received 9,574 9,055
BEAFE Interest paid (614,545) (459,716)
B EMEH Corporate income tax paid (301,573) (74,332)
B g ER Land appreciation tax paid (230,563) (141,589)
SR (F),/EA Net cash flows (used in)/generated
REREFHE from operating activities (1,456,545) 281,166

B E R A S Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 E#H4% Annual Report 2013
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2013 2012
st ARE T ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RETHMENESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEWE  WEMEERE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (204,067) (17,791)
BERBRBZRIHKRE Purchase of held-to-maturity investments = (305,700)
HEME - BEKREER Proceeds from disposal of items of
R FTS 3R property, plant and equipment 464 66
WE%MT%/&T Acquisition of subsidiaries 35 (2,500) (3,544)
WEEHMB AT (TMEA—TEXT)  Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business 35 (251,004) -
g ElRai g Acquisition of non-controlling interests (473,988) -
HEHB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 36 (3,682) -
RETEFEANREREFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (934,777) (326,969)
RETHRABHRER CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
E132 I]ﬂgﬁnﬁ’]tijﬁ Contribution from non-controlling interests 10,000 2,000
FEWE R A RIMZRIEMEA  Increase in an amount due from
the immediate holding company (20,975) (431,519)
TR ITER REMER New bank loans and other borrowings 5,635,187 3,164,652
RITERREMERWER Repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings (3,603,752) (2,318,450)
WD 81T P S 7R IA 558 Net proceeds from issue of shares 1,164,263 -
REERDEENRESREFRE Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 3,184,723 416,583
ReRASEEYEMTHE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 793,401 370,780
FONReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 936,446 565,700
[EREENTE  F5E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (8,366) (34)
FRASRREEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,721,481 936,446
RERREEENERDIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R RiRTHEA Cash and bank balances 28 3,667,564 1,833,745
B 2RISR ITIES Less: Restricted bank deposits 28 (1,946,083) (897,299)
HeEkBREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,721,481 936,446

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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BT FS AR 3R
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E—=F+=-H=+—8H 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E—-—F
2013 2012
Bt AREF T AR For
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BENMEE Property, plant and equipment 14 361 375
AR B A A] Investment in subsidiaries 17 = -
IEMEVEEARRR Total non-current assets 361 375
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FENFIE - e REA Prepayments, deposits and
JE W SR IE other receivables 273 12
FEU EE IR A RIRRIE Amount due from the immediate
holding company 41(c)(if) = 437,507
FE U % 4R PR IS A B TR IE Amount due from the ultimate
holding company 41(c)(ii) - 10
FE UM B A By Fh 18 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235 922,852
RENBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 785,876 7,356
MEVEELEE Total current assets 2,142,384 1,367,737
REBAEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
E b fE S 3008 K FE R 508 Other payables and accruals 546,894 -
FEASH T B A RIRI FR I8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133 117,867
JERTEF IR Amount due to a director 26 - 11,029
mEIBERAE Total current liabilities 663,027 128,896
RBEEFHE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,479,357 1,238,841
EELERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,479,718 1,239,216
FEAE Net assets 1,479,718 1,239,216
Ex EQUITY
OEITE R Issued capital 32 135,778 -
= Reserves 34 1,155,454 1,239,216
B il d= Proposed final dividend 12 188,486 -
1,479,718 1,239,216
il FER
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
EBFE EZE
Director Director

B E R A S Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 E#H4% Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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=%+ =-A=+—H 31 December 2013
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 14 November 2007 under the name of Times
Property (Holdings) Co., Limited as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 of the Cayman lIslands. Pursuant to a special
resolution passed on 24 January 2008, the Company’s
name was changed from Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited to Times Property Holdings Limited. The
registered office address is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were mainly
involved in property development, property leasing and
property management in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
(“Asiaciti”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the ultimate holding company is
Renowned Brand Investments Limited (“Renowned
Brand”), which was incorporated in BVI. Renowned
Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr.
Shum”), the Founder of the Group.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11
December 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Boards Committee and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1

=+ =-HA=-+—8 31 December 2013
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

The consolidated financial statements has been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, certain payables included in
“other payables and accruals” and available-for-sale
investments, which have been measured at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards

- Government Loans

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
12 - Transition Guidance
Amendments
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments
IAS 27 Revised

IAS 28 Revised

IAS 36 Amendments
IFRIC-20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
~ Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in May 2012

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in the consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
[FRS 9, IFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 Amendments IFRS 7 and IAS 39°

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised) - Investment Entities"

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
- Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities*

IAS 32 Amendments

o Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 Cycle
o Annual Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 Cycle

IAS 39 Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Amendments Recognition and Measurement - Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

[FRIC 21 Levies'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new
and revised IFRSs may result in changes in accounting
policies but are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
controlled by the Company and/or its other subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., the existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
the comprehensive income of associates are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in associates are treated as non-current assets and are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
IFRSs. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, certain
payables included in “other payables and accruals” and
available-for-sale investments, at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, properties under development,
completed properties held for sale, prepaid land lease
payments, financial assets, investment properties and
deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made as at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

B4 or
(b) MWZABFEUTEMNBHNE (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
g8 - conditions applies:

(i ZEBERASEARR—& (i) the entity and the Group are members of
B8 the same group;

(i —EEBARE—EEREZ (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
& NRIHEE (K of the other entity (or of a parent,
S—REENE A - K subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
BRAAIXRZRMBAT) entity);

(i) ERERASEHRE-F= (iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
FZaBERE: of the same third party;

(iv) —EEBARFEF-FEEBZ (iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third
EERE ME—HEE entity and the other entity is an associate
BE=ZFEBZ2BE AR of the third entity;
=

(v) ERARAEEFELREH (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
EHECERBREREER plan for the benefit of employees of either
Wz R KR T the Group or an entity related to the
2 Group;

(vi)y BEEX@BEMLz ATE
e L EES - &

(@At z AL HERE
BREEARTENIRER
(REBRA]) cEBEHE
AB -

(vii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings  4.75%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office  19%
equipment
Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited



B AR M ot
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— =

— =

2.4

=+ =-HA=-+—8 31 December 2013

TESTHEEGE (A)

ME- BERRBERITE (A)

ME- BEMRKBER (BRNEER
MEMERSD) REERAEHR L
H A8 o 6 1 BUOR R A B R 25 B 4R 1E
R RRUIBRAEEZCFEERAR
mRERZEMHEXRERD - /E
MEELEMSRAFEERTSHEL
EE

ERTREERNBEENERKE B
RBEFRBREBREZ5 BT RTE -
RABRRZERANERERKARE
A HBERNEERAEA - EEZTRE
RTREAHERE  BEHFOBREY
X -BERERBENORERR -

REME

BREMERBHEEAEE (MIFANE
ESHEERIMBHITHREN) - HE
AEEBBEPHEZ T HREFT 2%
g ZAEMERNBARE (BEXHK
K)FTE - MpHERE  REVERR
REEZY  RRFEHROTR

REMEAABEZESGRMELEZE
@ RFAMEAFEZHFEEER -

WENHEREME Z BTN R
BAHEFEZFABERT TIAER

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold
improvements under construction, which is stated at
cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and buildings
held for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment properties are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leases

Leases, including subleases, where substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets owned
by the Group under operating leases, they are included
in the non-current assets and rentals receivable under
the operating leases derived from lease and sublease
arrangement are credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified as “loans
and receivables”, “held-to-maturity investments” and
“available-for-sale financial investments” during the
years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs
for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the consolidated statement or profit or
loss in other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in other gain or loss, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in other expense. Interest earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit of loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or loans and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, an amount due to a director and
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
represent financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2013 FE K4 Annual Report 2013



2.4 TEETHRBE (&)

THMes (&)

®rETE (&)

HEERE R

AEEHRHOVHEERGRADERFEE
BABEREB L ANGRR R
B MBRERTE AN RELRBHE
HAWLBBNERZAR - BHERE
RVBDEAREBERAREE Lot
HEHEREZABORI SR ANETTH
BoRpBRE  ARERATRE
FRBEREFEVHERAR : (DR T
EHRBNRBEAEMBRA ZRER
e RODMRERZ 2 ER (HE8
F) Rt -

RIEBREMARE
HMEEETHEECHRRBUEXE
i AR IEERERAE -

EHRALRABRA -ERANBEL
RWERER s —RAEERNK X
BAERBEZHFIERBER - RIBEER
BAETHRRSR ARG B ELE
RIAE BERESWIERERS
BRmRPHER -

TR T AR
WERABAITENAEENEERN S
BYTUEE BAERFEEELER
ANEREENGEERAGE  MemEE
MEMBESEREE MFRSEM
BIRRARF T URSE -

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing prepayments
for leasehold land for development for future sale in the
ordinary course of business, are stated at lower of cost
and net realisable value, of which those within normal
operating cycle are classified as current assets, while
those out of the normal operating cycle are classified as
non-current assets.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held
for sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees
and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to be beyond
the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be
incurred in selling the properties.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when all the following
criteria are met:

(a) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the properties are transferred to purchasers;

(b) neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor

effective control over the properties are retained;

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed
properties is recognised upon the signing of the property
handover letter, which is taken to be the point in time
when the risks and rewards of ownership of the property
have been passed to the buyer.

Deposits and installments received in respect of
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Property management fee income is recognised when
the services are rendered and the inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars while
RMB is used as the presentation currency of the
financial statements of the Company for the purpose of
aligning with the presentation currency of the Group.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
operating outside the Mainland China are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
non-PRC entities which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Consolidated financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment properties portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment properties are
properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only if
an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management of the
Group has reviewed the Group’s investment properties
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors have determined
that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale is rebutted.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Cont’d)

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in
respect of the changes in fair value of the investment
properties based on management’s best estimate
assuming future tax consequences through usage of
such properties for rental purpose, rather than through
sale. The final tax outcome could be different from the
deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather than
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over
time. In the event the investment properties are being
disposed of, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon
disposal considering the impact of corporate income tax
and land appreciation tax.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

(a)

PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes
in Mainland China. Due to the fact that certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not
been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimate and judgement based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining the provision
for income taxes to be made. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences
will impact on the income tax and tax provision
in the period in which the differences realise.
Further details are given in notes 10 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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The Group is subject to land appreciation
tax in Mainland China. The provision for land
appreciation tax is based on management’s
best estimates according to its understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual land
appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its land appreciation
tax calculations and payments with the tax
authorities for certain property development
projects.

The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any
differences will impact the land appreciation tax
expenses and the related provision in the period
in which the differences realise. Further details
are given in notes 10 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONT’D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(d)

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of
the properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the
sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by
the Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may
divide the development projects into phases.
Specific costs directly related to the development
of a phase are recorded as the cost of such
phase. Costs that are common to phases are
allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the
related cost allocation is different from the
initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect
the profit or loss in future years.
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3. EREHERMAE (K) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(CONT’D)
At FBREERZ (&) Estimation uncertainty (Cont’'d)
(e) BEVELINABEMNMGS (e) Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

WERMIGRREBEUNEZE In the absence of current prices in an active

AIER  AEBEZERETRRRZ market for similar properties, the Group considers

B B information from a variety of sources, including:

(i) RS - AR R o i B &Y (i) current prices in an active market for
MERERM S ZERE properties of a different nature, condition
BR(EMZEZEELA or location, adjusted to reflect those
) differences:

(i)  EEHBEUYERRNE R (i) recent prices of similar properties on less
Mz ER  WiEDFAE active markets, with adjustments to reflect
DRMBEBEZEERZ any changes in economic conditions since
RPpABZEMEEBER the dates of the transactions that occurred
it & at those prices; and

(i) MWEBERKRESREMIED (i) discounted cash flow projections based
SEHETMBERAN 2BER S on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
mE - HUEFREAHEY supported by the terms of any existing
HEME R 2GR R (A lease and other contracts and (when
ATRE) INMEREZE (W B & possible) by external evidence such as
MAERB 2 EUYMEZE current market rents for similar properties
BmiSHEE)  WERHARKIER in the same location and condition, and
KETHE o using discount rates.

E—PHB(BERETFER2AR Further details, including the key assumptions

BEZEEZRE) AR KR used for fair value measurement, are given in

FAEBMEEL6 note 16 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
the following reportable operating segments:

Development and sale of
properties

(a)  Property
development:
(b)  Property leasing: Property leasing
(including lease of
self-owned properties
and sublease of leased
properties)

(c)  Property
management:

Provision of property
and hotel management
services

(d)  Others: Supermarket operation,
an incidental and
non-core business
of the Group*

# Foshan Zhide Wangu Supermarket Company Limited (8 1L
MEEEAGSBM AR AT, the subsidiary of the Group
operating the supermarket, was disposed of in the first quarter
of 2013. Details of the disposal are set out in note 36 below.

The property development projects undertaken by the
Group during the year are all located in the PRC.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit or loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit
or loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of profits and losses of associates,
as well as head office and corporate income and
expenses are excluded from this measurement.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is
derived solely from its operations in the PRC, and no
non-current assets of the Group are located outside the
PRC.

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited
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— =

4. BEIBEHR (&) OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)
NEEETEEEERIBEE - ?Ef%ﬁﬂ, Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax
Mo XBRHRITER BekBes prepayments, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash
MREMADENBIREEEE equivalents and other unallocated head office and
REBEDEREETUERE o corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.
NEBEITEREEANA  ELEHIBEE Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred
B FTERRITERREMMERAREA tax liabilities, interest-bearing bank loans and other
Ao BEBREXaE BiEaRE borrowings, and other unallocated head office and
DEREETUER - corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
FR BEREBE—INLELPRIZIHK During the year, no revenue from transactions with a
AEAREBEBRAL10% I £ - single external customer amounted to 10% or more of
the Group’s total revenue.
L/ ESE MERE MEEE
BE-E-—=& Year ended Property Property Property Hitr @gt
+ZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2013 development leasing  management Others Total
ANRETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2EWA Segment revenue
INBEPIHE Sales to external customers 9,443,320 154,412 97,003 - 9,694,735
DEEE Segment results 1,707,737 30,856 4,990 676 1,744,259
HER Reconciliation:
FIEWA Interest income 9,574
AOEMTCES R Unallocated corporate expense (48,368)
BB Finance costs (87,706)
i AN = Share of profits and losses of
associates 2,371
7% /i1 ) Profit before tax 1,620,130
PHEE Segment assets 18,540,619 2,185,019 20,876 - 20,746,514
HER Reconciliation:
AOBHEE Unallocated assets 4,093,264
BEERE Total assets 24,839,778
SHEE Segment liabilities 11,506,794 247,485 52,384 - 11,806,663
AOENEE Unallocated liabilities 9,024,694
BERH Total liabilities 20,831,357
HipHEn Other segment information
e Depreciation (14,529) (40,853) (266) - (55,648)
BEMENDR Fair value gains on investment
BEKZE properties - 42,000 - = 42,000
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4. BEZRER (HF)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

VE e MERE MEER
BE-Z-——-% Year ended Property Property Property Hi st
+-A=+—HIFEE 31 December 2012 development leasing  management Others Total
ANREFIT AREFTT AREFT ANREFT ANREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DHBRA Segment revenue
MR FIEE Sales to external customers 3,090,787 38,423 67,932 - 3,197,142
PBEE Segment results 528,405 133,296 (7,996) - 653,705
HEE Reconciliation:
Fl8MA Interest income 21,376
AOBEHNESH Unallocated corporate expense (11,608)
BE YA Finance costs (42,055)
iR NIk Share of profits and losses of
associates 5
B 352 A1 1B Profit before tax 621,423
TEHEE Segment assets 17,153,558 1,903,369 10,419 10,028 19,077,374
HEE Reconciliation:
FOEMEE Unallocated assets 3,008,234
BERE Total assets 22,085,608
ITHEE Segment liabilities 11,437,046 112,922 34,603 6,161 11,590,732
AOENEE Unallocated liabilities 7,288,763
afesE Total liabilities 18,879,495
Hinp &R Other segment information
e Depreciation (16,142) (217) (95) - (16,454)
WEYERNA R BB Fair value gains on investment
properties - 110,000 - - 110,000

2013 FE#HE Annual Report 2013 BRI EZRR AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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5. WA~ Efblt A Rz

WA (MBAKENERE) HFFANHEE
MERGHELRE SR EEKNEE
WARBARMEEREEEA (0K
EBREMME) -

AEBBEA - EMUA KWz / 2

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the gross proceeds from the sale of properties, gross
rental income received and receivables and property
management fee income, net of business tax and
surcharges during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

™ gains is as follows:
—E—=f B4
2013 2012
k=3 AR#FT ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
A Revenue
MEEE Sale of properties 9,443,320 3,090,787
KBTS IEN Gross rental income from:
el ALz
HEEEME lease of self-owned properties 40,112 38,423
IR EYE sublease of leased properties 114,300 -
MEEREIA Property management fee income 97,003 67,932
9,694,735 3,197,142
Habug A Other income
;RITH B A Bank interest income 6,435 9,055
E bR B HA Other interest income 3,139 12,321
HAh Others 18,027 9,037
27,601 30,413
W FEEE Gains, net
W ES I B~ B 2 Wk Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 35(A)(i) 7,685 -
mEKB AR E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36 1,414 -
REYENRLBEKS Fair value gains on investment
properties 16 42,000 110,000
FISEFEIR IR R S N EYE T EM  Fair value changes in certain other
JENRIEAREENES payables to a non-controlling
shareholder 30(a)(i) - (2,144)
51,099 107,856
78,700 138,269
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6. BR®AIFE

AEENBRBAABEEME S (GEA) T

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

H|&IE - (crediting):
—EBE—=fF T
2013 2012
Bia AR¥TFr AEHTFIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B HEERAR Cost of properties sold 7,201,640 2,212,941
RSN EMEZEE Direct operating expenses (including
LERY (BREEERRR) repairs and maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment properties 3,922 4,084
HHEER s B SERT Direct operating expenses (including
(BERe MEEDME rental and depreciation of leasehold
T E) improvements) arising on
the subleasing business 69,674 -
IREMESEBRE 2 KA Cost of property management
service provided 81,140 69,494
e Depreciation 14 55,648 16,454
WEMERRBENE Changes in fair value of investment
properties 16 (42,000) (110,000)
M IRAR B L AHEE T E 4 Changes in fair value of certain other
JERRIBE AR BENE payables to a non-controlling
shareholder 30(a)(i) = 2,144
1% £ R 3577 Auditors’ remuneration 3,588 2,348
BTRAAZ (T8 Employee benefit expense (excluding
EEHM (WE8)) directors’ remuneration (note 8))
e Wages and salaries 229,223 96,210
RINEETEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 13,039 9,690
Vo PR E 2 EAR{LEE Less: Amount capitalised in properties
under development (148,894) (50,523)
93,368 55,377
NNV 3c0) Minimum lease payments under
HEYHEZELEHE operating leases regarding office
=IEMEEFE premises and leased properties for
the subleasing business 81,318 3,893
ERIRELENED (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of
CRE#E ), R#iE completed properties held for sale 21 (1,665) 1,665
TEAFIE - e REA Reversal of impairment of
JE UG IE R R EE O prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (1,000) -
HEWE WMELRMEIEBH  Loss on disposal of items of property,
518 plant and equipment 34 658
U B BT B8 R B U 2 Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 35(A)(i) (7,685) -

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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7. BMERKAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
—_E—= —E—-—F
2013 2012
AR¥ T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FBEFAX Interest expense 612,016 488,296
B BEARERE Less: Interest capitalised (524,310) (446,241)
87,706 42,055

8. EEHM

RREBBAEXIMBERAFAINES
EFRRAEFERRGIFELICLGEE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of

ZERFHMT - the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
—E—=F —E-—F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 60 _
HEie - Other emoluments:
e EMEEYANE Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 7,046 6,629
FRIEMOTEAL Performance-related bonuses 13,451 571
RIREFHEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 73 49
20,570 7,249
20,630 7,249
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8. EEHM (&) 8.

(a) BUFHITES
FREXNTHEIFNTESEZ

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONT’'D)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

w|aEmr directors during the year were as follows:
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR FT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREZ L Ms. Sun Hui 20 _
PREAME ST Mr. Lin Rupeng 20 _
BENXEE Mr. Wong Wai Man 20 _
60 -

FRAABEMMES BB EL
HPTESF (ZFT——F: &)

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2012: Nil).
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8. EEHM (&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONT'D)
(b) BITEES (b)  Executive directors
e 2R RE#HN EREFE
ENFE 4 H®3 Foh
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Performance Pension scheme
in kind related bonuses contributions Total
ABEFT AEEFT AEEFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BZ-Z-=H+-A=+t—-H  Year ended 31 December 2013
HEE
BEk s Mr. Shum 1,968 4,887 8 6,863
HEELE Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,324 1,864 13 3,201
BEREE Mr. Bai Xihong 1,323 2,601 13 3,937
£ P Mr. Li Qiang 962 2,276 13 3,251
B E Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 962 1,214 13 2,189
BERNRE Mr. Niu Jimin 507 609 13 1,129
7,046 13,451 73 20,570
e 2R KM EREETE
Bz TE4L "R st
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HEZZE——F+=-F=1+—H Year ended 31 December 2012
HEE
il Mr. Shum 1,864 160 4 2,028
BEELL Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,260 108 9 1,377
SEpS S Mr. Bai Xihong 1,278 108 9 1,395
e Mr. Li Qiang 900 78 9 987
Bk E Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 895 78 9 982
4ERRE Mr. Niu Jimin 432 39 9 480
6,629 571 49 7,249

FAMBEETREXARBE AR
ERAFMOZH (T ——F:
&) o

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).
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9. ¥FMESHNEREES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FR FHERHNAZEERRENAE The five highest paid individuals during the year
F(ZE——ZF  =Z%EF) 2EF== included four directors (2012: three directors), details of
ZHMFBEHINAR LM ES e FA whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
Fep—BFHNEamIEEST (ZE—= of the remuneration of the remaining one non-director
F MAFEESZ) BEZEHEMNFBE DR (2012: two non-directors), highest paid employees

mr during the year, respectively, are as follows:

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥T T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e R REMA =S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 933 1,847
RIBEMATEA Performance-related bonuses 2,036 156
RIS FTEIHE K Pension scheme contributions 13 18
2,982 2,021

10.

Rer—2FHERNFESE (ZFT—=
F MEFES) BEZFHEENF
AR¥2,000,0017tE AR%3,000,000
7TI:O

FriSBipA <

AEBERBEBEERELSIRN AL
BERERAMBREEMEREEER
ZHBHEAAEN REFASHS R
BEBRESRNERN  NEEE
B (MRHASESLABEBE RS
FAL) BFEHANETAAEHR - ARAE
ERAFREYEBERBELTMETK
A B RS EEARTEBANMEHR -

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

10.

The remuneration of the remaining one (2012: two non-
directors) non-director highest paid employee fell within
the band of RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and BVI, the entities of the Group
which incorporated in the Cayman Islands and BVI are
not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have
any assessable income arising in Hong Kong during the
year.

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited
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10. FrE®imxx (&) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)
PEEEMEH PRC corporate income tax

REEPBETEMEHR ([REMBHR])
MEMNBRTER  2BRES  AER
FEAMKEXEBNEEMBHERSE
F JE Pl R B FE AR AR B DASE A B R A

sets
= o
>t

B BN B B - R R AR TR S R R AR 3R (O
ERMEL7) W AREERBEAME
B E M I B R )5 E A 25 % H Fh E
EERMABHBME -

BENIRE - fREMREERARODE
PrEEzEE LR - RS A
#2.5% B -

HE i I E B
RE-NWANF - —BAEMHN (R E
ARKME L BERETHED) & —
AMNWEF-AZ+EBRERNCREA
RAMBE T 12 ERE T IROIEEAR)
MEFR EPBEHEREREA L HE
RENREFREH —RA (BEEY
RZFERERANEKRAY  BRES
RARMERZEH) HERN F L
KE{E30% £60%H) RAHE B RGN £ b 1F
B WERSEETENEEIESESR
AT IA R #F20% - B EEER
ERREM -

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for each of the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang Shengxin and
Fogang Bairui (as defined in Note 17), other subsidiaries
of the Group operating in Mainland China are subject to
the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25%.

Corporate income tax for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang
Shengxin and Fogang Bairui is levied on a deemed basis
on a rate of 2.5% of their respective revenue amounts.

PRC land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT") (R ARFEFE T IZERE TP effective
from 1 January 1994 and the Detailed Implementation
Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT
(FEARAME + IR ERGTIRAIE A effective
from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or
transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings in
the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including borrowing costs and
property development expenditures) is subject to LAT
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (&
BIZYE(EE) if their appreciation values do not exceed
20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013



10. FREHAX (&)

hE LI ER (&)

FAAKERERETBEREEEZX
AT EL AR E fA AT L B E TR 1F R
e BRI HRBRENEERNYEFARA
BRTREFGHEET MK
BEM TR ERKEFTE T IEER
BEMEENEEFMEA -

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

PRC land appreciation tax (Cont’d)

During the year, the Group estimated and made
provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth
in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the LAT determined by the tax authorities
might be different from the basis on which the provision
for LAT is calculated.

—E—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
k=3 AR¥FT ARMF T
Note RMB'000 RMB'000

BIER : Current:
R EER PRC CIT 490,815 118,185
LI ER LAT 244,216 123,168
EE Deferred 19 (88,831) 26,422
FEMRBES N B Total tax charge for the year 646,200 267,775

2013 FE#H% Annual Report 2013 Wi EZRERA Times Property Holdings Limited
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10. FREHAX (&) 10.

18 FOATE B R 5t E B9 BR BRI AUB &9 5@ A
MERTERERREAENR AR
ZHRMERRE (ALEEMRE) BER
MR ZHRWOT -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit before tax using the statutory tax rate to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation
of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the
effective tax rate, are as follows:

—EFE—= —E-_F
2013 2012
AR¥ T % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
B 758 A1 1) P Profit before tax 1,620,130 621,423
¥ BA T R Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate
STEZHIE 405,033 25.0 155,356 25.0
HTFRARRME Effect of different income tax
T EREIE 2 £ regimes of certain companies 2,822 0.2 15 -
EEET WA Income not subject to tax (1,921) (0.1) - -
Ta[ I 2 = H Expenses not deductible for tax 14,702 0.9 14,359 2.3
+ b 3% (E i B Provision for LAT 244,216 15.1 123,168 19.8
THIEER 2 Tax effect of LAT
Nia -7 (61,054) (3.8) (30,792) (5.0)
FEER 2 TIAEE Tax losses not recognised 14,483 0.9 3,632 0.6
FE(EEEE N F]E R Profits and losses attributable to
associates (593) = (1) -
BB AR RS A Withholding taxes on
AMEZ B undistributed profits of the
subsidiaries in the PRC 28,512 1.8 2,038 0.3
BAREEZ BEME Tax charge at the Group’s
STE MBS effective rate 646,200 40.0 267,775 43.0
11. XRATHEBAESERE 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

Bz Z2—=%+_-_A=+—81t#F
B ARBHEBABLESEEFNBEREE
BARMK15913,0007T (=& — 4 :
AR®1,844,00070) * ZEHREEH A
KRB BHRE (HIE34) -

OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013 includes a loss of RMB15,913,000 (2012:
RMB1,844,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34).
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12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
RZE—=ZFRNARNEEZZE—=ZF On 6 June 2013 and 16 September 2013, dividends
NWA+ARB AR BRANERES of RMB442,428,000 and approximately US$70.2
FRETSHREIRARKAL2,428,000 million (equivalent to RMB431,485,000 approximately)
TTRA7T02CEEET (HEROARK were respectively declared by the Company out of its
431,485,0007T) KRR B - A E R Sk distributable reserves to Asiaciti. Such dividends were
BEHEGAERRNRNEINETEIEE K - subsequently used to set off the current accounts with

Asiaciti.
EEgREREHE_T—=F1+=A The board of directors recommended the payment of a
T+ —HIEFENRHAREERARKE final dividend of RMB10.94 cents per share for the year
10949 (ZT—Z%F : &) - ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).
AFEENEZARARBAFARARE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject
REERFBEFRE LHE - SAEER - to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. AR AIEEEEEETA 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

FEiEEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
BRERZFIIBERARA L BERR The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
BAEEFBLFABZEITRM M the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
e 15 $01,315,822,000 (=& — = Company and the weighted average number of shares of
£ :1,292,220,0000%) 5t& 1,315,822,000 (2012: 1,292,220,000) in issue during
the year.
EREABHNER T RIEFE The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR#FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EZF Earnings
KRR L RmE=SEE ARG Profit attributable to ordinary equity
A BETESRELRAFT] holders of the Company, used in the
basic earnings  per share calculation 987,022 362,916
HE =N ZE——F+-_H= The weighted average numbers of shares in issue

+— Etiﬁaé’éﬂﬂxfﬁmﬂu%ﬂ?iﬂ%&
ThRE B T HD A1,292,220,0008%
AFE MR —_ZE—=F+=-A+—H
MMELREERBETMARBRMOEER
P F B AN BT EN1,292,219,7990% A% 17
(I&AR{b377]) (K7E32(a)) EEEZ
HER N BBEITIEIN ©
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during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
are based on the assumption that 1,292,220,000 shares
were in issue as if the 1,292,219,799 shares issued by
capitalisation of share premium account for allotment
and issue to Asiaciti on 11 December 2013 (the
“Capitalisation Issue”) (note 32(a)) were outstanding
throughout the entire periods presented.
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13. X Aa|EBRESEEAEMN 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREF (&) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (CONT'D)
ZERNMETEHH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
—E-= —ET-—F
2013 2012
Fig FhE
’000 ‘000
BIEE ML EEITHE TR Shares issued pursuant to
Capitalisation Issue 1,292,220 1,292,220
R-ZZEE—=F+_A+—HRJE Effect of shares issued upon global
PR ERITRMDOTE offering on 11 December 2013 23,602 -
LB AR A DN T 2L Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,315,822 1,292,220

R AREREHE S —=FK -_FT—
T+ AZ+t—HILFEWES R
MBTH SRR WY EREEY
FIERZETENTRERBFELF
= .

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years.
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14. % - BERKE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rxE Group
B #E
HEt#R  HEWE  REAZ
BT %1% B BE HBIE @t
Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures
land and improve-  and office Motor Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ABBTLE AREFT ARETZT ABETT AREFT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
“E-=%+-A=+-H 31 December 2013
XA : Cost:
WZZ-=F-A—-H At 1 January 2013 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494,410
HE Additions - 203,277 13,447 6 43,597 260,327
BEHBAR (#:236) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) - - (4,499) (122) - (4,621)
He& Disposals - (1,525) (1,498) (979) - (4,002)
[EE Transfer - 210,225 - - (210,225) -
RZE-=F+_A At 31 December 2013
=t-A 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
ZHIE ! Accumulated depreciation:
R-E-=F-8—-H At 1 January 2013 5,488 14,699 28,134 13,153 - 61,474
TEEHEC RN Depreciation provided during
e the year 189 41,879 10,205 3,375 - 55,648
LENBAR (#:236) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) = = (1,275) (35) = (1,310)
He Disposals - (2,291) (1,124) (89) - (3,504)
RZZ-=%+-A At 31 December 2013
=+-H 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 - 112,308
R Net carrying amount: 20,910 486,444 32,461 11,857 82,134 633,806

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

14. W% - BENRRKRE (&)

AEE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)

Group (Cont’d)

il KB
BETHE  HEWE  REAE
BF RE HiE E hRIR @t
Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures
land and improve-  and office Motor - Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
NREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
—E--#+-B=+-H 31 December 2012
KA Cost:
WZE-—F—-f—H At 1 January 2012 26,587 17,523 46,323 24421 - 114,854
AE Additions - 6,137 8,020 3,634 - 17,791
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(H1i23508) (i) (note 35(A)iii) - 105,094 6,670 2,748 248,762 363,274
HeE Disposals - - (62) (1,447) - (1,509)
RZB-—F+-f At 31 December 2012
=ft-H 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494,410
ZEHHE Accumulated depreciation:
WZE——F—-F—H At 1 January 2012 3311 11,958 18,225 8,487 - 41,981
TEEERERENTE Depreciation provided during
the year 2,177 2,741 7872 3,664 - 16,454
WEEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(B354 ) i) (note 35(A)iii) - - 2,091 1,733 - 3,824
HE Disposals - - (54) (731) - (785)
RZB-—F+-f At 31 December 2012
=ft-H 5,483 14,699 28,134 13,153 - 61,474
REEE: Net carrying amount: 21,099 114,055 32,817 16,203 248,762 432,936
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14. % - BENRRKRE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT’D)
NN Company
RE
Motor
vehicles
ABREFT
RMB’000
—E-=f+=A=+—H 31 December 2013
AN Cost:
R-Z—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 493
HE Disposals (13)
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2013 480
Z2EHTE Accumulated depreciation:
NZE—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 118
AFEEHEEBENTE Depreciation provided during the year 1
e Disposals =
RZE—=F+="A=+—H At 31 December 2013 119
BRTEFRE - Net carrying amount: 361
—_E—-—_—+=-HA=+—8 31 December 2012
AR Cost:
R-ZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 498
He Disposals (5)
RNZE——F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2012 493
2FHE Accumulated depreciation:
RZE——F—HF—H At 1 January 2012 24
NEEHEEBENITE Depreciation provided during the year 95
e Disposals (1)
R-_E——F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2012 118
IREVFEE - Net carrying amount: 375

2013 FE#HE Annual Report 2013 Bt EER AR A S Times Property Holdings Limited
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

15. AN L EERE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E-=F —TCF

2013 2012

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REYINERB 5 Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,494,902 1,629,130

FENE Additions during the year 698,229 228,791

1 B B B R ) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(B1a#35(B)() ~ (ii)) (notes 35(B)(i), (ii)) 306,263 -
EERERERE Transferred to properties under

development (358,039) (363,019)

RERNEMEEE Carrying amount at end of year 2,141,355 1,494,902

B REN S Less: Current portion (755,881) (265,813)

MBI D Non-current portion 1,385,474 1,229,089

HEL AR FEAMERRAEER
B BIRSHAMG B IHS
% REHRCEBEERBEHYE -

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and
is held under a long term lease, construction on which
has not yet commenced. Balances will be transferred

to properties under development when construction

commences.

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H FEES
AR L) B AREE25 300,000 (==
— — . AR #¥228,640,0007T) &
FTAEEHEMMEEER - UEER
FAREEMEITER (H7E31c)) »

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013

Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB25,300,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB228,640,000) have been pledged to secure bank
loans granted to the Group (note 31(c)).



16. BEWHE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
Bt AR¥ T AR TFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REYR R E 5 58 Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,540,000 1,430,000
AR EBEARME FE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 5 42,000 110,000
RERNERE 5 Carrying amount at end of year 1,582,000 1,540,000

AEBZREMELRPEANM B RSP
HHERA REVEIERBELH
EZHBEETE=T7 EZFHBEARK
BB mEMEIN) ©

R-_E—=%+_A=+—8  x&HE
ZEREYMERABUYAEREEHEMA
RIRERTERARENHEAARE
1,582,000,000c (Z &2 ——%F: AR
#1,540,000,0007T) ° NEE 2 B 548
ESTRTUEZE—RBIIEGHEMAE
EHAEEMEETIINEGE  BERZ
EBREMSNG B2 BILIUERESR
HREFEKE - KEE M BEERR
A ERERE METHERNEZGEMRT
HEBRELAGELERETEHS RZ_F
— =N _ETE——"HF+_-_A=+—H8"
REBCREMECERT - LEER
FTAEBEMRITER R E A AR (M 5E
31(c))

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

The Group’s investment properties are situated in
Mainland China and held under medium term. The
investment properties are mainly leased to third parties
under operating lease arrangements, further details of
which are included in note 39(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2013 at RMB1,582,000,000 (2012:
RMB1,540,000,000) by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers. Each year, the Group’s chief financial officer
decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for
financial reporting. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
investment properties of the Group were pledged to secure
the bank loans and other borrowings granted to the Group
(note 31(c)).
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

16. REWE (&)

N,

/N BEE &K

NR_E—=FR_F——F+_A=+
—H  AEBNYERENDAABEE
BAERTUERH ABETZE (F3E) -

b
i

WA R - B1ERB2E 2 M
AREEFEEERLEA R EEGE
AR L EIE -

REMENHEDRBERLEOEALZ
AR ELRMHEERMER

IR EWEBENSHEAHAMED
BRI T -

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, fair values of the
Group’s investment properties were measured using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The valuations of investment properties were arrived
at with the adoption of Direct Comparison Method by
making reference to the comparable sale prices in the
relevant locality.

Below is a summary of the range of significant input to
the valuation of investment properties:

EXFAEE gE Significant Range
BARE (MAEF) unobservable input (weighted average)
TE MHEMHEEER 76,000-99,000 Retail  Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m) 76,000-99,000
(BEARARET) (40,000-80,000) (40,000-80,000)
R MEEUHER 28,000-33,000 Office  Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m) 28,000-33,000
(BEARARET) (27,500) (27,500)
BE TIBEMHER 330,000-400,000 Car  Market unit sale rate 330,000-400,000
(B1E=m) (400,000) Parking  (Per one space) (400,000)

17. RMBARKKRE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

VNN Company

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥F T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHTEB A BRI E* Investments in subsidiaries* - -

FARRBRBEER RS BENE
WEEAHBAR ZREI N AEAR
#1,356,235,0007T (= & — — £
A R #922,852,000T) & A R &
116,133,000 (ZZE—Z—F : AR®
117,867,0007t) » hEEE - 28 B

RBEREERE -

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current liabilities
of RMB1,356,235,000 (2012: RMB922,852,000)
and RMB116,133,000 (2012: RMB117,867,000),
respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand.
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17. RMBARMNKRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
AnaE (&) Company (Cont’d)
MEARZFFBOT : Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
KAREEAES
ERE
SMEY BIR BB/ &M Percentage of equity
EENBERAS RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
218 establishment and registered =g BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BHREBRDF (Wit(a) RBRBRAE 3ET 100 - RAER
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited (note (a)) ~ —ZEAREF US$3 Investment holding
ZAZt+ZH
BVI
22 March 2006
Million Sensor Management Limited (#/i£(a) — RBHEFEREHE IE - 100 HREZR
Million Sensor Management Limited (note (a)) T+ % US$1 Investment holding
Gzl il =
BVI
25 May 2007
Grand Highway International Ltd. (#/5#(a)) RBRBRES I - 100 HREAZR
Grand Highway International Ltd. (note (a)) ZEEHFENATZH Us$1 Investment holding
BVI
13 September 2007
Venus Tower Limited (#7£(2)) EBEHAREE I - 100 #®AER
Venus Tower Limited (note (a)) e S US$1 Investment holding
AAZ+—H
BVI
21 September 2007
2R (B8) #RERAR ([ER]) (Wite) &BE 900,000/ - 100 #HEER
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited —NWNZF HK$900,000 Investment holding
("Wah Tai") (note (a)) FAZTNA
Hong Kong
28 May 1992

2013 FE#H% Annual Report 2013 Wi EZRERA Times Property Holdings Limited
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RMBARNIRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

N7 (&) Company (Cont’d)

NCIE 2N
EREM
BERMRYRIR BT/ ER Percentage of equity
BENBERAS RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EERRREBRAR ([FARARE]) 0 10,000% 7T - 100 ®REZR
(Kidt(a) —TTTF HK$10,000 Investment holding
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited ZA-+tmH
("Hong Kong Times Investments”) Hong Kong
(note (a)) 24 March 2000
EREERRERARLA ([£EER)) 0 10,000% ¢ - 100 ®REZR
(W) —“EETFTANA HK$10,000 Investment holding
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development Hong Kong
Limited (“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a)) 4 QOctober 2000
B ERR AR ([R]) BE 61,782,69178 T - 100 REZR
(Hiit(a) —WNZF HK$61,782,691 Investment holding
Profit City Investment Limited mA-+=8
("Profit City") (note (a)) Hong Kong
23 April 1992
ENTRRnESEERAR ((RREE]) PR/ RER 83,000,000 T - 100 MERERREER
Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd. —ZE-FHANA US$83,000,000 Property development
(“Times Group") PRC/Mainland China and investment holding
9 May 2001
ENTERCEHEREERAR R /BN ARE - 100 #®EER
([BREOEME ) (i) “TTRF=-At+H 250,000,0007T Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real PRC/Mainland China RMB250,000,000
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. 17 March 2005
("Times Real Estate") (note (a))
BNTRRBEREBRAR mE/RER ARH - 100 MEFRERREER
(TEMBE]) (W) “ETRFNA=1H 120,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Times Shengyu PRC/Mainland China RMB120,000,000 and investment holding

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Guangzhou Shengyu") (note (a))

30 April 2005

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited

2013 FE K4 Annual Report 2013



17. RMBARANWKRE (&)

AT ()

17.

Company (Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

KAREBAELR
BRE
BRI RIK BT/ &R Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
48 establishment and registered =g BiE FEEE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERERBERHERZERAR hE /RN AR% - 100 #MERZ
([EXRBE]) (M) “EERFRATNA 80,000,0007T Property development
Guangdong Times Shengyu Real PRC/Mainland China RMB&0,000,000
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 2006
("Guangdong Shengyu") (note (a))
WEPHRELRERRAA ([REHRHK]) hE /RN AE% - 100 MEmAE
(Wizt(a) ZTERF 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century =RA-tNE RMB10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Zhuhai Zhongzhu") (note (a)) 28 March 2006
BETTREBRAR ([HREF]) hE /RN AE® - 100 #MERZ
(W) “EELF-AfNAH 5,000,0007T Property development
Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
("Fogang Guanheng”) (note (a)) 19 January 2007
BLTHREEHEREABAT HE /BN ARH - 100  #ERE
([BLB=E]) (K@) ZEECF 32,000,0007T Property development
Foshan Yudonglong Real —AZ+=H RMB32,000,000
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Foshan Yudonglong”) (note (a)) 22 January 2002
ENTREEHEERAR ((BMRE]) P8/ hER AE% - 100 xR
(Wizt(a) —“NWNEERARA 364,307,750 Property development
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB364,307,750
("Guangzhou Minhua") (note (a)) 5 April 1994
BEEMKERRIRERAT ([HRE w8/ RN AR 3,000,0007T - 100 EBRHERMERE
(Bt (a) e N = RMB3,000,000 Landscape virescence and

Fogang Shengxin Water and
Electricity Garden Engineering Co., Ltd.
(“Fogang Shengxin”) (note (a))

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

PRC/Mainland China
13 September 2007

property decoration
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—ET—=%-+=-HA=-+—H 31 December 2013

— =

17. RMBARKEE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
N7 (&) Company (Cont’d)
KATREBAELR
EREM
BRI RIK BT/ ER Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRERRATRERAR ([HRHE%]) R/ RER AR ¥3,000,0007 - 100 #MEEE
(Kidt(a) - g RMB3,000,000 Property decoration
Fogang Bairui Decoration NAZ+NH
Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Bairui") (note (a)) 28 September 2007
PRI E X BRAR ([FRLsHE]) R/ RER AEH - 100 #MERZ
(W) “EE+FRATHA 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
("Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (note (a)) 15 May 2007
BLTRERREERNEREERAR hE /R EN AEE - 100 ¥Rz
(TBRILEERE]) (i) ZEELFLARA 30,000,0007T Property development
Foshan Nanhai Times PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Shengyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 6 July 2007
("Foshan Nanhai Shengyu") (note (a))
REERBEREFRAA ([HRBE]) hE /R EN AEE - 100 #EHZ
(W) “TEMF 30,000,000 Property development
Fogang Times Real Estate =f=1t-8H RMB30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Real Estate”) (note (a)) 31 March 2004
ENRARHMEREERAT R /BN AEH - 100 #EEE
(TBM=RD) (K@) —N=F 111,075,800 Property leasing
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate +-R=+-H RMB111,075,800
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Donghe") (note (a)) 31 December 1993
ENTRERMGCERRR ([EMRED) R /R EN AE 3,500,000 - 100  SEHI(L
(Hiz(a) “ZZ+5-ATH RMB3,500,000 Landscape architecture
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Ruixian") (note (a)) 5 January 2007

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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17. RMBARANWKRE (&)

AT ()

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

Company (Cont’d)

KAREBAELR
BRE
BRI RIK BT/ &R Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
48 establishment and registered =g BiE FEEE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HETRREEREBRAR ((KEEE]) hE /RN ARE - 100 MER%E
(Wizt(a) “EEEFEAT-H 50,000,0007T Property development
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
("Zhuhai Fengzhuo") (note (a)) 11 July 2007
BESRAREREERAR ([HREKE]) hE /BN ARE - 100 ¥R
(Wizt(a) ZEE\F-A+—H 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Fogang Times Yongsheng PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 11 January 2008
("Fogang Yongsheng") (note (a))
BEFEEXZEREALA ([BEFE]) /BN ARE - 100 #ERZ
(Wizt(a) ZEELF 8,000,000 Property development
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development +-A=t+NH RMBS8,000,000
Limited Liability Company PRC/Mainland China
(“Fogang Zhongyi") (note (a)) 29 December 2007
BLUT=KEFHEERRERAR hE /BN ARE - 100 #ERZ
([BpiazE ) (i) —TERF\ANA 48,000,000 Property development
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 4 August 2005
("Foshan Yuhua") (note (a))
BNTRANEERERAT e/ R ER AR® - 100 #HEER
([ERIEER]) (Wita) —NANE 5,500,0007T Property management
Guangzhou Times Property +-A+NE RMBb,500,000
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Times Property Management”) (note (a)) 18 December 1998
ENSREEREERAR ((KAER]) hE /BN ARE - 70 MERE
(H1it(a) ZEENFLAT=H 10,010,0007¢ Property development
Guangzhou Times Hengde PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Times Hengde") (note (a))

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

13 July 2009
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17. RMBARKEE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)
N7 (&) Company (Cont’d)
NCIE 2N
EREM
BRI RIK BT/ ER Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BMmERXGHABRAR ((BMRR]) R/ RER AEH - 100 ®REZR
(W) “EENFAAZA 10,010,000t Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Tianyi PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000
Consulting Co., Ltd. 2 June 2009

("Guangzhou Tianyi") (note (a))

EMTEDREBRAA ([EMES]) FE /R ER AR - 100 ¥R

(W) ZEENF 11,000,0007¢ Property development
Guangzhou Huaya Investment Co., Ltd. NA=F+—H RMB11,000,000

("Guangzhou Huaya") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China

31 August 2009

BRGEERERAREEBRAT PR/ RER ARE - 100 EEex
(THRRERE ) (M) - g 100,0007T Dormant
Fogang Xinlong Investment ~NAZt+H RMB100,000
Consulting Services Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Xinlong") (note (a)) 27 June 2007
BEEBEREAARBERAA R/ RER ARE - 100 EEex
(THRRE R (M) “EEEFNATER 100,0007C Dormant
Fogang Runxin Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000
Consulting Services Co., Ltd. 17 September 2007

("Fogang Runxin”) (note (a))

BNTERRERREBRAR ([EMER]) e/ REN AEH - 100 #ER%

(K@) —E-TF-A+WA 35,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongtai PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000

Investment Co., Ltd. 14 January 2010

("Guangzhou Hongtai") (note (a))

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013



17. RMBARANWKRE (&)

AT ()

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

Company (Cont’d)

KAREBAELR
BRE
BRI RIK BT/ &R Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
48 establishment and registered =g BiE FEEE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ENTERREAERAR ((BMEFH]) hE /RN NG - 100 #MERZ
(Wizt(a) ZTENF 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. +A=-t++A RMB10,000,000
("Guangzhou Fujie") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
27 QOctober 2009
FRMARREAERAR (TBRRR]) hE /RN ARE - 100 #MERZ
(Wizt(a) “E-ZF-A+H 30,000,0007T Property development
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
("Qingyuan Rongjing") (note (a)) 10 February 2010
FEMEREHERRAR (ERERE]) /BN ARE - 100 ¥Rz
(Wizt(a) ZE-TF=-A+ZH 5,000,000t Property development
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMBb,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 12 March 2010
("Qingyuan Xilong") (note (a))
RLTEBEHEREERAR hE /BN ARE - 100 #ERZ
([h LB (Hita) “ERHFERATNA 45,000,0007 Property development
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB45,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 2007
("Zhongshan Wanlian") (note (a))
RmAREHEREBR AT FE/ HEA NG - 100 Mm%
(TR (@) “E-TF=A+H 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 10 March 2010
("Zhongshan Tianyue") (note (a))"
ENTHREREERAR ((BMEE]) /BN ARE - 70 ®EER
(Wizt(a) —E-ZF+ANR 10,010,000t Investment holding
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000

("Guangzhou Junbao”) (note (a))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RMBRARANKRE (&)

AT ()

17.

Company (Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

KATREBAELR
EREM
BRI RIK BT/ ER Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ENTERESERAR ([BMER]) R/ RER AEH - 0 gEEE
(W) —E-%F 1,000,000 Dormant
Guangzhou Haorong Trading Co., Ltd. +A=1+—H RMB1,000,000
("Guangzhou Haorong") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
21 QOctober 2010
EMAAEEBR AR ([BMNA)) R/ RER AEH - 70 MERE
(W) “E-TF+A+HA 50,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
(“Guangzhou Tianlang") (note (a)) 15 July 2010
ENTEERAEHERRLT R /R EN AEE - 99 MR
(TEMNER]) (HH6)! —WNWZFENARA 350,000,000t Property development
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000
Property Co., Ltd. 6 August 1992
("Guangzhou Nanying") (note (a))!
ENTRRKRREGRAT R /BN AEH - 100 HREZR
(TENMXR]) (W) —E——F 11,000,0007¢ Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Yongtai ~NAZT=H RMB11,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Yongtai") (note (a)) 22 June 2011
ENTRERMERAR ((BMXE]) R /BN AEE - 100 ¥Rz
(Hist(a) —E-TF\RZAH 51,000,000 Property development
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction PRC/Mainland China RMB51,000,000
Material Co., Ltd. 3 August 2010
("Guangzhou Tianhe") (note (a))
ENTEHESERAR ((BNEH]) R /R EN AEE - 100 Emzx
(W) —T——F 10,000,0007¢ Dormant
Guangzhou Fengdu Trading Co., Ltd. +—-A=t+-H RMB10,000,000

("Guangzhou Fengdu”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
21 November 2011

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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17. RMBATINERE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
w7 (&) Company (Cont’d)
KAREBAELR
BRE
BRI RIK BT/ &R Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
48 establishment and registered =g BiE FEEE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ENTERESERAT ([EMESH]) hE /RN AE% - 100 HEAZR
(Wiita)* —F——F 10,000,0007¢ Investment holding
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. +—RZ+t—H RMB10,000,000
("Guangzhou Zhuorui”) (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
21 November 2011
ENTREREREREGRAF hE /RN AR% - 100 #MERZ
([BNER]) (W) “E-—H+A=H 10,000,000t Property development
Guangzhou Times Zichen PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 3 July 2012
("Guangzhou Zichen") (note (a))
ERESEXERERLAA ([EREE]) hE /RN AR% - 100 #MERZ
(it () - W\RFEARATNA 42,300,000 Property development
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB42,300,000
Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 1985
("Guangdong Guangchang") (note (a))
LR BRHEREERAR HE/HEA ARE - 100 #xF#E
(ImEsE]) (Hite) e A L 43,800,000 Property development
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB43,800,000
Development Co., Ltd. 4 June 2007
(“Zhuhai Jingrun") (note (a))
GEmEERHEREERAA hE /RN AE® - 100 MERZ
([RBEE]) (Wit@)! R = 30,000,0007T Property development
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 2 November 2012
("Zhuhai Jiayu") (note (a)f
GEMBREREHEREERAA hE /RN AR% - 100 #MERZ
([mEE]) (HitE) “E-ZF+ZARH 40,000,000 Property development
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000

Development Co., Ltd. 6 December 2012
("Zhuhai Shenghui”) (note (a))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RMBRARANKRE (&)

AT ()

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

Company (Cont’d)

KATREBAELR
EREM
BRI RIK BT/ ER Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EPYRERHEREERAR FE /AR ARE - 100 ¥R
(IRDBERE ) (M) “EE-FRA=TAH 50,000,0007T Property development
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 30 September 2002
("Changsha Meiguiyuan”) (note (a))
A e BREERA R/ RER ARE - 100 ®REZR
([FIN& &) (H7#E)) —EE-E£-AhA 10,000,0007% Investment holding
Shenzhen Jinhaidi Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
(“Shenzhen Jinhaidi") (note (a)) 9 February 2002
BLTRENRERIAERAA R /BN ARE - 100 HREZR
(T EN)) (i) “T-%F 2,200,000 Investment holding
Foshan Jiefengli Investment Planning Co., Ltd. +—A+HA RMB2,200,000
("Foshan Jiefengli") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
15 November 2010
BLTRRKFTREFRAR R /BN ARE - 100 ®EER
Tk =]) (M) “E-CF 35,000,000 Investment holding
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd. NBE=+=H RMB35,000,000
("Foshan Yongheng") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
22 August 2012
EMTEEEXERERA hE /R EN ARE - 100 MEHERER
(H%ﬂlﬂ%ﬁ(ﬂ/f&(a)) ZEE-FhATH 30,000,000 Property leasing and
Guangzhou Zhide Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. 10 May 2001
("Guangzhou Zhide") (note (a))
BLTEEEENEERERAR FE/ HEA IN;H - 100 #%EE
([2EER]) (M) —E——F 5,000,0007T Property management
Foshan Zhide Zhengxing Property MA=+/\H RMB5,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Zhide Zhengxing") (note (a)) 28 April 2011

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

Company (Cont’d)

KAREBAELR
BRE
BRI RIK BT/ &R Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
48 establishment and registered =g BiE FEEE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BENTERBEERAR ([ZREE] hE /RN NG - 100 EEEE
(Wizt(a) “EENFAA=TH 500,0007T Hotel management
Guangzhou Zhide Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000
("Zhide Hotel") (note (a)) 30 September 2009
ENTEERECEBRERAR hE /BN ARE - 100 MEHERER
(I2ERHL]) (W) ZEENF 10,100,000t Property leasing and
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business NA=F+—H RMB10,100,000 management
Incubator Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Zhide Technology") (note (a)) 31 August 2009
ENTREEREEEREARAR hE /BN ARE - 55 MEHERER
(TEMBEE]) (W) “T-5F 30,000,000 Property leasing and
Guangzhou Guangdechang Commercial =A-+E®H RMB30,000,000 management
Management Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Guangdechang”) (note (a)) 25 March 2010
HEEEARHEREERAR hE /BN ARE - 100 ¥Rz
([FEEE]) (Hita) “E-——FzZAtNH 5,000,0007C Property development
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 18 March 2011
("Zhuhai Guoji") (note (a))
KEmIMEeERHEERERAA FE/HEA NG - 51 WERE
(ImE2E]) (W) —WNWZF+LANA 1,000,000 Property development
Zhuhai Doumen District Jinwu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 9 July 1992
("Zhuhai Jinwu") (note (a))
ENTRENEERERAF /BN ARE - 70 DEER
(TEMKE]) (W) ZE-TF\A=TH 1,000,000 Property management
Guangzhou Tiansi Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. 30 August 2010

("Guangzhou Tiansi") (note (a))
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17. RMBRARANKRE (&)

AT ()

17.

(CONT’'D)

Company (Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

KATREBAELR
EREM
BRI RIK BT/ ER Percentage of equity
EENHERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
28 establishment and registered R BiE FELE
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BLUTHREEREFRAR RE/RERS AEH - 100 ®REZR
(TpLERER ) (M) —T-ZF 6,600,000 Investment holding
Foshan Meigui Huaye +—A+hA RMB6,600,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Foshan Meigui Huaye") (note (a)) 15 November 2010
BLIREREREBRAA R/ RER AEH - 100 REZR
(TRWLERE ) (HiE() —T-ZF 4,400,000 Investment holding
Foshan Meiguiyuan Commercial +—A+hA RMB4,400,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Foshan Meiguiyuan”) (note (a)) 15 November 2010
EMEHEEEEERAA FE /AR ARE - 5  MERE
(TEMNESREZ]) (W) “E-=F\AtNA 20,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000
("Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun") (note (a)) 19 August 2013
BLTEEREHMEREBRAF R /BN AEE - 100 %Rz
(TBRILEE ) (i) ZE-=F+ARA 10,000,0007¢ Property development
Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
("Foshan Fengrui”) (note (a)) 5 July 2013
RmEEEYEREERAR FE /BN ARE - 100 ¥R
(TRLBa]) (HiE) —T-=F 30,000,000 Property development
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate +=-A=F7H RMB30,000,000

Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongshan Hengsheng") (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
26 December 2013

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited

2013 FE K4 Annual Report 2013



17. RBLRANKRE (&

ZERRLARFMEXET - SR EH
AMOETEERRZRAXAWIIHE
BEENUZSFARNTXAEEE

5
EE

(a) REE B LK E AR L KR
EHMEREENEMK B RBER

# BEAEERE TELSERERRNS
T-ZFR_FT - _FHMITIHNE TH
BEHE - RILRU A 2 SRR AR = R E M
MR BRAEZE ZEETHRES
BRMERE WERABMNERZRENM
R B4R 4 48 5 A R #690,993,0007T (7
ZE—=ZF+-A=+—H) RARE
384,924,000 (R - ——&E+ - A=
+—8)(W&E31(e)) MIEBAER - R=F
—=F AEEAZEZEERMNERH I
BAEZUDMBE FER TR=2F—MN
F-AEEZEER BRESERN - EMN
s K BN X AR 2 BB BN EZE60% Kk
40%BMIR AR - EMNBEREMNSE G D
BB RS EZ60% KA0%H) I AR = -
BEMBEFEEMNBEIOLHRAES -

RBEAZ - AEERZSEFTRKE
BEOHNZETSHBTEREHFAE RS
WRROBRAER RATHESEE/NE
HE R AED  BAKEEARRKFT
HA R A9 DA 15 E & RELRE 12 N B O AR AN AR
mEEAHE - W EXBAFEERE
LEREZT AKEREQLEREET
WRB - BMNESE  BMNE  IKEES
REMBRE (KA [HERA]) 9@ -

At ENRERELHEL EENA
BRBETFER RARBREES
HERAMBREERRNERES
URZERBERRAKEEHTERN K
RAEFERR  RFRHEBABANMBHMN
MEEBLEREREAKEVBHRERRPE
BEEAR (TRESRER LOBRE
B o

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

The English names of certain group companies
registered in the PRC represent management’s best
effort to translate their Chinese names as they do not
have an official English names.

Note:

(a) Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firms of the Ernst & Young global network.

# Pursuant to certain financing arrangements entered into

between the Group and certain independent alternative
financing companies during the years 2013 and 2012, the
entire equity interest in Zhongshan Tianyue and a 20% equity
interest in Guangzhou Nanying were legally transferred to
those alternative financing companies so as to secure the
relevant borrowings totalling to RMB690,993,000 as at 31
December 2013 and RMB384,924,000 as at 31 December
2012 (note 31(e)) provided to Guangzhou Hongtai and
Guangzhou Nanying. In 2013, the Group legally transferred the
entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui to secure certain
borrowings which were obtained by the Group in January
2014. Prior to the equity transfer, Guangzhou Shengyu and
Zhongshan Tianyue respectively held 60% and 40% equity
interests in Guangzhou Hongtai; Guangzhou Shengyu and
Guangzhou Zhuorui respectively held 60% and 40% equity
interests in Zhuhai Jiayu; and Guangzhou Shengyu held a 99%
equity interest in Guangzhou Nanying.

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was endowed
with a repurchase obligation at a fixed amount on a future date
upon repayment of those borrowings for the transfer of equity
interest in Zhongshan Tianyue and at a nil consideration for
the transfer the equity interest in Guangzhou Nanying, and
the Group was endowed a preferential right to repurchase the
equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui at an agreed amount
within a specific period in the future. Furthermore, the
Group retains the power to operate and manage Zhongshan
Tianyue, Guangzhou Hongtai, Guangzhou Zhuorui, Zhuhai
Jiayu and Guangzhou Nanying (collectively referred to as the
“Project Companies”) in terms of ordinary businesses and the
day-to-day operation.

In this regard, considering the facts that the substance
of the financing arrangements is to collateralise the
borrowings for project development and the Group
retains the practical ability to govern the financial
and operating policies of the Project Companies so
as to obtain benefits from their operating activities,
the directors of the Company are of the view that the
financial position and operating results of these Project
Companies should be consolidated into the Group’s
financial statements in full, irrespective of the equity
transfer from legal perspective.
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18. REEERTINKRE 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E—= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR#FiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEFEE Share of net assets 45,304 42,934
AEBEHEBERA ZEBRNEETTE The Group’s balances with its associates are disclosed

WA 25 IFE - in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

REBBENG ZFBEOT - Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

rEEEGRIESRE AL

Percentage of equity
interests attributable

EMREEN M/ to the Group
WER A REMEE +=ZA=+-H
Place and date Nominal value 31 December
2% of registration of registeredd —ZB-=% —T--F ZFEEK
Name and business paid-up capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
AR¥TT
RMB’000
BNTRALEREERATN R/ RER 11,000 30 30 MERE
(TEMBRAE]) - “E-—-F=A+H Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongwei PRC/Mainland China
Investment Company Limited A 10 March 2011
("Guangzhou Times Hongwei") *
BNTRESRREEEIRAERAR  FE/HERKM 200,000 20 20
(TEMBE]) ZE-Zf+ZA=H Money lending
Guangzhou Baiyun PRC/Mainland China
Heyintaifu Micro-credit Co., Ltd. A 3 December 2012
("Guangzhou Baiyun”) *
* ZERARFANT B BRERLEEB LK * The financial statements of these companies for the years were
FREES SSRGS not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
B EMAKE ARIERZ - firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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18.

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONT’'D)

A The English names of these companies represent the best effort
made by the directors of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names as they do not register any official English
names.

The Group’s associates are considered not material to
the Group, either individually or in aggregate.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets

The movements in deferred tax assets during the
reporting period are as follows:

EitHER
THEER HtUng
HEFSE Bt ERER Hite @t
Accruals
and other
deductible
Provision  temporary
Tax losses for LAT  difference Others Total
NEEFrT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-E-—%-f—-H At 1 January 2012 46,204 9,652 37,639 668 94,163
EERBABRRHA /(1K) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(fr3#10) of profit or loss during the year (nofe 10) (1,305) 12,293 (22,598) 951 (10,659)
RZE-—F+-A=+-HEk At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013
WZE-=F—-F—H 44,899 21,945 15,041 1,619 83,504
EERBABRRAA/(H1R) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(f#£10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) (21,932) 4,208 19,406 (449) 1,233
RZE-ZF+-f=1+-H At 31 December 2013 22,967 26,153 34,447 1,170 84,737

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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19. ERERBEERAR (F) 19.

EEB RSB

HBEMHRETCHBARBEZESHNT ¢

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Deferred tax liabilities

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the
reporting period are as follows:

WEREAR HENEAT
EHNAR APEAE
BERE REWEER HHE Bt E5
Fair value Taxes on
adjustment Revaluation  undistributed
arising from of  profits of the
acquisition of investment  subsidiaries
subsidiaries properties in the PRC Others Total
ANEEFT  AEEFT  ARETT  ARETrT ARETX
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
W-%--%-A-H At 1 January 2012 (1,083,233) (160,125) (999) (234) (1,244 591)
IR B R (2350400 Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)(ii) (43,072) - - - (43,072)
EEMGARREA/(H1%B)  Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(W10 of profit or loss during the year (note 10) 13,541 (27,500) (2,038) 234 (15,763)
WZZE-—F+-A=F+-HK  At31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013
RZE-=F-B-H (1,112,764)  (187,625) (3,037) - (1,303,426)
WEMBLRR (Hz350A)0)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)(i)) (8,422) - - = (8,422)
EENEARSKEHA /(%) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(H£10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) 126,610 (10,500) (28,512) - 87,598
RZZ-ZF+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2013 (994,576) (198,125) (31,549) - (1,224,250)
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EEBEEERER (&)

R-_E—=F+-A=+—H A£H
FEEPEANMBERAODSOHEERA
AR #130,919,000T (Z & — — 4 :
AR#133,294,0007T) © 2 EEETH
EXzFRTCHEE  NEEEEZR
RIBBERRANE AEBITERZE
EBEBRRELCHBEEE  AELEEEZ
WMEBAREZ2E —BRME  TRATK
AlpE e E A ERE R A TR B &8 -

REFECEMERE  BHRFER
WRZHIERELETREINERE
FEHR S BB I0%H AR - ZIEKE
KE-ZETNF-A-BRER ER
REZZTtF+-_A=+—B®%ES
BYEF o e B BN IR B E P
EDAEBEFATWHE - B AERAR
EEMBEE - AKEMNT - EARE
310% ° FEith - AEBEZARERFER
WKL ZHBARR —FENF—A—
BRELZBMND IR BEBATEN -

N £ BL AN S B R R B A AR ST 2 B B A
AN E—=FE+-A=+—HZKE
&R A RE1,087,321,000T (=&
——F: ANR#¥273,373,0007t) FTJE
IR ERELEHRE -EFRAE
ZEWB AR NATER A KRR KA 8
DIKBEETF -
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Partial tax losses of the Group of RMB130,919,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB133,294,000)
respectively, mainly arose in Mainland China, which can
be carried forward for a definite period from the year
in which the losses arose for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB1,087,321,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB273,373,000) that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future.
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20. AP YE

20. PROPERTIES UNDER

DEVELOPMENT
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥F T ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHRRA T B BB AR T 7 F 3 Properties under development

R expected to be recovered:
—FR Within one year 6,929,837 3,467,265
—F1% After one year 6,287,896 5,882,963
13,217,733 9,350,228

RSB R Y R AR B A IR
FHEELEREE LM -

AEBETREFRDENR-"FT—Z=FRK
—E-_F+A=+—BHEEARATR
TREMERA > URER T AEEKN
RITERRER (KEE31(C)) °

21. ERTITHEHENYE

AEEERTIHELENMRLRF
Wi - TBECRITRHIFRENMERTIIEZ
PR ] BB FEME 2 BRETIR

ERTIHFLENDENREREED

21.

The Group’s properties under development are all
located in Mainland China and situated on leasehold
land with long term leases.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, certain of the
Group’s properties under development were pledged
to banks and other lenders to secure the bank loans
and borrowings granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are
located in Mainland China. All completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The movements in the provision for impairment of

LU completed properties held for sale are as follows:
—E—=f —E——4F
2013 2012
BtaE ARMFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REL) At beginning of year 1,665 -
MR (BE) (R ERE  Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) 6 (1,665) 1,665
RER At end of year = 1,665

R-E—=F+-"A=+—H FE®
BB s ARE20,015,0000T (= F
— —F : AR#¥289,250,0007T) A &
SEETERIRBFLENMED KRN
FIRITREMERA  UEISETFARE
EMRTERREMER (:E31c)) -

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s
completed properties held for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB20,015,000
(2012: RMB289,250,000) were pledged to banks
and other lenders to secure the bank loans and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
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22. EIWE 5 FIE 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES
AEEBECEWESREBEZTEZREBHEEY The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from the sale
X DHEVE2HERBEEIZAR of properties. Considerations in respect of the properties
BEEWMRERGRIN - EWE ZRIBTE sold are payable by the purchasers in accordance with
B BWESHREBERECHANEBHmER the terms of the related sale and purchase agreements.
CRBFLEARERE - Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturity.
MEBRRNEWE HHRIEER S TN An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
™ of the reporting period is as follows:
-2—= —E-CfF
2013 2012
AR FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=REAR Within 3 months 461,843 21,327
Mz 7@ A 4 to 6 months 796 9,752
+Z2+ @A 7 to 12 months 6,870 1,467
— 1% After 1 year 3,023 -
472,532 32,546

RZE—=FR=_F—=-F+=-A=+
—HZREWESHEHRBEILARBE - 7N
KRE BHZZRETRAEENERP
£l MZERFPROVEENLLE -

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

The balances of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 were neither past due nor
impaired and related to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
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ZE—=%+ZZAH=+4—8 31 December 2013
23. EARE  -ZERHEMER 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
MIE OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE T ERIE Prepayments for leasehold land 1,201,594 1,730,780
& R H A FEAGRIA Deposits and other receivables 251,963 1,210,453
H th 38 1~ I8 Other prepayments 442,067 640,334
1,895,624 3,681,567
NER(E] Impairment - (1,000)
1,895,624 3,580,567
TERTFKRIE - He R E M EWRIE T &K Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
a8 BARBEEERAR - unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed term
of repayment.
BN T HAERIBEREREERD T HE Prepayments for leasehold land represent the
RABENEE L TEN FRIE © prepayments for leasehold land with the application of
land use right certificates being processed.
24. EEZRIHPRE 24. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

AEEMNBEZIHLEEETEANM
EERONBRITIHENETERER
MICHIRE - B ETHEBRRNE
BE—FREH - EHESHREEET
B—iR17 » UEB A FTHRITER (M &E
31(c)) »

The Group’s held-to-maturity investments represented
short-term investments in certain financial products
sold by a reputable bank in Mainland China with a
determinable expected interest rate and a maturity
period within one year. Such short-term investments
were pledged to the same bank as a security to certain
bank loans (note 31(c)).
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24. FEZIHRE (&) 24. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

(CONT'D)
RZEBE-—=FNA HOEHERE LT In April 2013, as set out in the relevant financing
ZHE  AEEEBEED NS arrangements, the bank loans were settled by the Group
BIFERITER ° through offsetting with the short-term investments upon
its maturity.
ey — =+
25. EWEEE DRI RRIE 25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
—E-=F —E—_F
2013 2012
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
g /NI Due from an associate:
— BMERALG — Guangzhou Times Hongwei 70,210 63,880
70,210 63,880
ERHERAFTNREDNIFEZHE & The amount due from an associate is non-trade in
B 28 BRERFERE - B U nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
ERNAMNRENERSEEOIAARE demand. The carrying amount of the amount due from
B ZFEBGRIEM AR BESRE - an associate approximates to its fair value. None of

these receivables is either past due or impaired.
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

26. EYW EAEEHNRE 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO DIRECTORS
rEE Group
=F—= —E-_fF
2013 2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTES - Due from directors:
— B G A — Mr. Shum - 1,438
—FREAE — Mr. Li Qiang - 2,000
- 3,438
FERTES Due to a director:
— SR AL — Mr. Shum - 101,478
FAREERSTHE Maximum amounts outstanding
during the year:

— ZEIERAE — Mr. Shum = 1,438

— BEES A — Mr. Guan Jianhui = 2,000

— ZagLE — Mr. Li Qiang = 2,000
¥ NN Company

—E—= —ET——HF
2013 2012
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTES Due to a director:

— B s — Mr. Shum - 11,029
B RENESNFIBEHIEE ZEDE The amounts due from and to directors arose from
£ HMEEKE - 28 BREREE non-trade activities, and they were unsecured,
& o interest-free and repayable on demand.
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27. ERBR S EEBB R 27. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE

(a) FEHBR (a) Tax prepayments
—E-=F —ET-—F
2013 2012
AR FT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEBD TSR Prepaid CIT 26,380 51,885
FE& + IR (E T Prepaid LAT 195,969 182,524
222,349 234,409

(b) FEHBIR (b) Tax payable

—z2—= -4
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARBFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEHEER CIT payable 283,004 119,267
JE 8+ M 3 (E R LAT payable 114,892 87,794
397,896 207,061

2013 FE#HE Annual Report 2013 BRI EZRR AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

28. e RBEEFEEBYURZR
88 17 7 ™K

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

r&EH AAT
Group Company
—E-=§f T CZE-=Ff —ZT—=-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT AREFRT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R MR1THEA Cash and bank balances 3,667,564 1,833,745 785,876 7,356
A RBEIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits
(Hizt(a)) (note (a)) (1,946,083) (897,299) - -
HeNBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 936,446 785,876 7,356
IAAREEEE (B772 (b))  Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 887,194 928,863 = -
AEMEBAE Denominated in other currencies 834,287 7,583 785,876 7,356
1,721,481 936,446 785,876 7,356
HaE - Notes:
(a) BREPBEBEER  AEENETYWER (a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain

BRREAREERTESPER —E&8
MEWBBEMERBEARSEKRAR - K=
T—=ZF+-A=+—H ZEIZIRHR
% A AR®1,099,672,0007T (=% — =
F: AR¥767,713,0007T) °

RZE—=F+-_A=+-—H&EEAR
#757,499,000T (ZF ——F : AR
129,586,000t ) #) % R &l 17 5 #8 R R 17
BEZEERFPFANERMBRE B8
BRTIMER - HeEAZIRERTE
MR- E—=%+-_RA=+—BoHEE
AR #%88,912,000L (=T — =4 : &)
MHBRZRETFRATCHER  EFHA
K. 70,000,000t A 1F 88 17 {& 5 K 48 (KT
F£31(c)) °

property development companies of the Group are required
to place certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds received in
designated bank accounts for specific use. As at 31 December
2013, such restricted cash amounted to RMB1,099,672,000
(2012: RMB767,713,000).

The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2013 amounting
to RMB757,499,000 (2012: RMB129,586,000) represented
the loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts designated
by the banks, in which case the use of the restricted bank
deposit is subject to the banks’ approval. The remaining
restricted deposits amounting to RMB88,912,000 (2012: Nil)
were time deposits as at 31 December 2013, out of which
RMB70,000,000 were pledged for bank borrowings (note 31
(c)).
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28. HERBEEEEYURZER 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FERITFRR (&) AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
(CONT’D)

HtaE - (8&) Notes: (cont'd)

(b) B2 ARIE P BT 28 4 A SN E B Bl A9 R (b) The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
BHRERER  ARBETBERLBKE however, subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
thEE B AETASEEBELERR exchange control promulgated by the PRC government, the
INERGEBORIT  SAREHIMRKE Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
fth B o through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

FHRRIRITHIRSBRIFRITSAGFERF Cash at banks earns interest income at floating rates

KIRFEHERFERFBMA - B KB based on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying

CEBYUAERZRHBRTHERANERS amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the

BB E QR EE - RITHSEZR G restricted bank deposits approximate to their fair values.

WITHEREFTHRNEHABRENZEBERE The bank balances and restricted bank deposits are

BRIFMWIRTT - deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history

of default.
=%

29. EHE ZFIE TRADE PAYABLES
EAREZAHRBEHARENE HHIE An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end
ZERROTWT - of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as

follows:
—E—= —EF——4F
2013 2012
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within 1 year 1,906,519 2,185,743
—F % Over 1 year 507,343 686,903
2,413,862 2,872,646

BNEZHRELDEER 28 BRE
FEXBHAIRN ZREEE -

RBEHR BNESHENAAEBE
BOREMENEESE  ARENE
S AHRABHEE -

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and repayable within the normal operating cycle or on
demand.

The fair values of trade payables at the end of the
reporting period approximated to their corresponding
carrying amounts due to their relatively short maturity
terms.
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

30. HWENRIER EFTRE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E—=F —E-—F
2013 2012
it AR®Fr ARMFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz e RIBWFIE Deposits received and receipts in advance 7,487,978 7,342,131
W HEIE B AR 2 BT 5UE Payables for acquisition
of project companies 625,000 528,262
JEERUIE I ELA FE < 508 Accruals and other payables 394,991 741,341
MBI EELNRIENFKIE  Payables to independent investors 37(b) 521,247 -
BERZE &8 X0k R Other payables to the (a)
FET 3B non-controlling shareholders 363,585 106,351
9,392,801 8,718,085
st - Notes:
(a) REZE—=FR=ZFT—=ZF+=ZA=+— (a) Details of other payables with the non-controlling shareholders

B AIEERBRR A EE RN RAZ
HIEREERATHINNAT ¢

as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are set out by project

company as follows:

—E—=& —E—=fF

2013 2012

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EMNmE Guangzhou Nanying i) 62,778 62,778
EAHIE Changsha Meiguiyuan ji) - 11,052
N R H Guangzhou Tiansi i) 47,626 32,521
BN HE Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun if) 238,181 -
BMNEEE Guangzhou Guangdechang i) 15,000 -
363,585 106,351
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30. Hith B RIE KR T RIE

(%)

Wizt - ()

(a)

(48)
D)

B IR MR BN B A IR AR AR
WZHIE ZERNRBLEHRES
TOE (ZEMEZCBERZER
FERBRMA) A WEEA
BRTIRE R A S B IR
REMEAEZEZBOBEBEERS
ZHETNGE - ZEFEAREA
hEBEZEIREBABEZRFH
A B o AR RN 5 B IE R R
BRER=_Z—=F+=-A=+—H
VKA RGE  EHFRBENEE
&% AR #62,778,0007T 1178 %
SREMRE -

KERRIETRE R EFERRR AR Z
iR REEHRIRE  EERE
BEREEEETDR -

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONT’'D)

Notes: (cont'd)

(a)
i)

(cont'd)

The balances mainly represented the payables to the
non-controlling shareholder of Guangzhou Nanying.
Such payable balances were in connection with
certain properties, the economic benefits of which
solely attributable to the non-controlling shareholder,
and where appropriate measured by reference to
the market value of the associating asset balances,
reflecting the Group’s obligation to the non-controlling
shareholder. Changes in the fair values of those
payables are credited/charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Pursuant to a supplemental
agreement entered into between the Group and the
non-controlling shareholder as at 31 December 2013,
it is mutually agreed to settle such payable at a fixed
amount of RMB62,778,000.

Balances represented the balances with the
non-controlling shareholders of the Project Companies
which were interest-free, non-secured and with no
fixed term of repayment.

31. GHERITERRHEMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012
ERA=E E): &8 ERA % 55 Ed|
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity Amount interest rate Maturity Amount
(%) AEEF7 (%) AEEFTL
(%) RMB’000 (%) RMB'000
ik} Current
BIED - BHA Bank loans - unsecured 6.5-6.7 2014 31,000 6.5-6.9 2013 289,284
SRS - BHE Bank loans - secured 5.9-11.0 2014 1,422,143 3993 2013 2,131,165
HinfEsh - |Hm Other borrowings - unsecured 4.4-6.9 2014 283,713 5.0 2013 76,000
HhiEm - A QOther borrowings - secured 5.4-12.9 2014 240,638 106-129 2013 680,814
1,977,494 3,177,263
E0E) Non-current

BIER - 2HA Bank loans - unsecured 6.8 2016 254,152 6.8-11.0 2014 123,674
BIET-FHA Bank loans - secured 5.4-1.7 2023 4,212,505 5993 2019 1,754,598
Hifgs - A Other borrowings - secured 9.1-12.9 2015 958,397 10.6-13.0 2014 621,264
5,425,054 2,499,536
7,402,548 5,676,799

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

31. STERITERRHAMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
(&) AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
—E—=F —E—-—F
2013 2012
AR#FT ARBTFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DT Analysed into:
JEERBIRITER Bank loans repayable:

—F R Within one year 1,453,143 2,420,449
EF In the second year 1,686,347 1,299,553

E=FFRF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEBERMT) 2,562,310 532,719
HBidAF Beyond five years 218,000 46,000
5,919,800 4,298,721

HihfEEEER Other borrowings repayable:
—F RN Within one year 524,351 756,814
FEF In the second year 958,397 621,264
1,482,748 1,378,078
7,402,548 5,676,799
Bist - Notes:

(a) BR=ZE—=FR=_FT—=ZF+=ZA=+ (a) Except for certain non-current other borrowings amounting to
—HEESIRAARKELICEETRAR RMB1,456 million and RMB621 million as at 31 December
B2l BB ILME TIEREBEMER UK 2013 and 2012, respectively, and certain current bank and
RZE—=FR=ZF—ZF+ZA=+— other borrowings amounting to RMB630 million and RMB1,116
B8O AARKE0OEE TR AR million as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively,
1,116 A& T E T e R17 & H A & 3KUA bearing fixed interest rates, the remaining bank and other
BEEREFBEIN  FHmRITREMBERK borrowings bear interest at floating rates. The carrying amounts
LUFE R R R - REBRITREMBE R of the Group’s bank and other borrowings approximate to their

ZEmMSBERERNREBEMES fair values.
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HBRGHHRR R

Wizt - ()

31.

(b) BR-E-—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H2EAA
R#218,091,0007T (ZZE— =% : AR¥
51,451,00070) & & F B #E R 17 E A
EZx (TExl) R#&x (THx]) stEsh -
AREBRBERARNMBERITERRE M
EBERAARBE -

(c) RBERAR AEENETEECERT
RITREMERA - USSR TFAREEE
RITEREEMETK -

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Except for certain secured bank loans, amounting to
RMB218,091,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB51,451,000) which were denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), all the Group’s
bank loans and other borrowings were denominated in RMB as
at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets
were pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank
loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.

HEELEMEREERAES The carrying values of these assets are:
2= —E—F
2013 2012
k3 AR¥ T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
LB Investment properties 16 1,582,000 1,540,000
FE R Properties under development 20 1,847,475 1,406,532
ERTHENENYE Completed properties held for sale 21 20,015 289,250
FEfT T B FUE Prepaid land lease payments 15 25,300 228,640
BHEZRIHKE Held-to-maturity investment 24 - 305,700
EEATHER Pledged time deposit 28 70,000 -
3,544,790 3,770,122

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

31. S RSRITERREAERK
(&)
Wi ()
(@ BULEKECOT R HERAE - AR

BB s AR B RTT R E M AR R
H2EREFEABREEERBEIIMOT

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (cont'd)

(d)

In addition to the pledged assets stated in note (c) above,
corporate and personal guarantees and asset security provided
by the Group’s related parties related to the Group’s bank and
other borrowings are set out as follows:

—F—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
5B {E AR - Corporate and personal guarantees:
— 28R — Mr. Shum - 2,169,955
— SRR E — Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong - 123,950
— Liang Yuchong#Z + — Ms. Liang Yuchong - 34,000
EANEEET Personal asset security:
—F =t - Ms. Li Yiping - 20,000

SHhELRERSSMALENSS  LAK
REWRITES -

FNMARLT RS RENRS -

Liang YuchongZZ £ A2 K K £ MRS -

(e) R-ZZE—=f+-fF=+—B  A&£E=2
WETREMERP - —HFARD R
FnBaEmNeE A ARK193,468,000
T(ZZ — = F: AR %¥384,924,000
T MERANEBEEAEEZENBEREF
R 2 BIREIEREIR - BN
EMBREMEL7  ZSEHERARE
99,330,0007T 75 LA & I 72 2= £930 % AR 7~ 42
@IERER -

RZZE-—=ZF+-"A=+—H K&E2
ABERTT R H A fE 3P - —IHEF AR B R 3E
mMBEENHSERARIEAL97,525,0007T
B fi5 R A 88 g N A S M0 20% H OB IRIE R
HR - #FERRGAUBRRMEL7 K
SEBEBEEMBROIORNB AR - ZF
18 3R T LA B )M 9 58 R B B9 79 % P AN # 23
R -

(f) R-_ZE—=F+_"A=+—H KX&£B82
BRITREMERS - —BFAFERDHAE
BENEEAARY192,287,0007T (=T —
— 4 : 253,620,0007T) MERARNEER 2
BB ARMBLREENSBREARR -

B EEREMR A E Times Property Holdings Limited

(f)

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong is the younger brother of Mr. Shum and one
of the executive directors of the Company.

Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Shum.

Ms. Liang Yuchong is the spouse of Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong.

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings, an amount of RMB193,468,000 (2012:
RMB384,924,000) included in the current and non-current
liability, was secured by way of transferring the entire equity
interest in Zhongshan Tianyue, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group with details set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. RMB99,330,000 out of such
amount was also secured by the pledge of the 30% equity
interest in Guangzhou Hongtai.

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings, a borrowing amounting to RMB497,525,000
included in the current and non-current liability, was secured
by way of transferring 20% of ordinary shares of Guangzhou
Nanying, whose details were set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements and in which the Group held
99% equity interest. These borrowings were also secured by
the pledge of the remaining 79% equity interest in Guangzhou
Nanying.

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings, a borrowing of RMB192,287,000 (2012:
RMB253,620,000) included in the non-current liability was
secured by the pledge of the ordinary shares of Foshan
Yudonglong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

2013 FE K4 Annual Report 2013



31. ST ERITERRHAMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
(%&) AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
Hiar o (48) Notes: (cont'd)
A — o — A=A, N (g) At 31 December 2012, out of the Group’s total bank and other
(g) %iﬁﬁzé%ifjgixﬁfé borrowings, a borrowing of RMB69,200,000 included in the
D\ U > g \/ﬁy,’f = current liability was secured by the pledge of the ordinary
;iz%;%?qﬁ(ﬁﬁi(ﬁggigﬁéﬁ shares of Zhongshan Kaixuan, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
. N “ ” =5 Group.
(h) RZE—=F+ZA=+—H 288 (h) As at 31 December 2013, 70% equity interest in Guangzhou
SR A AREL122,462,000T M AR Tiansi and 50% equity interest in Changsha Meiguiyuan, which
208,397,000t & FTHERUAREHE 2 E are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, were pledged
MEAREMXTHN70%BR AR kKD as security for certain borrowings with aggregate amounts of
WIRE 50 % A ANt s fE B IR © RMB122,462,000 and RMB208,397,000, respectively.
32. EBTER 32. ISSUED CAPITAL
vy Shares
—E-=F —E-F
2013 2012
AT Authorised:
10,000,000,0008% (=F—=4 : 3,800,000%) 10,000,000,000 (2012: 3,800,000) 1,000,000,0005& 7t 380,000 T
LB SREE0.10ET ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HK$1,000,000,000 HK$380,000
BETREHR : Issued and fully paid:
1,722,960,0008% (ZF—=% : 201f%) 1,722,960,000 (2012: 201) ordinary 172,296,000/ 0 20. 1%
LTk SREELIET shares of HK$0.10 each HK$172,296,000 HK$20.1
HER Equivalent to AR#

135,778,000t
RMB135,778,000 -
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32.

=+ =-HA=-+—8 31 December 2013

ERTES (F)
—EELET—ATMA - ARARE
SHBEMA T - & E B A A380,000
T - 9 43,800,000 & Ax M 1EO0.10
T RARL -

FRMBAZEMNT

(a) BEBHA-_Z—=F1+—A8
+THEMEZEEREZE AQF
B 5% E I R #%£380,0000%8 T 1%
%1,000,000,000 T~ B =
T-—ZF+-A+—8B AR
AR EEENERSEP
129,221,979.90/8 Tt 2 # 17
BEAXL ZERBEREARZE
EHRRBERETTEIRN
1,292,219, 799/ # %15 °

by RZE—=ZF+=-A+—H K
EERARABROREBHAR
SHARARAR LT ([ EH])
NS 3.68 T RIBEETT
430,740,000 Z B EEO.17%8 7T
MmEBERKR @ARESHE (BRMAX
A1) /&1,550,664,000/% 7T (18 &
REARY1,222,002,0007T) °

32. ISSUED CAPITAL (CONT’D)

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on
14 November 2007 with an authorised share capital
of HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares at a par
value of HK$0.10 each.

During the year, the movements in share capital were as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the written resolution dated 19
November 2013, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$1,000,000,000. On 11 December 2013,
a sum of HK$129,221,979.90 was capitalised
from the amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company and that
the said sum was applied in paying up in full at
par 1,292,219,799 new shares for allotment and
issue to Asiaciti.

On 11 December 2013, 430,740,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued in connection
with the public listing of the Company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing”) at a subscription price of HK$3.6
per share for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$1,550,664,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,222,002,000).
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32. ERTEX (&)

KE2REAARFEBETRANES
FAXRZHELT

32. ISSUED CAPITAL (CONT'D)

A summary of the transactions during the year with
reference to the above movements in the Company’s
issued share capital is as follows:

BRI
BOHE BRTER RO RER Foh
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
AREFT AREFIT ANREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZE——F—F—H At 1 January 2012 201 - 1,452 565 1,452,565
RZE——F+-A=1+—HK At31 December 2012 and
—E-=F—f—H 1 January 2013 201 - 1,452,565 1,452,565
SIREE (H1:#12) Dividend declared (note 12) - - (873,913) (873,913)
BARCBAT (M5t ) Capitalization Issue (note (a)) 1,292,219,799 101,827 (101,827 -
BB MM T (F12))  Issue of shares in connection
with the Listing (note (b)) 430,740,000 33,951 1,188,051 1,222,002
—E-CFRERHRE Proposed final 2013 dividend
(Bii£12) (note 12) - - (188,486) (188,486)
1,722,960,000 135,778 1,476,390 1,612,168
BHETHAST Share issue expenses — = (57,739) (57,739)

RZZ—=%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013

1,722,960,000 135,778 1,418,651 1,554,429

33.

BRERTE
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FHI0FHIRAA R R ERR -

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include any employee, management
member or director of the Company, or any other eligible
participants upon the terms set out in the Scheme. The
Scheme was adopted pursuant to the resolutions of all
the shareholders passed on 19 November 2013 (the
“Adoption Date”) and shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT’D)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(i.e., 172,296,000 shares), unless the Company obtains
approval from its shareholders and must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time
to time. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue, unless approval of
the Company’s shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable by the grantee on application or
acceptance of an option shall be HK$1.00. The period
within which the shares must be taken up under an
option shall be determined by the board at its absolute
discretion and in any event, such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which any
particular option is granted in accordance with the
Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of an option granted under
the Scheme shall be solely determined by the board
and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily guotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a day on which
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is open for
the business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of
the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19 November
2013, no options have been granted pursuant to the
Scheme.
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34. RESERVES

Group
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the reporting period
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the aggregate of
the nominal value of the paid-up capital of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the cost of acquisition and the non-controlling
interests acquired in the case of acquisition
of additional non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries, or, the difference between the
proceeds from disposal and the non-controlling
interests disposed of in the case of disposal
of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to
non-controlling shareholders.

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the companies now comprising
the Group which are registered in the PRC
shall appropriate a certain percentage of their
net profit after tax (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) calculated under the accounting
principles generally applicable to the PRC
enterprises to reserve funds. When the balances
of this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of
25% of the capital after these usages.
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34. f#fE (&) 34. RESERVES (CONT’'D)
b N Company
AARRREPEZHEEEZ S W The changes in reserves of the Company for the
N reporting period are set out as follows:
RVREE EXRDREE ZitER @zt
Exchange
Share premium fluctuation  Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
k3 ARETFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFL
Notes RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
WZE-—F-F—H At 1 January 2012 1,452,565 (190,509) (11,771) 1,250,285
FELEERLE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (9,225) (1,844) (11,069)
RZE-ZF+-A=+-8R At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013
“F-=f-A-H 1,452,565 (199,734) (13,615) 1,239,216
BRI AT Capitalisation Issue 32(a) (101,827) = = (101,827)
BELMNRGES Issue of shares in connection of the Listing 32(b) 1,188,051 = - 1,188,051
e aha Share issue expenses 32(b) (57,739) - - (57,739)
TERAEERE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (33,935) (15,913) (49,848)
ERRE Dividend declared 12 (873,913) - - (873,913)
TE-CEREAERE Proposed final 2013 dividend 12 (188,486) - - (188,486)
RZE-=F£+-R=1-H At 31 December 2013 1,418,651 (233,669) (29,528) 1,155,454
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

Business combinations
Year ended 31 December 2013

()

Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji

Pursuant to an equity transfer
agreement entered into by Guangzhou
Times Shengyu investment Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Shengyu”) and the then
shareholder of Zhuhai Guoji on 15 August
2012, Guangzhou Shengyu acquired the
50% equity interest in Zhuhai Guoji at a
cash consideration of RMB2,500,000.
The Group was able to realize a gain on
acquisition of business amounting to
RMB7,685,000 as a result of the then
current market conditions and the seller’s
desire to exit the business. The gain on
acquisition of business is recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income and gains. Zhuhai
Guoji is a property development company
established in the PRC with limited
liability. The relevant equity transfer
registration arrangement was completed in
January 2013, and Zhuhai Guoji became
the subsidiary of the Group.
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35. WM B A F (&)

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
(A) EBE/t (E) (A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
BE-ZE—=%+=-A=+-—H Year ended 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)
ILFE (&)
(i) WEHKEEHE (&) (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji (Cont'd)
EEEAEAEEHEKSE The directors had assessed the Group’s
BIEMIEFIaE N - BE AR ability of control over Zhuhai Guoji.
SEBEBREEHEN0% Although the Group holds a 50% equity
e Az BAEBRDY interest in Zhuhai Guoji, the Group retains
RSB ERBILHIE I control over Zhuhai Guoji, and is entitled
ZEERZHEEEEER to majority beneficiary interests and bear
EEKEEEMNER - risks of Zhuhai Guoji. Accordingly, Zhuhai
It BB EREEEHA Guoji is consolidated into the Group’s
REBRBMBEHRE - financial statements since then.
RWEBAH HKEEHERN The fair values of the identifiable assets
AFMNEERABNAAR and liabilities of Zhuhai Guoji as at the
(ERER NN date of acquisition were as follows:
BT RER
MAAREE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Mzt ARETFT
Notes RMB’'000
FREERYE Properties under development 277,696
H At fE A 5B R FERT /IR Other payables and accruals (248,904)
EIETIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 (8,422)
WENFEENAREER Fair value of net assets acquired 20,370
FEE RS Non-controlling interests (10,185)
U BE W 25 Gain on acquisition 5 (7,685)
AR & Satisfied by cash 2,500
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(A ¥BE0t (FE)
BE-ZE—=%+=-A=+-—H
ILFE ()

(i) WEHKEEHE (&)

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

(A)

Business combinations (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)

(i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji (Cont’d)
RBBHREEENR S R An analysis of the net outflow of cash
R SEYFRL NN and cash equivalents in respect of the
JUINN acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji is as follows:
AREFITT
RMB’000
WL HE Cash consideration (2,500)
WA & RIRTTAEBR Cash and bank balances acquired -
WHEIKERENIR S MRS EEYERE  Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji (2,500)

Ttz RSB EREZE
ZE—=F+ZA=+—
BIEFENEEHAEER
P % B RS A A IR SRR
HWEERNTE -

R-ZZTE—ZFtAtH"
NEBEWEKEEHE®
T BI50%3E & Bk # %= -
I eHERARE
2,500,0007T » U 88 58 Ak
% HKBEERAAEER
Z2EEMBRT o
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The results of Zhuhai Guoji acquired
had no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated revenue or profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

On 7 July 2013, the Group acquired the
remaining 50% non-controlling interests of
Zhuhai Guoji. The total cash consideration
was RMB2,500,000. Upon completion of
the acquisitions, Zhuhai Guoji became the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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35. WIEMIB Al (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
(A) ¥BE6t (8 (A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
BE-ZT--—F+=-A=+-—H Year ended 31 December 2012
IEFE
(i) WEERES (ii)  Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang
REEMNBEHEERES Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement
ERAORENR_ZT—=-F entered into by Guangzhou Shengyu
A Z+ N\ B & A AR #E and the then shareholder of Guangdong
EEmE BMNBZEUA Guangchang on 28 September 2012,
R #15,000,0007T /37 & Guangzhou Shengyu acquired the
HEWRHEREEN 2 entire equity interest in Guangdong
WAz BREE TR Guangchang at a cash consideration of
AR I EREESR RMB15,000,000. Guangdong Guangchang
EERA o is a property development company
established in the PRC with limited
liability.
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35. WEBHME A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
(A ¥BE0t (FE) (A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
BE-ZE—_—H+=-A=+—H Year ended 31 December 2012 (Cont’d)
IEFE (1)
(i) WHEERES (&) (i) Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang (Cont'd)
RKBRAE EREEN The fair values of the identifiable assets
AHNEENBENAR and liabilities of Guangdong Guangchang
BEHT as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:
BEECRER
HWAREE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wizt ANEEFT
Note RMB’000
FER Y Properties under development 769,741
BT FHIE - e REMERFE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 192
e MRTTA R Cash and bank balances 350
BB 5008 Trade payables (501,070)
E b e FE K fE R F0A Other payables and accruals (211,141)
BELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 (43,072)
WHERFEEN AR EE Fair value of net assets acquired 15,000
S Sa] Satisfied by cash 15,000
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35. WEBMIB A=) (48) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
(A ¥BE0t (&) (A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
BE-—ZT——§+=-H=+—H Year ended 31 December 2012 (Cont’d)
ILFE (1)
(i) WEERES (&) (i) Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang (Cont'd)
RREEREENE K& An analysis of the net outflow of cash
BReEEWERDODMN and cash equivalents in respect of the
T acquisition of Guangdong Guangchang is
as follows:
ABRBFIT
RMB’000
WL EE Cash consideration (15,000)
WREHIR & MIRTT 4588 Cash and bank balances acquired 350
WHEEREENRSLRESEEWE ML Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of Guangdong Guangchang (14,650)
B EREEMELSE The results of Guangdong Guangchang
HAEERBEE-_ZT—= acquired had no significant impact on the
F+-—_A=+—B1LHFE Group’s consolidated revenue or profit for
MERa R AR BT &S the year ended 31 December 2012.

B2 486
R E o
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

(A)

Business combinations (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2012 (Cont’d)

(iii)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide and
its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zhide
Group”)

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement
entered into by Guangzhou Yongtai and
the then shareholder of Guangzhou
Zhide on 17 December 2012, Guangzhou
Yongtai, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, acquired a 100% interest in
Guangzhou Zhide at a cash consideration
of RMB10,000,000. Guangzhou Zhide
is an investment holding company
established in the PRC with limited liability
and Zhide Group is principally engaged
in property investment and property and
hotel management. Guangzhou Zhide
has a 100% equity interest in Wangu
Supermarket, a 100% equity interest in
Zhide Zhengxing, a 100% equity interest
in Zhide Hotel, a 95% equity interest
in Zhide Technology and a 55% equity
interest in Guangzhou Guangdechang.
Details of the principal activities of
Guangzhou Zhide’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 17.
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35. WM B A F (&)

(A) ¥¥KE0t(E)
BEZ-_Z——-_H+=-A=+—H
ILEE (4F)

(iii) WEEENZ 2R AN
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RKBEH ZR&EEHD
AREAEERBENER

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’'D)

(A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2012 (Cont’d)

(iif)  Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide and
its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zhide
Group”) (Cont’d)

The aggregate fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Zhide

AEEBEHT Group as at the date of acquisition were

as follows:
B R E R
HAREE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
izt ARETFT
Note RMB’000
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 14 359,450
REZE D RINEE Investment in an associate 39,682
=& Inventories 4,642
FEWE 558 Trade receivables 292
FENFHIE  me RHMERZIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 606,322
Re RIB1THE Cash and bank balances 21,106
JEE S50A Trade payables (16,238)
H e 5008 & JE AT HUR Other payables and accruals (415,682)
FEBRITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (582,890)
JERFR K Tax payables (4,251)
12,433
FEE R Non-controlling interests (2,433)
WEMFEENARER Fair value of net assets acquired 10,000
RS Satisfied by cash 10,000

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013



35. WEBHME A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
(A) EXKEH (&) (A) Business combinations (Cont’d)
BE-—T——+=-HA=+—H Year ended 31 December 2012 (Cont'd)
IHEE ()
(iii) W B EN = 12 & A T (iii)  Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide and
Boa (i EEE its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zhide
=2/) (%) Group”) (Cont'd)
RREZENB R F IR An analysis of the net outflow of cash
e RB2ZEEYWFREHDY and cash equivalents in respect of the
DT - acquisition of these subsidiaries is as
follows:
AREFIT
RMB’000
WL EE Cash consideration (10,000)
WA & RIRITA R Cash and bank balances acquired 21,106
WEZEMBARMNES MRS Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
LEWFRA of the acquisition of these subsidiaries 11,106
FrkiEr = ZEBMESR The results of the acquired Zhide Group
HAEBERBEE-_ZT—= had no significant impact on the Group’s
F+-_A=+—HIHFE consolidated revenue or profit for the year
B4R & WA S A B & E ended 31 December 2012,

S 48
REE o
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not a
business

Entities acquired by the Group during the
reporting period that did not constitute a
business are summarised as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013

(i)

Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu

Pursuant to the relevant sale and
purchase agreement entered into
between Guangzhou Shengyu and the
then shareholder of Zhuhai Jinwu on 28
December 2012, Guangzhou Shengyu
acquired a 51% equity interest of
Zhuhai Jinwu at a total consideration of
RMB510,000. Zhuhai Jinwu is a property
development company established in the
PRC with limited liability. The relevant
equity transfer registration arrangement
was completed in January 2013 and
Zhuhai Jinwu became the subsidiary of
the Group.
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35. WEBHME A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)
(B) WEHEBAR (RMEA—EE (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not a
%) (&) business (Cont’d)
BEz-—Z2—=F+=-HA=+—H Year ended 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)
IEEE (8&)
(i) WEKEzE (&) (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu (Cont'd)
RUEBE KESED The identifiable assets and liabilities
A#HANEERBENT ! of Zhuhai Jinwu as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:
Wizt ANEEFT
Note RMB’'000
B L E A Prepaid land lease payments 15 8,035
He MRTTA R Cash and bank balances 6
E b e 3008 & FE R 508 Other payables and accruals (7,363)
678
e i Non-controlling interests (168)
510
IATHI G A B EE - Total consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 510
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35. WEEMB LR (F)
(B) WHBMEAR (Fteh—E%
%) ()

BE-F-=%ft-A=1+—H
IEFE (8

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’'D)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not a
business (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)

(i) WEHKEZDE (&) (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu (Cont’d)
MWENBAFTNR S R An analysis of the net outflow of cash
BeEEBWIEFREN DN and cash equivalents in respect of the
NS acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
!
2013
ANREFr
RMB’000
BeEE Cash consideration (510)
Wk r IR & RIRITAEBR Cash and bank balances acquired 6
WEEHT B AR MIRE & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
BL2EEBWEnL of the acquisition of a subsidiary (504)
(ii) WA EMN KA (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Tiansi

1R 5 N BR B B R M R AT
ERENRRR_-_T-——_F
ZAZ+ZRHAIMHEE
BEEmE  BMEEUAA
E #250,500,0007T #) #&
HEWEEIMNKET100%H
P A i e o BN R ET TR
TEXRZNMERZEBR
BEERA - HEAKREEER
BTN _T-—=ZF=
AR - B I E N K HT R
RAEENHB AR -

Pursuant to the relevant sale and
purchase agreement entered into
between Guangzhou Junbao and the
then shareholder of Guangzhou Tiansi on
22 February 2012, Guangzhou Junbao
acquired a 100% equity interest in
Guangzhou Tiansi at a total consideration
of RMB250,500,000. Guangzhou Tiansi
is a property development company
established in the PRC with limited
liability. The relevant equity transfer
registration arrangement was completed
in March 2013 and Guangzhou Tiansi
became the subsidiary of the Group.
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35. WEBHME A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

(B) WEHWEBAR (TER—EH (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not a
%) (&) business (Cont’d)
BE-2-—=5+=-HA=+—H Year ended 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)
IEFE (&)

(i)  WEENKE (&) (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Tiansi

(Cont’d)
PUCEE B R BN K ET R
AENEENBENT

The identifiable assets and liabilities
of Guangzhou Tiansi as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

st AE¥TT

Note RMB’000
B T H R E K IE Prepaid land lease payments 15 298,228
E b pE S 3008 & FE R 508 Other payables and accruals (47,728)
250,500

ATHIE R AR EE Total consideration satisfied by:
B& Cash 250,500

HRRBHBRARANES R
ReFEWEFRLODN

An analysis of the net outflow of cash
and cash equivalents in respect of the

W acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

—E—=
2013
ARETF T
RMB’000
HEHE Cash consideration (250,500)
WS 8938 & RIRTT L8R Cash and bank balances acquired -

WIEH B A RARE R Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

HeZEBWFEFRE of the acquisition of a subsidiary (250,500)
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

36. HEMBEAR 36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
BE_Z-=Ff+Z-A=t—-HL Year ended 31 December 2013
E R
NEBRERBARKL010,0007T K During the year, the Group disposed of Foshan Zhide
M EBRABYSE - EEBLEEEA Wangu and Zhuhai Shengyuan to independent third

REKGRIT  BEAFBE&RINOT - parties for an aggregate consideration of RMB1,010,000

with details set forth as follows:

g3 ARETT

Notes RMB’000
HERNFEE - Net assets disposed of:

ME - BB M RE Property, plant and equipment 14 3,311

FE Inventories 3,611

AR - e MEMEWFIR Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 17,687

R MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 4,692

JERE S 308 Trade payables (3,770)

JEETFUA M EAth RS 7108 Accruals and other payables (25,935)

(404)
HERE AR E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (1,414)
SER Satisfied by:

Be Cash 1,010
REEMNBRAINES MR CEEYF An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
MAR DT equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is

as follows:
AREF T
RMB’'000
REEE Cash consideration 1,010
HEMIRE RIRITHES Cash and bank balances disposed of (4,692)
HENBARIMNRE R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
REFEWFRA of the disposal of subsidiaries (3,682)
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37. SIREE

(a)

RBEHR - AEREBRE TRT
BYHMRBERREHRER  ZF
BRERSERAEENENE
THBEELHNRBER - RIE
BERER RZEBEEERR
BASRE  AEBEEERRTE
BEOBEERANKEERRS
AL BERREFNERTE  BX
SEBEREZENEMENRIEE
BEEEHE - AKBE®ERMS
HERBERNR L B RS -
YREMEMEERIH LIRS
R EHEMAEEE -—RNBE
EHRBRENER EMFRE
HeRBEMAUABETAEED
XBEENRBERMARITIRR
HOERSBEET

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
principal together with the accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks, and the Group is entitled to take over
the legal titles and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee periods start
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and end upon the issuance of real estate
ownership certificates which is generally within
one to two years after the purchasers have taken
possession of the relevant properties. The amount
of guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to the purchasers of the Group'’s
properties as at the end of the reporting period is
as follows:

—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR FT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAEBEMEETEHEEED Guarantees in respect of the mortgage
RIBE IR LA VE R facilities for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties 4,068,420 3,210,227
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37. INREE (&)

(a)

(%)

EERA EEXRNROEBER
T HEY XA A E R FEA A
KEEREERBASERE
MEKEE  HWESARB®R
R ARBLIERIE L BE -

RIBESSIMEE  F—mL
CEREEZRABERREAR
nE - RAMEEBERAF - AR
ARBUREE ((REED R
—EEHFE+ A+ NHIXZ
MEBRBAENHR ([RE
REWBH])  ELR_FTTNF
— A/\H A #52008 & X TTH
REBRREEETETHER
R ERAERABRIERL
BEAARRA > AAUERERR
ANEEES - UREERED
REMERME - A28 (M
M) EREIBEBA(TEER
ERA) B AR A & AA AT HE 1 [A
REEREEDERD  EHR
TEBITEMBEME -

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(a)

(b)

(Cont'd)

The directors consider that in the case of default
in payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage principal together with
the accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in the consolidated
financial statements for the guarantees.

Pursuant to a note subscription and rights
agreement on 28 December 2007 (“Note
Subscription Agreement”) among Mr. Shum, Ms.
Li Yiping, Asiaciti and its holding companies,
Renowned Brand Investments Limited, East
Profit Management Limited, the Company and
a group of independent investors (“Investors”),
several exchangeable notes were issued by
Asiaciti at an aggregate consideration of US$200
million to the Investors on 8 January 2008. The
loan proceeds were subsequently injected as an
equity contribution to the Company as its working
capital. In connection with the loans provided
by the Investors to Asiaciti, the Company (note
32(b)) unconditionally and irrevocably provided
a guarantee to the Investors, as principal obligor
and not merely as surety, the due, punctual
and complete performance of all obligations of
Asiaciti.
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37. INREE (F)

(%)

AEBEEINA RS ER O &
EATE - B (AR EE) - A
NI EN/NCIN= R -3 d k2 EIN
BRRMERHEEITRAEAT
REE -

REEN LRE T RARBERBE G
FENETHREMEENMDN =
ETRFR-ZF——FHmE
D ARA REMEH T BEXE
EFEP

%

ZE—ZFHE EAFTFA
FRRBTER R FT RS s M A4 40 T BT AL
aTEELHE ((EEHBZE] @ &
I MEEEEENEESSEE
FMAL3508EET °

ERoOMNBRAABESK A
It - %R A B AR R IR B IR AR
TR EE -

RZZE—=FtA+=8 " 24
WAk B AEEBEKER
RN —MEARY - BRI R
RZE——FHEMNEELHK
K (TEEAHRD]D)  BEETRR
Fr 4 R AB K B B 2 FROIA B 38 3BT
EIRHEHTIREENERZE
HG
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)
(b)

(Cont'd)

The exchangeable notes were also secured
by various share mortgages whereby, among
others, all of the issued share capital of the
Company and the direct or indirect offshore
subsidiaries of the Company were pledged to
the Investors.

Redemption notices were served by the
Investors to Asiaciti, the Company and
other contractual parties in 2009 and 2011,
respectively, regarding the disputes developed
among the parties aforesaid over certain
provisions of the Note Subscription Agreement.

During the year 2012, certain repayment
arrangements (“Repayment Agreements”) were
entered into among the parties stated above
for settling the disputes discussed in preceding
paragraph whereby the aggregate repayment
amount to the Investors was amended to
approximately US$350 million.

The initial fair value of the guarantee is not
significant, therefore, no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements
for the guarantee.

On 12 July 2013, a restructuring deed was
entered into among Mr. Shum, Asiaciti,
the Group and the Investors to amend
and supplement the terms of repayment
arrangement agreed in 2011 (“Restructuring
Deed”), including but not limited to the
payment schedule for the amounts owed but
not yet fallen due and the modification of the
security given to the Investors.
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—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

37. INREE (&)

(b)

(%)

REEARLY  AEERELH
EROEERE  R-B—=

hA®E %EZ’W%%EF%%E
REBBE S Z BN ﬂ
RZT—MF— H+£H

*Eﬁ:ﬂ+£5&_§*E¢
EA+HEBENK243BEFET
31788 X T M30.088=XTT -
WENFRHE  FEBERER
ARABIBIERETREITER
BEMEAZNBETIHAEREEN
ERA °

RZE—=F+-A=+—HL
MEME  NARRARAHE
FEERIINMNBRAINB TR
N AR 9 BT EE A B P B AR 10 4K 4R
REWEENMAEREZ TN
FRBR R bR - BOBFAERK o

RZE—TOF—AHRB AR
*@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ“%ﬁm(
FE-HIHERE SRR _Z—

ME—A+HAB - —E—WE=
H+£E&:%—E¢£ﬂ+£
BEH) - ERNEEESTENR

m@$”7%ﬁ§E&Wﬁ$
AEITZENTRE  RAKER
ELAFEIRAM BRI BRE
D HIS R

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(b)

(Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Restructuring Deed, the Group
assumed the payment obligation of partial debts
approximately amounting to US$86 million in
September 2013, which will be payable by
three installments with the amount of US$24.3
million, US$31.7 million and US$30.0 million on
15 January 2014, 15 March 2014 and 15 May
2014,
ceased to be the guarantor of the performance

respectively. Upon such, the Company

of all obligations of Asiaciti under the Repayment
Agreements and the Restructuring Deed, as
disclosed above.

Upon completion of the Listing on 11 December
2013, all share mortgages created over the
shares in the issued share capital of the
Company and the direct or indirect offshore
subsidiaries of the Company and all the security
interests created thereby were discharged and
released with immediate effect.

on 6 January 2014, the Company settled all
outstanding installments (being the third to fifth
installments due on 15 January 2014, 15 March
2014 and 15 May 2014, respectively. Given the
sufficiency of working capital and the benefits
of releasing the Company from the secured
obligations and allowing the Company to focus its
attention on operation, the Group decided to pay
all outstanding installments in full ahead of the
schedule.
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EERKRMO KR

ARE R RTT R MR IE R0 E E

RO  URBADDHRER
AR TR E R A B

RIED BB N RO M B REMN EILR

37(b) °

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES

Details of the Group’s assets and shares pledged for
the bank and other borrowings, and in connection
with a Note Subscription Agreement issued by Asiaciti,
the immediate holding company of the Company, are
included in notes 31 and 37(b), respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

39. EEHELH 39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) fEREAA (a) As lessor
AEBREBEELCHELHEAE The Group leases its investment properties
KEYH BEHEBAE—Z=T under operating lease arrangements, with leases
FoHEKRR —ROLERBEPLX negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten
NRES ° years. The terms of the leases generally also
required tenants to pay security deposits.
RBEBHR XEERETTH As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
HEZSHEE  RTYHEIEN had total future minimum lease receivables under
HMPRARFERAERKNIESR non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
BT falling due as follows:

—E—=F T

2013 2012

AR¥Fr ARMFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

—&F R Within one year 35,114 37,872
F_2ENTE (BHEEEME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 52,918 62,227
hFi&g After five years 11,251 16,556
99,283 116,655
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39. E€HEZRH (&)

(b) fEREMEA
AEEREBEHELHFLES
THAMELRBEME (F2H
TX(c)) » FEEHMEHER6ME
RAZE22%F -

RBEHHR - AEBERETATH
HELHEE  RTHHEIHD
ARZEREKRAELT ¢

39. OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of the office properties
and commercial properties (see (c) below) under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
6 months to 22 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

—E2—= —EF——fF

2013 2012

AR¥F T ABREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 85,873 81,592
F_ERERFE (BHEEEME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 347,553 313,311
HFEER After five years 823,712 1,039,002
1,257,138 1,433,905
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39. E€HEZRH (&)

(c) HEHREZH
REBR-_ZT——F+- kB
BEMNEZ TEBAEBRMNEERE
MEBARMKREEHEER 2%
WMEDRBYE=ZHHEE K
B ERAE T INBEL -

FE W 8 4 5K IR

BHETIBEFPNZEFHR—
ETAF -RHEEHR A%E
REBETAMEERRZE XTI
HM 2 B A0 R R R R WA P Y

39. OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) Subleasing arrangements

The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide in
December 2012 and commenced its subleasing
business through Guangzhou Zhide and its
subsidiaries by refurnishing and subleasing the
properties leased from independent third parties
to external tenants.

Sublease payments to be received

Terms for subleasing to external tenants are
negotiated ranging from one to fifteen years. As
at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum sublease payments

EHEREINT expected to be received under non-cancellable
subleasing arrangements with its tenants falling
due as follows:

—E—= —E——F

2013 2012

AR¥ T ABRETFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 119,820 69,605
F_EFERFE (BFEEEME)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 193,412 88,561
h g After five years 46,275 14,157
359,507 172,323
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40. &IE 40. COMMITMENTS
BRT EXMEI9OF HELHEAEFIE In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
Oh - REERREMRER AT E KA in note 39 above, the Group had the following capital
s commitments as at the end of the reporting period:
—E—=f —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥ T ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERIAVERIET B Contracted, but not provided for:
HE L Leasehold land 1,612,383 1,466,291
el y/E S Properties under development 5,235,880 2,770,273
U BEBH B A7) Acquisitions of subsidiaries = 196,598
AR E Equity investment 80,000 _
U B SE 2 IS M 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests 19,490 495 580
6,947,753 4,928,742
BEAN - NEB B E QR B & B A& In addition, the Group’s share of an associate’s own
B (WARFFTALE) W - capital commitments which are not included above, is
as follows:
—E—=f —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRTAVBEREH B Contracted, but not provided for:
FERd=e s Properties under development 1,467 -
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41. BB A RS 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) BRTAWREHMUMABEENRS (a) In addition to the transactions and balances
RSN AEBERREBHRR disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had
B A EFEANTERR S the following material transactions with related

parties during the reporting period:

—E-= —E—=F
2013 2012
k3 AREFr AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

MEMMERERMCEEE  Lease of office premises from Guangzhou

BRARIRE—EL L Times Development Enterprise Group

HEMMR RS Company Limited and Ms. Li Yiping (i) 1,295 1,295
HEFHGRAEENME Sales of property to Mr. Bai Xihong (ii) - 1,524
1,295 2,819

HaE - Notes:

(i) BEMNTRRERCEESEFRAR (i) Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group
(MBEREBEREHE] H—HRZ=Z Company Limited (“Times Development Group”) is a
—EFRZBHEEEZFIRE T company controlled by Mr. Shum in year 2010 and by
—— FERASNELENRESE Mr. Cen lJiancai, father of Mr. Shum, from year 2011
FAEEZEHNAR - Z—FLLh onwards. Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Shum.
ZHERENERE  HEBRRK Rates and conditions of the lease are similar to those
HHEHTEIE=-FNER LK offered to independent third parties.

s -

(i) HETFHEECMEBREIZ2RIE (ii) Prices of the property sold to Mr. Bai were made by

HIBULE=FOMEEBBEL - reference to those offered to independent third parties.
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41. BB AR S (&) 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONT'D)
(b) HEBINHMERS (b)  Other transactions with related parties
(i) RZE——F - AEEMN (i) In year 2012, the Group acquired

A K #10,000,0007T & &
BUDDREZEEEE
HOWEEFERE) £
SIEREMNETERRE
RUEBEZREE - ZRP
HE— S HBHEALAR
81 7 2% 89 B 5E35(A) (i)
A o

R-B——F KEFEH
THBITEAAEEER
METRITERREMBE
RERER - AEBHE
THRITERTAEBRS
BEER -ARAZERS
ME—-—FTHBHFEARS
MBHRROM 3L A -

RBEHR AEEER
BRERERNERE EER
FREBEREEEMOET
AR e

RBEBMA - ARANE
EMBEARIRREEME
ERBEEEMMER L
P XAk A & 81 4 55 A 2 BC
BE—FxLtHEENH &
RERBHAR/ILILTF I AD
S

Zhide Group from certain close family
members of Mr. Shum at a consideration
of RMB10,000,000 which was based
on the then net asset value of Zhide
Group. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 35(A)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

In year 2012, certain related parties of
the Group have provided guarantees in
connection with certain bank loans and
other borrowings obtained by the Group.
Certain bank loans of the Group are also
secured by the assets of its related party.
Further details of these transactions are
included in note 31(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group used certain trademarks
registered by Times Development Group
on a royalty free basis during the reporting
period.

Times Real Estate, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, used and
occupied a property with a gross floor
area of approximately 111 sg.m. owned
by Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum,
on a rental free basis during the reporting
period.
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41. EBEXZ (&)

(c) EERAMETT W REEBEER

0]

(i)

AEBEEBERRNE
ENREBFBHEARA
B 7% @ & 0 M 5E250.26
q:‘ ]

R A B ISR R AT
BT AEERARA SR
ERERQE R&REER
NAEMBERIVERR %
B BREEEERBR -

d) FAEEXZEEBAE (BREE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONT’'D)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

(i) Details of the Group’s balances with its
associates and directors are included
in notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) As disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position, the Group’s and the
Company’s balances with the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding
company are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(d) Compensation for key management

E) WEH - personnel (including directors) of the
Group:

—E—= —E—-—F
2013 2012
AR¥TF T ABRETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RUREMAE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 19,439 16,124
FIRBMRIELT Performance related bonuses 29,196 1,313
RIS FH B Pension scheme contributions 351 11
48,896 17,648

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

B EE =R AR A F Times Property Holdings Limited



B AR M ot
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

42. ZEEEI>HWERMIA 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
RmERAR FENNeRITANKR The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
SR financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

rEE Group
—E-=%4+=ZH=+-—H 31 December 2013
T EE Financial assets
BER K Al E
Bl HIE H2REE BET
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 5718 Trade receivables 472,532 - 472,532
FTATE IR « e REAM Financial assets included in
RGBS REE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 251,963 - 251,963
JE U B & N BRI FR0E Amount due from an associate 70,210 - 70,210
A ERE Available-for-sale investments - 3,100 3,100
ZIRHRITER Restricted bank deposits 1,946,083 - 1,946,083
B4 RIBSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 - 1,721,481
4,462,269 3,100 4,465,369
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42. REFE o WEMIT A 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

(&) CATEGORY (CONT’D)
AEE (&) Group (Cont’d)
—E2-=+ZA=+—H (#) 31 December 2013 (cont’d)
TEEE Financial liabilities
big i
RAFE
MerafE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AREFT
RMB’000
BT E Z5R08 Trade payables 2,413,862
ST AE MR FRIE & Financial liabilities included in other
EFTRIEM M AE payables and accruals 2,480,137
FFERITER R A ER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 7,402,548
12,296,547
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42. ZEREITWEMIA 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
(&) CATEGORY (CONT’D)
AEE (&) Group (Cont'd)
—EB--H+zZA=+—H 31 December 2012
T EEE Financial assets
BEE g3k AfHE
FEE [EHGIE MemEE @t
Available-
Held- Loans for-sale-
to-maturity and financial
investments  receivables assets Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
JEW B 5 5IE Trade receivables - 32,546 - 32,546
FAENRE - ZER Financial assets included in prepayments,

HEMERTIBNSREE deposits and other receivables - 1,209,453 - 1,209,453
EERIEKRE Held-to-maturity investments 305,700 - - 305,700
W E R A R FE Amount due from the immediate

holding company - 437,507 - 437,507

JIE Mo B AR PR B ) B0 R Amount due from the ultimate
holding company - 16 - 16
JIE Uit 221 RO 708 Amounts due from associates - 63,880 - 63,880
[EESHFE Amounts due from directors - 3,438 - 3,438
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - - 3,100 3,100
ZIREIRITER Restricted bank deposits - 897,299 - 897,299
BERBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents - 936,446 - 936,446
305,700 3,580,585 3,100 3,889,385
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42. REEFE SNSRI A (&) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONT’D)

rEE (HF) Group (Cont'd)
—E-—f+=-HA=+-—H (#) 31 December 2012 (Cont’d)
THEE Financial liabilities
R HAREE
A E 5118
e AaE THAE BEr
Financial
liabilities at
Financial fair value
liabilities at  through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
AREFT AREFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JERTE 5708 Trade payables 2,872,646 - 2,872,646
SPARAM R FIE R Financial liabilities included in
[EztIEN S RmBE other payables and accruals 1,259,139 62,778 1,321,917
HERITERNEMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 5,676,799 5,676,799
BN EZHRIE Amount due to a director 101,478 - 101,478
9,910,062 62,778 9,972,840
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42. RERE S NEMITA (&)

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

AT Company
cREE Financial assets
—E—= B
2013 2012
AR¥ T AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERRERRIE Loans and receivables
FTATERRIE -« EBe Rk Financial assets included in prepayments,
Hib e BN S E E deposits and other receivables 273 12
R B AR A B R FUR Amount due from the
immediate holding company - 437,507
FEM S AR R R BRI FUR Amount due from the
ultimate holding company - 10
i NG OB Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235 922,852
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 785,876 7,356
2,142,384 1,367,737
cEAas Financial liabilities
—E—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBHERATENERERS Financial liabilities at amortised cost
ST AE A e 3B & Financial liabilities included in
EAA BN S RAaRE other payables and accruals 546,894 -
FETHT B A B AR IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133 117,867
FENEERFIE Amount due to a director - 11,029
663,027 128,896
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43. TMITEANQIAEBERAR

BERBK

AEBLRARANERTA RES R
EEEAABEMAEERN 2RES

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial instruments, other than those

BHRARBEED with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:
IRESH AREE
rEH Group Carrying amounts Fair values
—T-=§ T CZET-=f —T—=F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANRETT AREFT ABEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
AIHHERE Available-for-sale investments 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100
3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100
tHEE Financial liabilities
A A FE A FUR K& Certain financial liabilities
FEAHRIERE T included in other payables
TRBE and accruals = 62,778 = 62,778
- 62,778 - 62,778
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43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (CONT’D)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
an amount due to the immediate holding company,
amounts due from associates, amounts due from
directors, an amount due to a director, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale investments, other
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

B R R AR A E Times Property Holdings Limited 20134 [E#k+% Annual Report 2013



43. ERMIENI2AEBERAR 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
EEEHR (&) HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (CONT'D)
AREEER Fair value hierarchy
TRV ASESHMTEN AR EER The following tables illustrate the fair value
EER measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:
BEAABEFENEE Assets measured at fair value as:
AREEHEFRER
Fair value measurement using
EERMEHE EXTBE EATUBE
(18) GARE ($2B) BAYE ($3E) @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AENERE Available-for-sale investments
MZZE-=F+-F=1+—H Asat 31 December 2013 3,100 - - 3,100
R-ZE——%#+-HA=1+—H Asat31 December 2012 3,100 - - 3,100
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43. ERMIANDIAREBERAR
BEER (&)

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (CONT’D)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

BAREBEFENESE Liabilities measured at fair value as:
AAEEFEFRER
Fair value measurement using
ERTERE EATEHE EXFABE
(B1E) WARE (F28) GARE (F38) @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
HAHMERZER Certain other payables included in
BN ET other payables and accruals:
HihERTIE
MWZZE—=F+-A=1+—H Asat 31 December 2013 = —* = —*
RZE—ZH+ZA=+—H Asat 31 December 2012 - 62,778 - 62,778
* TAEMEN KRB REFRENE THEM * Those certain other payables included in other payables and
EBRRER-_ZT—=F+-A=+—80%K accruals were mutually agreed to be settled at a fixed amount
BHBARETSREEE - FBHHARME at 31 December 2013. Details are set out in note 30(a)(i).
30(a)(i) °

FA FIBEF2EZHAYLERAARER
AEER TESREELEHMAGESE
ASEHEIE (ZF——F &) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities (2012: Nil).
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, an amount due from the immediate holding
company, an amount due from an associate, amounts
due from directors, and available-for-sale investments.
The financial liabilities of the Group mainly include trade
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, and an amount due to a director.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments approximated to their fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Fair value estimates are
made on a specific point in time and based on relevant
market information about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’'D)

(a)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank loans and other borrowings bearing floating
interest rates. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, total
borrowings of RMB5,316,945,000 and
RMB3,939,979,000 were with floating interest
rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before income tax (through
the impact of floating rate bank loans and other
borrowings) during the year. There was no impact
on the Group’s other equity.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(a) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Increase/(decrease) on profit before
income tax and properties under
development

—E-= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR¥FiT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LN F) R BEAK 10018 E 25 If 100 basis points decrease in interest rates
B AT 15 A5 BT A1) Profit before income tax 6,148 2 644
ERAI=ELYE Properties under development 35,752 28,052
INF) & 12 = 10018 & 2 If 100 basis points increase in interest rates
B P15 5 A A1) B Profit before income tax (6,148) (2,644)
FHEEFR Y3 Properties under development (35,752) (28,052)
(b) HSERBS (b)  Foreign currency risk

AERNEBLRTBEAML %
BRXZHAUAREET - AEH
MAMOEERBBEOUARKE
FHE- mMETROEHREETH
fib FE A SRR R D BIAB T R E T
FHE o AN B iE K 5 H SNE F
KRR °

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are
conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, while
certain bank balances are denominated in HK$
and certain other payables are denominated
in USD. The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONT’'D)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates
against HK$ or USD, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to
translation of foreign operations).

B,/ ER RRBE AT
ExLH FELEH PR A= 38 hn
/(T ) /(T ) S (RD)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in HK$/USD in profit (decrease)
Rate before tax in equity*
% AR¥Fr AR¥Fr
% RMB’000 RMB’000

—E—=F 2013

MARK S ABTRE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 5 4 41,710
MA R A THE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ 5 (4) (41,710)
WMARBEETRE If the RMB weakens against the USD 5 = 26,023
MARKERETLAE If the RMB strengthens against the USD 5 = (26,023)

ST YEBREANER

G o
N

* TREBEFHE

No material foreign currency risk was noted in

2012.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits are mainly deposited
with state-owned banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, an amount due
from the immediate holding company, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from directors,
and available-for-sale investments included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
Group has no other financial assets which carry
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of its property units and
provided guarantees to secure the obligation
of these purchasers for repayments. A detailed
disclosure of these guarantees is made in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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44, s EREEEERBE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d) REHERER (d) Liquidity risk
AEENEEEEEHABRRN Management of the Group aims to maintain
HehBeEEBY BASEE sufficient cash and cash equivalents, and the
BAEHEAEEERBEEMN Group has available funding through an adequate
ATRE G M i TG - amount of committed credit facilities to meet its

construction commitments.

TEREEBERAEERBEHRER The table below summarises the maturity profile
BEEIHNERMBRENEREE of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
K EIEBIE R - the reporting period based on the contractual

undiscounted payments.

rEE Group
R-E—=ZF+-H=+—H At 31 December 2013
REXK PR3EAE 3ZF12(8A 1ZE5% BiB5F #st
Less than 3to12 1 to Over
On demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total

ARBBTT ARETRHT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000

N E H5E Trade payables 2,413,862 - - - - 2,413,862
SFAEMEMFKIE  Financial liabilities
KR sH SR included in other
AR payables and accruals 1,781,362 - - 698,775 - 2,480,137
FERITERR Interest-bearing bank
HibfamR loans and other
borrowings - 1,112,709 1,341,032 5,687,703 304,956 8,446,400

4,195,224 1,112,709 1,341,032 6,386,478 304,956 13,340,399
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’'d)
Group (cont’d)
At 31 December 2012

REREE  PR3EA 3212184 1&85% HER5F st
Less than 3to12 1to Over
On demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total

ARETT AREFIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ENEHHA Trade payables 2,872,646 - - - - 2,872,646
ST AEAMEMZIE  Financial liabilities
R FEFT IR included in other
TRBE payables and accruals 1,321,917 - - - - 1,321,917
HERITERR Interest-bearing bank
HAER loans and other
borrowings - 1,165,317 2,401,946 2,684,747 62,050 6,314,060
ERNESHHRIE Amount due to a
director 101,478 - - - - 101,478
4,296,041 1,165,317 2,401,946 2,684,747 62,050 10,610,101
ENNS Company
AAFIRBERRNBESRE All the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
BN EREEE - end of the reporting period are repayable on

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013

demand.
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44.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONT’'D)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
based on net debt and adjusted equity. Net debt
is calculated as total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash). Adjusted equity
comprises all components of equity (i.e., share capital,
non-controlling interests and reserves), and the net
amount due to the Founder, who is a director.
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B) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Capital management (Cont’d)
BRI The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratios at the end of the

W reporting period are as follows:

—E-= —E—_F
2013 2012
AR¥T T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FTEIRITER M EMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
(K15#31) other borrowings (note 31) 7,402,548 5,676,799
o IRe RIBITAE (#17728)  Less: Cash and bank balances (note 28) (3,667,564) (1,833,745)
BEFRE Net debt 3,734,984 3,843,054
s Equity 4,008,421 3,206,113
hn o FERHBIE A RIERIE (f14226) Add: Amount due to the Founder (note 26) = 101,478
TR Adjusted equity 4,008,421 3,307,591
BEFEELHERERL X Net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio 93.2% 116.2%
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45. BEHREE

Brar & S MR M EE37(b) PRt & 5h - &
SEEBATERREHEREFR -

(a) RZZE—WmF—A+aAB £&2A
A BARMBLUXKTERSE L
AHABERESMRG LD ERE
M—mEtihe THEHBAARK
632,820,0007T + E A Lk =
RAFEREREAEZ BE X
AR #68,040,0007T °

(b) MZZE—MF_ANR ' KXRFA
MMBARBEESREBM® LR
FAIREBRSLNBETEREN
— Rt THEEBEBRARE
197,000,0007T + HH /5 E S #E
RARBRREMSEZBE XM
A K #40,000,0007T °

46. BB MR 2 HL &

BHEBRRERN _E—NE_/F -+ HE
B ERBEERE-

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

In addition to note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following material
subsequent events:

(a)

(b)

On 15 January 2014, Foshan Yongheng, a
subsidiary of the Company, won the bidding to
acquire a parcel of land located in Chancheng
district, Foshan City, through on-line public
bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB632,820,000, of which Foshan Yongheng
has paid RMB68,040,000 as of the date of
approval of these financial statements.

On 8 February 2014, Qingyuan Xilong, a
subsidiary of the Company, won the bidding to
acquire a parcel of land located in Qingcheng
district, Qingyuan City, through on-line public
bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB197,000,000, of which Qingyuan Xilong has
paid RMB40,000,000 as of the date of approval
of these financial statements.

46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 20 February 2014.
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEERBENETRFENESE  BERA
BEHE (HERaRBEXMBERRILALABEH
BT —=F+—AZ+ALBENBRER) &

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and the Company’s prospectus

N - dated 29 November 2013, is set out below:
BEt+t-A=t+—-HiLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=f =—IT—=—f =ZT—F ZZT-ZF
2013 2012 2011 2010
ARBFT AREFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E3 RESULTS
A REVENUE 9,694,735 3,197,142 2,466,811 1,547,206
HEKAR Cost of sales (7,354,711) (2,288,184) (1,781,257) (1,156,369)
EH Gross profit 2,340,024 908,958 685,554 390,837
HAanlh A R Mz Other income and gains 78,700 138,269 208,908 196,025
$HE R SR Selling and distribution costs (411,137)  (204,279)  (259,226)  (172,925)
TR Administrative expenses (285,629) (145,098) (182,227) (111,425)
Haph Other expenses (16,493) (34,377) (84,069) (27,006)
A& B A Finance costs (87,706) (42,055) (39,662) (33,110)
JE (R N B R K 1R Share of profits and losses of
associates 2,371 5 6,440 3,212
R B B 719 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,620,130 621,423 335,718 245,608
Frisfim X Income tax expense (646,200) (267,775) (100,847) (80,264)
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 973,930 353,648 234,871 165,344
THIEIBREG ¢ Attributable to:
KAREE A Owners of the Company 987,022 362,916 247,169 165,347
g Non-controlling interests (13,092) (9,268) (12,298) (3)
973,930 353,648 234,871 165,344

2013 FE 3K+ Annual Report 2013
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EE -BERESR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
#®t=A=+-8

As at 31 December
—E—=f =T =ZT—F ZZT-IZTF
2013 2012 2011 2010

ARBTRT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

BERR TOTAL ASSETS 24,839,778 22,085,608 15,767,424 10,207,873
BEBsE TOTAL LIABILITIES (20,831,357) (18,879,495) (12,916,387) (8,090,906)
TS 4B%E TOTAL EQUITY 4,008,421 3,206,113 2,851,037 2,116,967
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